MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD)
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD)

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict)

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Board of Directors Office Term Expiration
Butch Gabrielski President May 2023
Wayne Reorda Secretary/Treasurer May 2022

Bill Gessner Asst. Secretary/Treasurer May 2023

Mike Fenton Asst. Secretary/Treasurer May 2023

Tom Sauer Asst. Secretary/Treasurer May 2022
DATE: Wednesday, November 3, 2021

TIME: 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Meridian Ranch Recreation Center

10301 Angeles Road
Peyton, CO 80831

The Public may participate in person or by following this link Click here to join the meeting or
by telephone by calling +1 872-242-8662 and using Phone Conference ID: 409 414 161#

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS:

mooOwmp

Call to Order

Conflicts of Interest

Approve Agenda

Visitor Comments (Limited to 3 minutes per resident or household)

Review and Approve October 8, 2021, Combined Regular Board Meeting Minutes

(enclosure) Page 3

FINANCIAL ITEMS:

A.

T o mm

Receive from CRS the Quarterly MRMD Cash Position Summary and Unaudited
Financial Statements (enclosure) Pages 8-14

Review and Accept MSMD Cash Position Summary and Unaudited Financial
Statements (enclosure and/or distributed under separate cover) Pages 15-23
Review Tap Fee Report for Information Only (enclosure and/or distributed under
separate cover) Pages 24-25

Review, Ratify and Approve Monthly Payment of Claims (enclosure and/or
distributed under separate cover) Pages 26-27

Receive Finance Committee Report

Conduct Public Hearing to Certify Delinquent Accounts

Adopt Resolution MSMD 21-05 Certifying Delinquent Accounts (enclosure)Pages 28-29
Receive Staff Report and Provide Direction to Staff on Proposed 2021 Budgets and
Fees, and November Budget Workshop (enclosure and/or handout)Pages 30-69

Page 1 of 170


admin1
Typewriter
Page 3

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 8-14

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 15-23

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 24-25

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 26-27

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 28-29

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 30-69


Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District (MRMD)

Meridian Service Metropolitan District (MSMD)

Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District 2018 Subdistrict (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict)
Page 2 of 2

. OPERATIONS & ENGINEERING ITEMS:
A. Information Items (No Action)
1. MSMD Operations Reports — Water, Sewer, Parks and Grounds, Recreation
(enclosure and/or handout) Pages 69-72
2. Manager’s Verbal Report
3. Presentation of Comments Received Regarding Proposed Changes to the
Meridian Service District Employee Handbook Pages 73-121

B. Action Items

1. Approve and authorize President to sign Construction Services Contract
with Thomas General Contractors for Remodel of Recreation Center Lobby,
$120,602.88 Pages 122-138

2. Approve and authorize President to sign Professional Services Agreement
with JDS Hydro for Water Filter Plant Design and Permitting, $129,800.00 Pages

3. Approve and authorize President to sign Professional Services AgreementM
with JDS Hydro for Filter Plant Expansion Pipeline Bidding and Construction
Administration, $27,097.00 Pages 156-170

Iv. DEVELOPER ITEMS:
A. Verbal Report from Construction Manager

V. DIRECTOR ITEMS:

VL. LEGAL ITEMS:
A. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(f) regarding personnel
issues related to General Manager annual performance review, salary, and benefits.

VII. ADJOURNMENT:

The next meeting of the Boards is scheduled for Wednesday, November 17, 2021,
at 6:00 p.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road,
Peyton, Colorado 80831 for a Budget Workshop.

The Board will hold a virtual Special Meeting on Wednesday December 1, at 9:00
a.m. to consider approval of loan documents for partial financing of the Cherokee
Metropolitan District TDS Removal Project.

The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for Wednesday, December 8,

2021, at 10:00 a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road,
Peyton, Colorado 80831.

Page 2 of 170


admin1
Typewriter
Pages 69-72

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 73-121

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 122-138

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 139-155

admin1
Typewriter
Pages 156-170


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

MINUTES OF THE COMBINED REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD)
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD)
MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict)

Held: October 6, 2021, 10:00 a.m., at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301
Angeles Road, Peyton, Colorado 80831

Attendance: The following Directors were in attendance:

Butch Gabrielski, President

Wayne Reorda, Secretary/Treasurer
Bill Gessner, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer
Mike Fenton, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer
Tom Sauer, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer

Also present were:
Jim Nikkel; Meridian Service Metro District
Jennette Coe; Meridian Service Metro District
Eileen Krauth; Meridian Service Metro District
Braden McCrory; Meridian Service Metro District
Ryan Kozlowski; Meridian Service Metro District
Matt Chorske; Piper Sadler (via telephone)
Ron Fano; Spencer Fane
Tiffany Lu Leichman; Sherman and Howard
Tom Kerby; Tech Builders
Raul Guzman; Tech Builders (via telephone)
Nancy Loew; Homeowner (via telephone)
Janet McMonigal; Homeowner
Tani Sultana; Homeowner

Call to Order A quorum of the Board was present, and the Directors confirmed their
qualification to serve. The meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m.

Disclosure Matter Mr. Fano noted that written disclosures of the interests of all Directors have
been filed with the Secretary of State.

Approve Agenda The Board reviewed the Agenda. A motion was made to amend the agenda by

deleting items I11.B.2 and VI.B. The motion was seconded and approved by
unanimous vote of the directors present.

Page 3 of 170



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Visitor Comments

Approve Minutes

Financial Items

Ms. McMonigal thanked District staff for their good work and asked the Board
to reevaluate their approach to landscaping at the intersection of Rex &
Meridian by using native landscaping rather than grass.

Ms. Sultana expressed appreciation for the Board’s approval of a memorial
bench and described the results of an informal Facebook survey relating to
District matters.

Ms. Loew noted that a resident-sponsored fall festival would be taking place
on Sunday, October 11, and described the Active Older Adult and Silver
Sneakers programs that are no longer available in the district but are still
advertised on the website for the Recreation Center. She noted that some dead
trees still remained standing, and that reseeding needed to continue.

The Board reviewed the September 8, 2021 Board Minutes and a motion was
made and seconded to approve the minutes as presented. The motion was
approved by unanimous vote of the directors present.

Cash Position Summary and Financial Statements: Ms. Coe reviewed the cash
position summary and monthly financial reports for August 2021. A motion
was made to accept the cash position summary and financial statements as
presented. The motion was seconded and approved by unanimous vote of the
directors present.

Review 2020 Tap Fee Report: Ms. Coe reviewed the September 2021 Tap Fee
Report with the Board for information only.

Approval of Payment of Claims: Ms. Coe reviewed the updated claims
presented for approval at this meeting:

MSMD Interim checks for ratification: #13299 for $800.00

MSMD: payments totaling $512,683.03

MRMD: #02297-#02302 totaling $1,732.40

A motion was made to approve the MSMD payment of claims. The motion was
seconded and approved by unanimous vote of the directors present.
A motion was made to approve the MRMD payment of claims. The motion was
seconded and approved by unanimous vote of the directors present.

Receive Finance Committee Report: Ms. Coe noted that the Finance Committee
met on September 22, 2021, to approve interim payments; and on September
29, 2021, to approve the 2020 audit for submission by the state’s extended
deadline of September 30 and to accept the 2020 audit for Meridian Ranch
Metropolitan District and Meridian Serv ice Metropolitan District.

Page 4 of 170



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Operations &
Engineering Items

Developer Items

A motion was made to ratify the action of the Finance Committee and District
Manager to allow for timely filing of the 2020 audit and accept the 2020 audit
for Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District and Meridian Service Metropolitan
District. The motion was seconded and approved by unanimous vote of the
directors present.

Information ltems:

MSMD Operations Reports:

e Mr. McCrory presented the water, sewer, parks and grounds, and
drainage operation reports which included information from pages 89-
95 of the Revised Board Packet. Director Gessner asked about the status
of grass in Greens Park, and Mr. Nikkel noted that the project is
scheduled for 2022. Directors and staff also discussed strategies for
upcoming sprinkler blowouts.

e Mr. Kozlowski presented the Recreation Center Report to the Board
which included information on page 96 of the Board Packet.

Managers Verbal Report: Mr. Nikkel provided status reports on the following
matters:
e Staff completed safety training courses that qualify the district for a
10% discount on Property & Liability premiums for 2022.

Action Items:

1. Authorize Jim Nikkel and Jennette Coe as Member Representatives for the
Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool
A motion was made and seconded to authorize Mr. Nikkel and Ms. Coe as
member representatives. The motion was approved by unanimous vote of
the directors present.

2. Motion to set December 8, 2021, 10 a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation
Center, 10301 Angeles Road, Peyton, CO 80831 as the 2022 budget hearing.
A motion was made and seconded to set the hearing date and location. The
motion was approved by unanimous vote of the directors present.

Mr. Guzman provided a verbal report to the Board on the status of Meridian
Ranch development activities.
e New lots have been added in Rolling Hills Ranch #1 & 2.
e RHR #3 will be available by summer of 2022.
e Working on drawings to extend Rex Road to the east, and in
conversation with El Paso County on improvements to Eastonville from
Rex Road to McLaughlin (near the Safeway).

Page 5 of 170



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Director Items

Legal Items

Adjournment

Directors discussed potential participation in applying for American Rescue
Plan Act funding for water & wastewater projects. Mr. Nikkel will discuss with
Cherokee Metro District the possibility of applying for ARPA funds for
upcoming joint projects and will provide feedback to Directors.

A motion was made, seconded, and approved by unanimous vote of directors
present to open an executive session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b) to
receive legal advice regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with
Cherokee Metropolitan District, including financing of arbitration obligation,
and status of Sterling Ranch Participation.

A motion was made, seconded, and approved by unanimous vote of directors
present to close the executive session.

There being no further business to come before the Board, the President
adjourned the meeting at 12:25 p.m.

The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for November 3, 2021 at

10:00 a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road,
Peyton, Colorado 80831.

Respectfully submitted,

Secretary for the Meeting

Page 6 of 170



1<}

Spencerl-ane’

RON FANO
DIRECT DIAL: 303-839-3820
rfano@spencerfane.com

October 6, 2021

Meridian Service Metropolitan District
ATTN: Jim Nikkel, General Manager
11886 Stapleton Drive

Falcon, CO 80111

Re: Opinion Concerning Executive Session Held October 6, 2021

Dear Mr. Nikkel:

In my opinion, the executive session concerning the arbitration/post arbitration matters with
Cherokee Metropolitan District, including financing of arbitration obligation and status of Sterling Ranch
participation that occurred during the Board meeting that I attended in person on October 6, 2021 was
properly announced and was a privileged attorney-client communication. Therefore, no record or electronic
recording of the executive session was required pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S.

Sincerely,

SPENCER FANE LLP

Ronald K. Fano

SPENCER FANE LLP | 1700 LINCOLN ST SUITE 2000, DENVER, CO 80203-4554 | 303.839.3800 | FAX 303.839.3838 | spencerfane.com

Page 7 of 170



MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CASH POSITION
Year to Date (YTD) as of September 30, 2021
Adjusted as of October 27, 2021

INVESTMENTS TOTAL
CHECKING Compass Compass ALL
Wells Fargo ColoTrust Plus || Loan Account Reserve ACCOUNTS
Account Activity Item Description
Beginning balance per bank 554,808 | $ 684,033 [ $ 3,188,955 1,411,633 (| $ 5,839,429
YTD credits - deposits, wires and transfers 1,447,459 2,310,037 4,317,452 240 8,075,188
YTD debits - vouchers, wires and transfers (1,994,373) (2,137,768) (1,390,138) - (5,522,279)
Bank balance at end of period 7,894 856,302 6,116,269 1,411,873 8,392,338
Less: outstanding checks (462) - - - (462)
Adjusted balance at end of period 7,432 856,302 6,116,269 1,411,873 8,391,876
Less amount restricted for debt - 224,319 (6,116,269) (1,411,873) (7,303,823)
Les amount allocated for capital projects - (224,086) - - (224,086)
Unrestricted balance at end of period 7,432 856,535 - - 863,967
Current activity:
Current payables (9,300) - - - (9,300)
Due from Subdistrict 644 - - - 644
Deposits 1,411,000 21,865 - - 1,432,865
Payments (1,732) - - - (1,732)
Payroll tax payments (459) - - - (459)
Transfers 15,000 (15,000) - - -
Taxes transferred - (17,492) 17,492 - -
Tap fees (1,411,000) - 1,411,000 - -
Less amount restricted for debt - - (1,428,492) - (1,428,492)
Adjusted current unrestricted balance 11,585 || $ 845,908 || $ - - $ 857,493
Page 1

Page 8 of 170



MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
FUND ALLOCATION OF AVAILABLE BALANCES
Year to Date (YTD) as of September 30, 2021

GENERAL DEBT CTF TOTALS
Account Activity Item Description ALL FUNDS

Beginning funds available $ 694,748 | $ 5,144,588 - $ 5,839,336
YTD REVENUES PER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property taxes 430,836 1,723,189 - 2,154,025

Specific ownership taxes 37,466 149,864 - 187,330

Investment income 463 1,467 - 1,930

Facility fees transferred from Meridian Service - 1,375,000 - 1,375,000

Conservation Trust Entitlements - - 38,156 38,156

Miscellaneous 19 50,000 - 50,019

Subdistrict - IGA 3,284 - - 3,284
Total YTD revenues 472,068 3,299,520 38,156 3,809,744
Beginning funds available plus YTD revenues 1,166,816 8,444,108 38,156 9,649,080

Less YTD expenditures per financial statements (302,849) (916,199) (38,156) (1,257,204)
YTD ENDING AVAILABLE FUND BALANCES $ 863,967 (| $ 7,527,909 - $ 8,391,876

Budget vs. Actual Page Reference: Page 3 Page 4 Page 5
Page 2

Page 9 of 170



MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)
GENERAL FUND
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Subdistrict - IGA
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Audit
County treasurer fees
Director fees and payroll taxes
District management and accounting
Dues and membership
Insurance
Legal
Miscellaneous
Payroll taxes
Subdistrict IGA
Transfer to Meridian Service
3% Tabor Reserve
Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

Unaudited
Variance Percent of
Jul-Sept Adopted Over Budget
Activity YTD Actual 2021 Budget (Under) (75% YTD)
$ 169,539 430,836 $ 432,234 $ (1,398) 100%
13,048 37,466 38,647 (1,181) 97%
173 463 5,000 (4,537) 9%
- 19 - 19 -
1,500 3,284 8,776 (5,492) 37%
184,260 472,068 484,657 (12,589) 97%
600 3,302 10,000 (6,698) 33%
2,546 6,466 6,484 (18) 100%
2,885 5,791 12,000 (6,209) 48%
2,702 16,365 30,000 (13,635) 55%
- 598 1,500 (902) 40%
- 4,702 5,000 (298) 94%
- 162 28,000 (27,838) 1%
261 902 1,000 (98) 90%
115 222 918 (696) 24%
644 4,339 8,776 (4,437) -
- 260,000 260,000 - 100%
- - 14,600 (14,600) 0%
9,753 302,849 378,278 (75,429) 80%
$ 174,507 169,219 $ 106,379 $ 62,840
694,748
863,967
Page 3

Page 10 of 170



MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes

Facilities fees transferred from MSMD

Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
County treasurer fees
Bond interest (2008 $7M)

Loan interest (2013 $33.5M)
Loan principal (2013 $33.5M)

Loan interest (2014 $3.5M)

Loan principal (2014 $3.5M)

Loan interest (2018 $24M)
Loan principal (2018 $24M)

Paying agent and bank fees
Transfer to Meridian Service

Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)

DEBT FUND
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021
Unaudited
Percent of
Jul-Sept Adopted Variance Budget
Activity YTD Actual 2021 Budget  Over (Under) (75% YTD)
$ 678,094 $ 1,723,189 $ 1,728,777 $ (5,588) 100%
52,193 149,864 154,589 (4,725) 97%
340,000 1,375,000 3,600,000 (2,225,000) 38%
491 1,467 10,000 (8,533) 15%
- 50,000 - 50,000 -
1,070,778 3,299,520 5,493,366 (2,193,846) 60%
10,183 25,861 25,932 (71) 100%
- - 350,000 (350,000) 0%
- 417,578 837,450 (419,872) 50%
- - 990,000 (990,000) 0%
- 47,678 95,617 (47,939) 50%
- - 105,000 (105,000) 0%
- 424,419 851,170 (426,751) 50%
- - 300,000 (300,000) 0%
144 663 1,000 (337) 66%
- - 750,000 (750,000) 0%
- - 1,000 (1,000) 0%
10,327 916,199 4,307,169 (3,390,970) 21%
$ 1,060,451 2,383,321 $ 1,186,197 $ 1,197,124
5,144,588
$ 7,527,909
Page 4

Page 11 of 170



MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Unaudited
Percent of
Jul-Sept Adopted Variance Budget
Activity YTD Actual 2021 Budget  Over (Under) (75% YTD)
REVENUES
Conservation Trust entitlements $ 11,498 $ 38,156 $ 35,000 $ 3,156 109%
Total revenues 11,498 38,156 35,000 3,156 109%
EXPENDITURES
Transfer to Meridian Service 26,368 38,156 35,000 3,156 109%
Total expenditures 26,368 38,156 35,000 3,156 109%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (14,870) - $ - $ -
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ -
Page 5

Page 12 of 170



MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT
CASH POSITION RECONCILED TO GENERAL LEDGER
Year to Date (YTD) as of September 30, 2021
Adjusted as of October 27, 2021
Unaudited

TOTAL

INVESTMENTS ALL
ColoTrust Plus ACCOUNTS

Account Activity Item Description

Beginning balance per bank $ 22,375 (| $ 22,375
YTD credits - Total deposits, wires and transfers 60,518 60,518
YTD debits - Total vouchers, wires and transfers (3,284) (3,284)
Bank balance at end of period 79,609 79,609

Less: Due to MRMD (644) (644)
Current cash balance $ 78,965 || $ 78,965

Page 13 of 170




MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT SUBDISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)

SUBDISTRICT FUND
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Unaudited
Percent of
Jul-Sept Adopted Variance Budget
Activity YTD Actual 2021 Budget  Over (Under) (75% YTD)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 18,686 $ 56,859 $ 57,147 $ (288) 99%
Specific ownership taxes 1,725 4,487 2,000 2,487 224%
Interest 5 23 50 (27) 46%
Total revenues 20,416 61,369 59,197 2,172 104%
EXPENDITURES
Accounting and management 644 3,130 5,000 (1,870) 63%
Audit - 798 1,000 (202) 80%
Legal - - 1,000 (1,000) 0%
County treasurer fees 282 851 857 (6) 99%
3% TABOR reserve - - 1,776 (1,776) 0%
Total expenditures 926 4,779 9,633 (4,854) 50%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 19,490 56,590 $ 49,564 $ 7,026
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 22,375
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 78,965

Page 14 of 170



MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CASH POSITION SUMMARY
For the Period Ended September 30, 2021
Adjusted as of October 28, 2021

CHECKING
Wells Fargo
Account Activity Item Description
Cash balance at end of period $ 3,572,387
October activity:
Utility billing from residents 425,326
Recreation Center fees 9,120
Tap fees and meter fees (In) 1,106,060
Tap fees transferred to MRMD (Out) (1,411,000)
El Paso County Collection of Deliquent Accounts 809
AT&T, Falcon Freedom Days and reimbursements 1,563
Payroll (143,499)
Reserve Transfers (143,278)
Sterling Ranch 2020 Tap Fee Payment 1,312,423
October checks and payments
Operations incl. interim checks (1,086,947)
Interest, fees and returned checks (979)
Sub-total 3,641,985
November 3rd payment Estimate (250,000)
Adjusted balance $ 3,391,985
Less restricted funds as of October 31, 2021:
Conservation Trust Funds -
5% Reserve Fund (47,083)
Sewer Reserve Fund (6,150)
Capital Project Funds (1,432,201)
Rate Stabilization Fund 5,417
Adjusted Unrestricted Balance $ 1,911,968

Management Purposes Only

Page 15 of 170



MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CASH POSITION RECONCILED TO GENERAL LEDGER

CASH POSITION SUMMARY

For the Period Ended September 30, 2021
Adjusted as of October 28, 2021

INVESTMENTS
ColoTrust Plus
Rate
Checking Conservation Sewer Capital Project | Stabilization TOTAL ALL
Wells Fargo Petty Cash Trust Funds 5% Reserve Reserve ($2) Funds Funds ACCOUNTS
Account Activity Item Description
Cash balance at end of period 3,572,387 384 38,194 305,599 4,223,301 667,627 8,807,494
October activity:
Utility billing from residents 425,326 - - - - - - 425,326
Recreation Center fees 9,120 - - - - - - 9,120
Tap fees and meter fees (In) 1,106,060 - - - - - - 1,106,060
Tap fees transferred to MRMD (Out) (1,411,000) - - - - - - (1,411,000)
El Paso County Collection of Deliquent Accounts 809 - - - m - - 809
AT&T, Falcon Freedom Days and reimbursements 1,563 - - - - - - 1,563
Payroll (143,499) - - - - - (143,499)
Reserve Transfers (143,278) - - 141,250 18,278 - (16,250) -
Sterling Ranch 2020 Tap Fee Payment 1,312,423 - - - - - - 1,312,423
October checks and payments
Operations incl. interim checks (1,086,947) - - - - - - (1,086,947)
Interest, fees and returned checks (979) - 0 18 94 15 (848)
Sub-total 3,641,985 384 38,194 446,868 18,282 4,223,395 651,392 9,020,501
November 3rd payment Estimate (250,000) - - - - - - (250,000)
Adjusted balance 3,391,985 384 38,194 446,868 18,282 4,223,395 651,392 8,770,501
Less restricted funds as of October 31, 2021:
Petty Cash - (384) - - - - - (384)
Conservation Trust Funds - - (38,194) - - - - (38,194)
5% Reserve Fund (47,083) - - (446,868) - - - (493,951)
Sewer Reserve Fund (6,150) - - - (18,282) - - (24,432)
Capital Project Funds (1,432,201) - - - - (4,223,395) - (5,655,596)
Rate Stabilization Fund 5,417 - - - - - (651,392) (645,975)
Unrestricted cash balance $ 1,911,968 - $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ 1,911,968

Note: Additional investment accounts can be used for extraordinary expenditures.

Management Purposes Only

Page 16 of 170




Meridian Service Metropolitan District

St of R , Exp and Change in Fund Balance
Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis
SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS

For the One Month and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Variance
Month of Adopted 2021 Over (Under) % of Budget
Sep 2021 YTD Actual Budget Budget (75.0% YTD)
REVENUES
General Revenue - Fund 10 (51,487) $280,340 $286,910 (56,570) 97.7%
Parks/Grounds Revenue - Fund 15 93,035 822,834 1,107,175 (284,341) 74.3%
Rec Center Revenue - Fund 16 165,931 1,450,721 1,889,250 (438,529) 76.8%
Water Revenue - Fund 40 381,504 2,403,688 3,150,000 (746,312) 76.3%
Sewer Revenue - Fund 50 146,707 1,421,387 3,107,525 (1,686,138) 45.7%
Billing Fees 8,040 50,287 71,400 (21,113) 70.4%
Grant Revenue 11,498 38,428 35,000 3,428 109.8%
Development Inspection Fees 69,625 69,625 - 69,625 -
Interest Income 19,378 59,077 - 59,077 -
Miscellaneous Income - 13,711 - 13,711 -
TOTAL REVENUES 894,230 6,610,099 9,647,260  (3,037,161) 68.5%
EXPENSES
Capital Expenses
Capital Expense - Other - 116,292 1,630,000 (1,513,708) 7.1%
Capital Expense P&G Fund 15 - 300,000 300,000 - 100.0%
Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16 47 9,847 350,000 (340,153) 2.8%
Capital Expense Water Fund 40 446,301 3,458,138 6,115,000 (2,656,862) 56.6%
Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50 210 506,940 1,295,000 (788,060) 39.1%
Capital Outlay - Vehicle - 109,422 131,900 (22,478) 83.0%
Developer Reimbursements - - 750,000 (750,000) -
TOTAL Capital Expenses 446,558 4,500,639 10,571,900 (6,071,261) 42.6%
Total Fund & General Expenses
General & Admin. Expense 55,040 938,004 805,015 132,989 116.5%
Personnel Expenses 156,762 1,418,925 2,365,640 (946,715) 60.0%
Parks/Grounds Expense - Fund 15 71,823 297,527 427,500 (129,973) 69.6%
MRRC Expense - Fund 16 23,330 213,710 390,000 (176,290) 54.8%
Water Expense - Fund 40 25,408 200,858 508,010 (307,152) 39.5%
Sewer Expense - Fund 50 29,823 516,301 696,300 (179,999) 74.1%
General Operating Expenses 105,438 801,129 1,063,733 (262,604) 75.3%
TABOR Emergency Reserve 3% - - 8,610 (8,610) -
TOTAL Total Fund & General Expenses 467,623 4,386,453 6,264,808 (1,878,355) 70.0%
TOTAL EXPENSES 914,181 8,887,092 16,836,708 (7,949,616) 52.8%
EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (19,950) (2,276,993) (7,189,448) 4,912,455
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Tap Fees Received 1,018,000 2,865,000 3,500,000 (635,000) 81.9%
Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (97,000)  (1,341,000) (3,500,000) 2,159,000 38.3%
Transfer from (to) MRMD - - 750,000 (750,000) -
Transfer from (to) Other Funds (47,799) 1,448,494 (572,048) 2,020,542 -253.2%
Emergency Reserve (5%) 47,083 (1,085,871) 565,000  (1,650,871) -192.2%
Emergency Reserve ($2) - Sewer 6,132 (313,873) 72,048 (385,921) -435.6%
Rate Stabilization Reserve (5,417) (48,750) (65,000) 16,250 75.0%
TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) 921,000 1,524,000 750,000 774,000 203.2%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $901,050 ($752,993) ($6,439,448) $5,686,455
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 10,022,479
ENDING FUND BALANCE $9,269,486
Operating Capital Fund Balance 8,153,783
Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 446,268
Sewer Reserve Fund Balance $2 18,185
Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 651,250
Total Fund Balance $9,269,486

Management Purposes Only Page 17 Of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance
Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis
General Fund
For the One Month and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Variance
Month of Adopted Over (Under) % of Budget
Sep 2021 YTD Actual 2021 Budget Budget (75.0% YTD)
REVENUES
IGA - Meridian Ranch - $260,000 $260,000 - 100.0%
AT&T Lease 1,553 13,459 18,310 (4,851) 73.5%
Newsletter Contrib. (3,040) - 4,800 (4,800) -
MSMD Office Sub-Lease - 6,882 3,800 3,082 181.1%
Grant Revenue - 240 - 240 -
Interest Income 5 580 - 580 -
Miscellaneous Income - 163 - 163 -
TOTAL REVENUES (1,483) 281,323 286,910 (5,587) 98.1%
EXPENSES
Accounting - 41 1,100 (1,059) 3.7%
Audit - 342 14,500 (14,158) 2.4%
Payroll & HR Services 5,035 36,957 43,800 (6,843) 84.4%
Engineering/Consulting 165 1,261 700 561 180.2%
Legal 5,441 67,269 30,000 37,269 224.2%
Personnel Expenses 2,927 18,120 35,215 (17,095) 51.5%
Copier - Contract Expenses - 1,033 6,605 (5,572) 15.6%
IT/Computer/Software 450 2,059 10,000 (7,941) 20.6%
Rent - Shared 3,663 32,381 75,000 (42,619) 43.2%
Telephone & Internet 866 7,780 8,425 (645) 92.3%
Utilities - Shared 553 4,996 6,695 (1,699) 74.6%
Supplies 19 2,764 3,100 (336) 89.2%
Licenses,Certs & Memberships 350 849 1,000 (151) 84.9%
Subscriptions - 64 700 (636) 9.2%
Bank Charges - 138 500 (362) 27.6%
Public Information - 300 500 (200) 60.0%
Meals & Entertainment 144 1,241 200 1,041 620.6%
Miscellaneous Expense 32 347 1,000 (653) 34.7%
COVID Expense - (105) 3,200 (3,305) -3.3%
Insurance 345 3,307 3,500 (193) 94.5%
Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 1,024 3,048 3,000 48 101.6%
TABOR Emergency Reserve 3% - - 8,610 (8,610) -
TOTAL EXPENSES 21,014 184,193 257,350 (73,157) 71.6%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($22,497) $97,130 $29,560 $67,570
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 67,344
ENDING FUND BALANCE $164,474

Management Purposes Only Page 18 of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance
Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis
Parks & Grounds Fund
For the One Month and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Variance
Over
Month of Adopted (Under) % of Budget
Sep 2021 YTD Actual 2021 Budget Budget (75.0% YTD)
REVENUES
Parks & Grounds Fees $77,912  $689,234  $927,150  ($237,916) 74.3%
Street Lighting Fees 15,123 133,600 180,025 (46,425) 74.2%
Billing Fees 2,010 12,572 17,850 (5,278) 70.4%
Grant Revenue 11,498 38,156 35,000 3,156 109.0%
Interest Income 15 60 - 60 -
Miscellaneous Income - 1,817 - 1,817 -
TOTAL REVENUES 106,557 875,439 1,160,025 (284,586) 75.5%
EXPENSES
General & Admin. Expense
Accounting - 154 4,550 (4,396) 3.4%
Customer Billing Services 1,936 16,554 11,040 5,514 149.9%
Engineering/Consulting 625 4,779 3,500 1,279 136.6%
Legal - 117 2,500 (2,383) 4.7%
Personnel Expenses 12,663 118,735 246,875 (128,140) 48.1%
General Operations - Admin 72 8,702 9,900 (1,198) 87.9%
TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 15,296 149,042 278,365 (129,323) 53.5%
Operating Expense
Landscape Repair & Maint. 70,341 288,186 364,500 (76,314) 79.1%
Hardscape Repair & Maint. - 35 21,000 (20,965) 0.2%
Park Maint. 1,384 8,656 27,000 (18,344) 32.1%
Pond Maint. 98 651 15,000 (14,349) 4.3%
Utilities 13,675 136,780 171,350 (34,570) 79.8%
Insurance 1,347 12,812 12,360 452 103.7%
Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 878 6,456 15,000 (8,544) 43.0%
TOTAL Operating Expense 87,724 453,575 626,210 (172,635) 72.4%
Capital Outlay - Vehicle - 48,329 58,900 (10,571) 82.1%
TOTAL EXPENSES 103,020 650,945 963,475 (312,530) 67.6%
EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 3,538 224,494 196,550 27,944
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer from (to) Other Funds
Transfer from (to) Capital (25,000) (225,000) (300,000) 75,000 75.0%
TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds (25,000) (225,000) (300,000) 75,000 75.0%
TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (25,000) (225,000) (300,000) 75,000 75.0%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($21,462) ($506) ($103,450) $102,944
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 438,423
ENDING FUND BALANCE $437,917
Operating Capital Fund Balance 282,913
Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 145,004
Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 10,000
Total Fund Balance $437,917

Management Purposes Only

Page 19 of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance
Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis
Recreation Center Fund
For the One Month and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Variance
Month of Adopted  Over (Under) % of Budget
Sep 2021 YTD Actual 2021 Budget Budget (75.0% YTD)
REVENUES
Recreation Center Service Fees $151,670  $1,338,289  $1,804,450  ($466,161) 74.2%
Fee Based Programming 10,006 97,695 60,000 37,695 162.8%
MRRC Concession Sales 615 1,857 1,000 857 185.7%
Falcon Freedom Days Revenue - 8,750 20,000 (11,250) 43.8%
Billing Fees 2,010 12,572 17,850 (5,278) 70.4%
Advertising Fees 3,640 4,130 3,800 330 108.7%
Grant Revenue - 32 - 32 -
Interest Income 25 39 - 39 -
Miscellaneous Income - 3,406 - 3,406 -
TOTAL REVENUES 167,966 1,466,769 1,907,100 (440,331) 76.9%
EXPENSES
General & Admin. Expense
Accounting - 263 6,700 (6,437) 3.9%
Customer Billing Services 3,291 28,142 18,600 9,542 151.3%
Engineering/Consulting 1,064 9,473 5,000 4,473 189.5%
Legal - - 5,000 (5,000) -
Personnel Expenses 81,234 718,488 970,200 (251,712) 74.1%
General Operations - Admin 4,436 46,142 48,350 (2,208) 95.4%
TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 90,025 802,507 1,053,850 (251,343) 76.2%
Operating Expense
Programming Supplies 4,883 45,732 63,500 (17,768) 72.0%
Building Maint. 6,964 74,273 161,450 (87,177) 46.0%
Grounds Maint. 1,958 1,958 2,000 (43) 97.9%
Pool Maint. 1,310 22,796 54,050 (31,254) 42.2%
MRRC Security 950 3,031 4,000 (969) 75.8%
Exercise Equip. & Furn.-Replace 4,361 32,193 40,000 (7,807) 80.5%
MR Community Events 2,904 6,181 15,000 (8,819) 41.2%
Falcon Freedom Days Expenses - 27,547 50,000 (22,453) 55.1%
Utilities 14,314 138,686 182,100 (43,414) 76.2%
Insurance 2,226 21,323 18,823 2,500 113.3%
Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 102 938 5,500 (4,562) 17.1%
TOTAL Operating Expense 39,972 374,657 596,423 (221,766) 62.8%
Capital Outlay - Vehicle - 10,076 - 10,076 -
TOTAL EXPENSES 129,997 1,187,240 1,650,273 (463,033) 71.9%
EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 37,969 279,530 256,827 22,703
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer from (to) Other Funds
Transfer from (to) Capital (16,667) (150,000) (200,000) 50,000 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (4,167) (37,500) (50,000) 12,500 75.0%
TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds (20,833) (187,500) (250,000) 62,500 75.0%
Emergency Reserves
Emergency Reserve (5%) 4,167 37,500 50,000 (12,500) 75.0%
TOTAL Emergency Reserves 4,167 37,500 50,000 (12,500) 75.0%
TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (16,667) (150,000) (200,000) 50,000 75.0%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $21,302 $129,530 $56,827 $72,703
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 389,567
ENDING FUND BALANCE $519,097
Operating Capital Fund Balance 362,019
Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 147,078
Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 10,000
Total Fund Balance $519,097

Management Purposes Only Page 20 Of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance
Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis
Capital Fund
For the One Month and Eight Months Ended September 30, 2021

Variance
Month of Adopted 2021 Over (Under) % of Budget
Sep 2021 YTD Actual Budget Budget (75.0% YTD)
REVENUES
IGA Shared Water Cost Reimb. - $142 - $142 -
IGA Shared Sewer Cost Reimb. - 72,000 - 72,000 -
Interest Income 73 1,835 - 1,835 -
TOTAL REVENUES 73 73,977 - 73,977 -
EXPENSES
General & Admin. Expense
Legal - - 10,000 (10,000) -
TOTAL General & Admin. Expense - - 10,000 (10,000) -
Capital Expense - Other
Build-Out CIP & Funding Plan - 116,292 100,000 16,292 116.3%
District Office Yard & Shop - - 1,300,000  (1,300,000) -
Imp/Mtc Drainage Channels/Ponds - - 230,000 (230,000) -
TOTAL Capital Expense - Other - 116,292 1,630,000 (1,513,708) 7.1%
Capital Expense P&G Fund 15
3rd Const & Acgq-Winding Walk - 300,000 300,000 - 100.0%
TOTAL Capital Expense P&G Fund 15 - 300,000 300,000 - 100.0%
Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16
MRRC Expansion - - 50,000 (50,000) -
MRRC #2 Rainbow Bridge Dr. - - 100,000 (100,000) -
Lobby Remodel 47 9,847 200,000 (190,153) 4.9%
TOTAL Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16 9,800 9,800 350,000 (340,153) 2.8%
Capital Expense Water Fund 40
Guthrie Well Area B & Line Exp - 113 50,000 (49,888) 0.2%
Expand Filter Plant & Bldg 4,483 8,958 830,000 (821,042) 1.1%
Purchase WHMD 2.0 MG Water Tank - - 370,000 (370,000) -
ACGC Weir Improvements - - 15,000 (15,000) -
Well Site No. 5,7 &8 441,818 3,019,884 4,400,000  (1,380,116) 68.6%
Eastonville Raw Water Pipeline - 403,896 450,000 (46,104) 89.8%
Water Rights - 25,288 - 25,288 -
TOTAL Capital Expense Water Fund 40 446,301 3,458,138 6,115,000 (2,656,862) 56.6%
Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50
Lift Station 2020 Improvements - - 30,000 (30,000) -
Woodmen Hills Sewer Bypass 210 506,940 710,000 (203,060) 71.4%
WH Sewer Bypass Phase 2 & 3 - - 500,000 (500,000) -
Mid-Point Injection Station - - 20,000 (20,000) -
2021 Lift Station Improvements - - 35,000 (35,000) -
TOTAL Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50 210 506,940 1,295,000 (788,060) 39.1%
Developer Reimbursements - - 750,000 (750,000) -
TOTAL EXPENSES 446,558 4,391,217 10,450,000 (6,058,783) 42.0%
EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (446,484) (4,317,240) (10,450,000) 6,132,760
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer from (to) Other Funds
Transfer from (to) MRMD - - 750,000 (750,000) -
Transfer from (to) P&G Fund 25,000 225,000 300,000 (75,000) 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Rec Fund 16,667 150,000 200,000 (50,000) 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Capital - 1,877,536 - 1,877,536 -
Transfer from (to) Water Fund 166,667 1,500,000 2,000,000 (500,000) 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Sewer Fund 65,417 588,750 785,000 (196,250) 75.0%
TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds 273,750 4,341,286 4,035,000 306,286 107.6%
TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) 273,750 4,341,286 4,035,000 306,286 107.6%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($172,734) $24,047 ($6,415,000) $6,439,047
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 4,384,359
ENDING FUND BALANCE $4,408,406

Management Purposes Only

Page 21 of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance
Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis
Water Fund
For the One Month and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Variance
Month of Adopted  Over (Under) % of Budget
Sep 2021 YTD Actual 2021 Budget Budget (75.0% YTD)
REVENUES
Water Service Fees - Res. $302,429  $2,007,764  $2,541,975 ($534,211) 79.0%
Water Service Fees - Comm. 6,982 103,846 142,975 (39,129) 72.6%
Meter Set Fees 35,260 101,895 187,500 (85,605) 54.3%
Irrigation 36,890 191,534 252,550 (61,016) 75.8%
UB - Water Adjustments (57) (1,604) - (1,604) -
IGA Shared Water Cost Reimb. - 110 25,000 (24,890) 0.4%
Billing Fees 2,010 12,572 17,850 (5,278) 70.4%
Development Inspection Fees 34,813 34,813 - 34,813 -
Interest Income 34 52 - 52 -
Miscellaneous Income - 3,991 - 3,991 -
TOTAL REVENUES 418,360 2,454,973 3,167,850 (712,877) 77.5%
EXPENSES
General & Admin. Expense
Accounting - 359 9,000 (8,641) 4.0%
Customer Billing Services 4,453 38,074 45,000 (6,926) 84.6%
Engineering/Consulting 9,978 77,210 50,000 27,210 154.4%
Legal 2,209 17,885 20,000 (2,115) 89.4%
Personnel Expenses 27,768 268,640 576,825 (308,185) 46.6%
General Operations - Admin 843 23,714 25,800 (2,086) 91.9%
TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 45,250 425,883 726,625 (300,742) 58.6%
Operating Expense
Water Operations General 6,642 32,098 112,785 (80,687) 28.5%
Raw Water Operations 4,653 40,986 53,650 (12,664) 76.4%
Water Treatment Operations 3,680 51,999 65,300 (13,301) 79.6%
Water Distribution Operations 10,039 61,642 229,775 (168,133) 26.8%
Non-Potable Water Operations 394 14,132 46,500 (32,368) 30.4%
Utilities 63,571 406,390 499,700 (93,310) 81.3%
Insurance 3,044 29,497 65,000 (35,503) 45.4%
Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 822 6,885 15,000 (8,115) 45.9%
TOTAL Operating Expense 92,845 643,630 1,087,710 (444,080) 59.2%
Capital Outlay - Vehicle - 40,942 36,500 4,442 112.2%
TOTAL EXPENSES 138,095 1,110,455 1,850,835 (740,380) 60.0%
EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 280,265 1,344,517 1,317,015 27,502

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Tap Fees Received 509,000 1,432,500 1,800,000 (367,500) 79.6%
Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (48,500) (670,500)  (1,800,000) 1,129,500 37.3%
Transfer from (to) Capital (166,667)  (1,500,000)  (2,000,000) 500,000 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (24,167) (217,500) (290,000) 72,500 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Rate Stabil 3,333 30,000 40,000 (10,000) 75.0%
TOTAL Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Fund 273,000 (925,500) (2,250,000) 1,324,500 41.1%
Emergency Reserves
Emergency Reserve (5%) 24,167 (617,817) 290,000 (907,817) -213.0%
Rate Stabilization Reserve (3,333) (30,000) (40,000) 10,000 75.0%
TOTAL Emergency Reserves 20,833 (647,817) 250,000 (897,817)
TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) 293,833 (1,573,317) (2,000,000) 426,683 78.7%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $574,098 ($228,800) ($682,985) $454,185
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 2,413,336
ENDING FUND BALANCE $2,184,536
Operating Capital Fund Balance 1,776,601
Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 97,936
Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 310,000
Total Fund Balance $2,184,536

Management Purposes Only Page 22 Of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance
Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis
Sewer Fund
For the One Month and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

Variance Over
Month of Adopted (Under) % of Budget
Sep 2021 YTD Actual 2021 Budget Budget (75.0% YTD)

REVENUES
Sewer Fees - Res. $144,117 $1,272,559 $1,718,350 ($445,791) 74.1%
Sewer Fees - Comm. 2,590 21,457 35,000 (13,543) 61.3%
Sterling Ranch Revenue - 36,585 1,251,175 (1,214,590) 2.9%
IGA Shared Sewer Cost Reimb. - 18,787 103,000 (84,213) 18.2%
Billing Fees 2,010 12,572 17,850 (5,278) 70.4%
Development Inspection Fees 34,813 34,813 - 34,813 -
Interest Income 19,226 56,511 - 56,511 -
Miscellaneous Income - 4,334 - 4,334 -
TOTAL REVENUES 202,756 1,457,617 3,125,375 (1,667,758) 46.6%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting - 255 9,000 (8,745) 2.8%
Customer Billing Services 3,227 27,590 42,000 (14,410) 65.7%
Engineering/Consulting 1,033 68,417 75,000 (6,583) 91.2%
Legal 3,182 384,966 170,000 214,966 226.5%
Personnel Expenses 32,170 294,942 536,525 (241,583) 55.0%
General Operations - Admin 1,642 25,491 27,050 (1,559) 94.2%
TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 41,254 801,661 859,575 (57,914) 93.3%
Operating Expense
Sewer Operations 10,271 318,326 451,900 (133,574) 70.4%
Lift Station Operations 12,283 92,135 195,100 (102,965) 47.2%
Lift Station Operations-Shared 7,268 105,840 49,300 56,540 214.7%
Utilities 332 3,210 5,400 (2,190) 59.4%
Insurance 2,163 20,714 50,000 (29,286) 41.4%
Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 1,594 11,080 17,000 (5,920) 65.2%
TOTAL Operating Expense 33,912 551,305 768,700 (217,395) 71.7%
Capital Outlay - Vehicle - 10,076 36,500 (26,424) 27.6%
TOTAL EXPENSES 75,166 1,363,042 1,664,775 (301,733) 81.9%
EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 127,591 94,575 1,460,600 (1,366,025)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Tap Fees Received 509,000 1,432,500 1,700,000 (267,500) 84.3%
Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (48,500) (670,500)  (1,700,000) 1,029,500 39.4%
Transfer from (to) Capital (65,417) (588,750) (785,000) 196,250 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (18,750) (168,750) (225,000) 56,250 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Emer. ($2) (6,132) (54,042) (72,048) 18,006 75.0%
Transfer from (to) Rate Stabil 2,083 18,750 25,000 (6,250) 75.0%
TOTAL Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Fund 372,285 (30,792) (1,057,048) 1,026,256 2.9%
Emergency Reserves
Emergency Reserve (5%) 18,750 (505,554) 225,000 (730,554) -224.7%
Emergency Reserve ($2) - Sewer 6,132 (313,873) 72,048 (385,921) -435.6%
Rate Stabilization Reserve (2,083) (18,750) (25,000) 6,250 75.0%
TOTAL Emergency Reserves 22,799 (838,177) 272,048 (1,110,225)
TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) 395,083 (868,969) (785,000) (83,969) 110.7%
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $522,674 ($774,394) $675,600  ($1,449,994)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 2,329,450
ENDING FUND BALANCE $1,555,056
Operating Capital Fund Balance 1,159,371
Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 56,250
Sewer Reserve Fund Balance $2 18,185
Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 321,250
Total Fund Balance $1,555,056

Management Purposes Only Page 23 Of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

2021 Tap Report

Tap
Receipt Meter Amt
Counts Date No. Service Address Filing # Lot # Builder Tap Amt Paid Paid Check No. Monthly Totals
161, 10/1/2021 3403 9844 Meridian Hills Trail Stonebridge 4 125 Campbell Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 EPymnt: P21093002-2838149
162 10/5/2021 3404 10538 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 13 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
163| 10/5/2021 3405 10546 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 14 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
164, 10/5/2021 3406 10554 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 15 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
165/ 10/5/2021 3407 10562 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 16 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
166, 10/5/2021 3408 10570 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 17 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
167| 10/5/2021 3409 10578 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 18 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
168 10/5/2021 3410 10586 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 19 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
169, 10/5/2021 3411 10555 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 75 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
170 10/5/2021 3412 10547 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 76 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
171, 10/5/2021 3413 10539 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 77 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
172 10/5/2021 3414 10531 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 78 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
173, 10/5/2021 3415 13129 Crooked Hill Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 99 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
174| 10/5/2021 3416 13117 Crooked Hill Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 100 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
175 10/5/2021 3417 13105 Crooked Hill Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 101 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
176/ 10/5/2021 3418 13106 Crooked Hill Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 102 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
177, 10/5/2021 3419 13118 Crooked Hill Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 103 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
178/ 10/5/2021 3420 13130 Crooked Hill Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 104 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
179, 10/5/2021 3421 13142 Crooked Hill Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 105 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #10000-00059492
180/ 10/5/2021 3422 11150 Palmer Peak PI The Estates at Rolling Hills Ranch 1 1 Majestic Custom Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #1531 & #1532
181| 10/5/2021 3423 11180 Palmer Peak PI The Estates at Rolling Hills Ranch 1 2 Majestic Custom Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #1540 & #1541
182 10/12/2021 3424 10758 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 230 ZRH Construction $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire/#211012229061
183 10/12/2021 3425 10759 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 267 ZRH Construction $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire/#211012207972
184, 10/13/2021 3426 10766 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 231 ZRH Construction $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #115465
185, 10/13/2021 3427 10767 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 266 ZRH Construction $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #115466
186, 10/18/2021 3428 11270 Palmer Peak PI The Estates at Rolling Hills Ranch 1 5 Majestic Custom Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Cks #1564 & 1565
187 10/18/2021 3429 11300 Palmer Peak PI The Estates at Rolling Hills Ranch 1 6 Majestic Custom Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Cks #1574 & 1575
188 10/19/2021 3430 11390 Palmer Peak PI The Estates at Rolling Hills Ranch 1 9 Majestic Custom Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Cks #1014 & 1015
189 10/20/2021 3431 10702 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 223 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
190 10/20/2021 3432 10710 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 224 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
191, 10/20/2021 3433 10718 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 225 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
192 10/20/2021 3434 10726 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 226 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
193 10/20/2021 3435 10734 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 227 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
194 10/20/2021 3436 10742 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 228 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
195, 10/20/2021 3437 10750 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 229 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
196/ 10/20/2021 3438 10751 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 268 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
197, 10/20/2021 3439 10743 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 269 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
198 10/20/2021 3440 10735 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 270 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
199, 10/20/2021 3441 10727 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 271 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
200| 10/20/2021 3442 10719 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 272 Tralon Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Ck #10000-00059724
201 10/27/2021 3443 12709 Granite Ridge Dr Stonebridge 4 32 Century Land Holdings $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #00480629
202| 10/27/2021 3444 9933 Meridian Hills Tr Stonebridge 4 142 Covington Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire/#211027168828 42

Page 24 of 170




Meridian Service Metropolitan District
2021 Tap and Meter Set Additional Fees Collected

(Initial) Meter Set  Additional Additional Meter
Tap Tap Tap Fee Paid Fee Paid Tap Fees Due Set Fee Due (Per Total Additional
Purchase Receipt At Time of At Time of (Per Current Current Fee Amount Collected
Date No. Service Address Builder Purchase  Purchase Fee Schedule) Schedule) Date Paid  Prior to Meter Set

2/27/2020 2953 9615 Vistas Park Dr David Weekley Homes $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 6/7/2021 $ 1,025.00

5/18/2018 2481 9802 Emerald Dr Campbell Homes $15,000.00 $ 540.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 85.00 6/9/2021 $ 3,085.00

5/21/2018 2488 13679 Evening Sky Dr David Weekley Homes $15,000.00 $ 540.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 85.00 6/22/2021 $ 3,085.00

8/30/2018 2577 12979 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes $15,000.00 $ 540.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 85.00 6/25/2021 $ 3,085.00

9/13/2019 2801 10005 Golf Crest Dr Covington Homes $16,000.00 $ 575.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 50.00 6/29/2021 $ 2,050.00

6/12/2020 3075 9803 Fairway Glen Dr Campbell Homes $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 6/30/2021 $ 1,025.00 | $13,355.00 June 2021

2/15/2019 2701 9853 Emerald Vistas Dr Campbell Homes $16,000.00 $ 575.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 50.00 7/21/2021 $ 2,050.00

5/21/2018 2489 13667 Evening Sky Dr David Weekley Homes $15,000.00 $ 540.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 85.00 7/26/2021 $ 3,085.00 $5,135.00 July 2021

2/27/2020 2949 9647 Vistas Park Dr David Weekley Homes $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 8/16/2021 $ 1,025.00

11/9/2018 2614 10017 Golf Crest Dr Covington Homes $17,000.00 $ 540.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 85.00 8/24/2021 $ 3,085.00 | $4110.00 August 2021

5/21/2015 2490 13655 Evening Sky Dr David Weekley Homes $15,000.00 $ 540.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 85.00 9/13/2021 $ 3,085.00

8/27/2020 3136 12892 Stone Valley Dr Century Communities $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 9/21/2021 $ 1,025.00

8/27/2020 3137 12900 Stone Valley Dr Century Communities $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 9/21/2021 $ 1,025.00

8/27/2020 3139 12916 Stone Valley Dr Century Communities $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 9/21/2021 $ 1,025.00

8/27/2020 3138 12908 Stone Valley Dr Century Communities $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 9/21/2021 $ 1,025.00

8/27/2020 3140 12924 Stone Valley Dr Century Communities $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 9/21/2021 $ 1,025.00

8/27/2020 3141 12932 Stone Valley Dr Century Communities $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 9/21/2021 $ 1,025.00

8/27/2020 3142 13118 Stoney Meadows Way Century Communities $17,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 9/21/2021 $ 1,025.00 | $10,260.00 Sept 2021

2/15/2019 2695 12948 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes $16,000.00 $ 575.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 50.00 10/19/2021 $ 2,050.00

5/17/2019 2732 9793 Emerald Vista Dr Campbell Homes $16,000.00 $ 575.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 50.00 10/19/2021 $ 2,050.00

11/9/2018 2613 13178 Stone Peaks Way Covington Homes $15,000.00 $ 540.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 85.00 10/20/2021 $ 3,085.00 | $7,185.00 Oct 2021
2021 Total $ 40,045.00

Page 25 of 170



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Vendor Payment Register Report - Summary
Finance Committee - Interim Payments

October 20, 2021

Date Payment Type Vendor Amount

10/20/2021 Vendor Direct ADT SECURITY SERVICES, INC. $ 129.39
10/20/2021 ePayment All Rental Center Inc $ 837.70
10/20/2021 ePayment Applied Ingenuity, LLC $ 17,660.80
10/20/2021 Check Aqueous Solution Inc. $ 1,050.00
10/20/2021 Check Badger Meter $ 162.78
10/20/2021 ePayment BiggsKofford $ 19,090.00
10/20/2021 ePayment Browns Hill Engineering & Controls, LLC $ 31,976.20
10/20/2021 Check Club Automation, LLC $ 1,838.86
10/20/2021 Check Colorado Analytical Lab $ 145.00
10/20/2021 Check Colorado State Treasurer $ 1,374.59
10/20/2021 Vendor Direct Comcast - MRRC $ 413.74
10/20/2021 Vendor Direct Comcast - Office $ 309.30
10/20/2021 ePayment Core & Main LP $ 3,093.40
10/20/2021 Check CSDPL-Colo Special Districts Prop & Liab $ 39.00
10/20/2021 Check David Clegg $ 150.00
10/20/2021 ePayment DBC Irrigation Supply $ 155.07
10/20/2021 Check El Paso County Public Health $ 210.00
10/20/2021 Check Engineered Air $ 1,086.60
10/20/2021 Check Front Range Winwater $ 171.37
10/20/2021 Check Grainger $ 402.68
10/20/2021 Check HelloSpoke $ 738.96
10/20/2021 Check Henley's Key Service, Inc. $ 45.00
10/20/2021 Check Hobby Lobby $ 162.96
10/20/2021 Check Hydro Resources Rocky Mtn. Inc. $ 356,671.40
10/20/2021 Check Mug-A-Bug Pest Control $ 62.00
10/20/2021 Check MVEA $ 66,995.71
10/20/2021 Vendor Direct O'Reilly Automotive $ 15.98
10/20/2021 Check Ross Electric-Enterprise, Inc. $ 9,295.64
10/20/2021 Check Shops at Meridian Ranch, LLC $ 3,831.60
10/20/2021 Check Special District Association of Colorado $ 350.00
10/20/2021 Check Thatcher Company, Inc $ 10,850.19
10/20/2021 ePayment Trench Plate Rental Co $ 1,205.08
10/20/2021 Vendor Direct UniFirst First Aid & Safety $ 1,430.00
10/20/2021 Check Utility Notification Center of Colorado $ 462.00
10/20/2021 Vendor Direct Verizon Wireless $ 249.76
10/20/2021 Vendor Direct Waste Management of Colorado Springs $ 482.70
10/20/2021 Check Water Technology Group $ 1,163.00
10/20/2021 Check Weisburg Landscape Maintenance $ 27,300.00
10/20/2021 Check WHMD Woodmen Hills Metropolitan District $ 11,855.19
Total Payments 39 Total Amount of Payments $ 573,463.65

Page 26 of 170



System: 10/22/2021 8:29:16 AM

* Voided Checks

Check Number Vendor ID
02303 FENTON

02304 GABRIELSKI
02305 SAUER

02306 REORDA

02307 GESSNER

02308 BIGGS KOFFORD
02309 CRS

Total Checks: 7

Vendor Check Name

Check Date

Checkbook ID

Audit Trail Code

Meridian Ranch Metropolitan Di Page: 1
User Date: 10/22/2021 VENDOR CHECK REGISTER REPORT User ID: nbaile
Payables Management
Ranges: From: To: From: To:
Check Number 02303 02309 Check Date First Last
Vendor 1D First Last Checkbook ID First Last
Vendor Name  First Last
Sorted By: Check Number

Michael J Fenton
MILTON B. GABRIELSKI
Thomas G. Sauer
Wayne Reorda
William Gessner
Biggs Kofford

CRS of Colorado

11/3/2021
117372021
11/3/2021
117372021
11/3/2021
11/3/2021
11/3/2021

WE CHECKING
WE CHECKING
WE CHECKING
WE CHECKING
WE CHECKING
WE CHECKING
WEF CHECKING

PMCHK00000262
PMCHK00000262
PMCHK00000262
PMCHK00000262
PMCHK00000262
PMCHK00000263
PMCHK00000263

§92.

$92.
$7,000.
$1,838.

Total Amount of Checks:

Page 27 of 170




RESOLUTION NO. MSMD 21-05 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD)
CERTIFYING DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS

WHEREAS, MSMD provides water and sewer services to customers located
within its boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has assessed service fees to its customers to
partially cover the cost of operating MSMD and providing said services; and

WHEREAS, certain customers are delinquent in paying MSMD for said services;
and

WHEREAS, said delinquent customers were notified via certified mail of today’s
public meeting to review the certification to the County and were invited to attend said
meeting; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-1101(1)(e), the Board of Directors, after a
public hearing on said delinquencies, may notice the County Treasurer of such
delinquent accounts and request that the County Treasurer collect said accounts in the
same manner as taxes are authorized to be collected and paid over pursuant to Section
39-10-107, C.R.S.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the
Meridian Service Metropolitan District hereby resolves:

1. The Board of Directors hereby certifies to the County Treasurer the list of
delinquent accounts attached hereto as Exhibit A for collection (said exhibit to be
updated on November 13, 2021 to reflect any payments made on delinquent
accounts through November 11, 2021). Said delinquent balances are no less
than $150.00 and are at least six months old.

2. The Board of Directors hereby authorizes the County Treasurer to charge and
retain a penalty at the rate of 30%, or $30.00, whichever is greater, on the
delinquent sum due and owing to defray the costs of collection, pursuant to
Section 32-1-1101(1)(e).

3. The Board of Directors hereby imposes an administrative fee of $75.00 per
account being certified to offset the costs associated with certification of
delinquent accounts.

4. Said delinquent fees for service charges will be collected by the El Paso County
Treasurer and paid over to MSMD by the Treasurer in the same manner as taxes
are authorized to be collected and paid over pursuant to Section 39-10-107,
C.R.S.

DATED this 3rd day of November 2021.
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

By: , Chairman

ATTEST:

, Secretary

Page 28 of 170



El Paso County
MSMD Certification MSMD Certification
El Paso County Schedule Number Acct # Property Description Bill Name Service Address Sub Total | Admin Fee Total

1 4219306017| 36590|Lot 669 Meridian Ranch Filing #1 ROSE COOLEY 12362 Grand Teton Dr $1,914.39 $75.00 $1,989.39
2 4219404009| 36917|Lot 67 Meridian Ranch Filing #7 AMANDA BALLARD 10566 Mt Emerald Dr $343.72 $75.00 $418.72
3 4219301026| 37126|Lot 688 Meridian Ranch Filing #1 DAVID ACEVES 10866 Glen Canyon Dr $1,025.59 $75.00 $1,100.59
4 4229407018| 38580|Lot 152 The Vistas Filing #1 at Meridian Ranch PEGGY WINTERS 9864 Morning Vista D $856.89 $75.00 $931.89
5 4219411006| 38646]|Lot 55 Meridian Ranch Filing #8 EMMANUEL AMAY 12687 Mt Antero Dr $659.24 $75.00 $734.24
6 4219412009| 38831|Lot 47 Meridian Ranch Filing #9 EDWARD/ELIZABETH STARSKI _ [12614 Pyramid Peak Dr $1,487.44 $75.00 $1,562.44
7 4229309046| 40314|Lot 136 Windingwalk Filing #1 @ Meridian Ranch BRAYAN/FLOR PENA 9765 Windingpark Dr $1,005.44 $75.00 $1,080.44
8 4230108002| 40420]|Lot 97 Meridian Ranch Filing #2 STEVEN CHRISTENSEN 10507 Mt Evans Dr $221.23 $75.00 $296.23
9 4229310010| 40455]|Lot 148 Windingwalk Filing #1 @ Meridian Ranch ASUKA PAYTON 9563 Fairway Glen Dr $676.23 $75.00 $751.23

Page 29 of 170




MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

2022 PROPOSED BUDGET
WITH 2020 ACTUAL, 2021 ADOPTED, YTD 2021 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Interest
Miscellaneous
Subdistrict - IGA

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Audit
Accounting and management
County treasurer fees
Director fees
Dues and memberships
Election
Insurance
Legal
Miscellaneous
Payroll taxes
IGA expense - MSMD General Fund
IGA expense - MSMD Subdistrict
3% Tabor reserve

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfer to other funds

Total other financing uses
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

2020 2021 YTD Actual 2021 2022
Actual Adopted Budget 8/31/2021 Estimated Proposed
Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Cash Basis Modified Accrual Modified Accrual
402,841 $ 432,234 429,637 $ 432,234 $ 538,367
43,789 38,647 32,539 38,647 46,378
4,795 5,000 410 615 500

- - 19 20 -

- 8,776 3,284 8,677 -
451,425 484,657 465,889 480,193 585,245

11,276 10,000 3,197 10,000 10,000
18,968 30,000 14,960 30,000 30,000
6,046 6,484 6,447 6,484 8,076
6,900 12,000 4,406 12,000 12,000
552 1,500 598 600 1,500
2,238 - 92 100 2,500
4,652 5,000 4,702 5,000 5,000
5,358 28,000 162 1,000 5,000
1,231 1,000 737 1,000 1,000

528 918 222 918 918
220,000 260,000 260,000 260,000 300,000

- 8,776 3,824 8,677 -

- 14,600 - - 17,600
277,749 378,278 299,347 335,779 393,594
173,676 106,379 166,542 144,414 191,651
(18,307) - - - -
(18,307) - - - -
155,369 106,379 166,542 144,414 191,651
538,793 686,735 694,748 694,162 838,576
694,162 $ 793,114 861,290 $ 838,576 $ 1,030,227

DRAFT - FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES
Page 1

Page 30 of 170



REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Facilities fees transferred from MSMD
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
County treasurer fees
Bond interest (Subordinate)
Loan interest (2013 $33.5 M)
Loan principal (2013 $33.5M)
Loan interest (2014 $3.5 M)
Loan principal (2014 $3.5M)
Loan interest (2018 $24M)
Loan principal (2018 $24M)
Paying agent fees
Transfer to Meridian Service MD
Miscellaneous

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer from other funds
Total other financing sources
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

2022 PROPOSED BUDGET
WITH 2020 ACTUAL, 2021 ADOPTED, YTD 2021 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED

DEBT FUND

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

2020 2021 YTD Actual 2021 2022
Actual Adopted Budget 8/31/2021 Estimated Proposed

Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Cash Basis Modified Accrual Modified Accrual
$ 1,611,218 $ 1,728,777 1,718,392 $ 1,728,777 $ 2,153,271
175,157 154,589 130,156 154,589 185,510
6,188,000 3,600,000 1,278,000 1,917,000 4,750,000
10,376 10,000 1,276 1,500 1,500

- - 50,000 50,000 -
7,984,751 5,493,366 3,177,824 3,851,866 7,090,281
24,182 25,932 25,786 25,932 32,299
350,000 350,000 - 350,000 350,000
866,942 837,450 417,578 837,450 807,036
960,000 990,000 - 990,000 1,060,000
98,831 95,617 47,678 95,617 92,243
100,000 105,000 - 105,000 110,000
860,244 851,170 424,419 851,170 840,281
250,000 300,000 - 300,000 350,000
200 1,000 615 1,000 1,000
4,184,000 750,000 - 750,000 750,000
736 1,000 - 1,000 1,000
7,695,135 4,307,169 916,076 4,307,169 4,393,859
289,616 1,186,197 2,261,748 (455,303) 2,696,422

18,307 - - - -

18,307 - - - -
307,923 1,186,197 2,261,748 (455,303) 2,696,422
4,934,788 3,835,848 5,144,588 5,242,711 4,787,408
$ 5,242,711 $ 5,022,045 7,406,336 $ 4,787,408 $ 7,483,830

DRAFT - FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES

Page 2

Page 31 of 170



REVENUES
Conservation trust entitlements

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Transfer to Meridian Service MD

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
2022 PROPOSED BUDGET

WITH 2020 ACTUAL, 2021 ADOPTED, YTD 2021 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

2020 2021 YTD Actual 2021 2022
Actual Adopted Budget 8/31/2021 Estimated Proposed
Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Cash Basis Modified Accrual Modified Accrual
$ 30,300 $ 35,000 $ 26,658 $ 51,000 $ 55,000
30,300 35,000 26,658 51,000 55,000
30,300 35,000 26,658 51,000 55,000
30,300 35,000 26,658 51,000 55,000
- $ - - - -
$ - $ - $ - $ -
DRAFT- FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES Page 3

Page 32 of 170



MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

Received Nov 2014 Sept 2015 Nov 2016 Nov 2017 Sept 2018 Sept 2019 Sept 2020 Sept 2021
Final 2015 Final 2016 Final 2017 Final 2018 Final 2019 Final 2020 Final 2021 Prelim 2022

ASSESSED VALUATION - EL PASO :
Residential $ 29,354,820 | $ 35,099,160 | $ 39,286,830 43,348,000 | $ 49,870,830 | $ 63,510,450 | $ 69,150,580 $ 86,628,500 |
Commercial 373,020 351,860 824,080 1,456,140 1,581,120 1,310,270 1,715,800 2,052,820 |
Agricultural - - - - - - ]
Vacant Land 3,755,480 4,291,050 4,965,770 5,926,100 8,305,730 7,090,960 6,316,810 7,614,100 |

State Assessed 813,080 740,210 1,085,120 1,221,980 1,113,520 1,341,680 1,404,730 1,589,440

Certified Assessed Value $ 34,296,400 | $ 40,482,280 | $ 46,161,800 51,952,220 | $ 60,871,200 | $ 73,253,360 | $ 78,587,920 $ 97,884,860
MILL LEVY H
GENERAL FUND 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500 |

DEBT SERVICE FUND 20.000 20.000 20.000 21.998 21.998 21.998 21.998 21.998

Total Mill Levy 25.000 25.000 25.000 27.498 27.498 27.498 27.498 27.498
PROPERTY TAXES B
GENERAL FUND $ 171,482 | $ 202,411 | $ 230,809 285,737 | $ 334,792 | $ 402,893 | $ 432,234 % 538,367 |

DEBT SERVICE FUND 685,928 809,646 923,236 1,142,845 1,339,045 1,611,427 1,728,777 2,153,271

Total Property Taxes $ 857,410 | $ 1,012,057 | $ 1,154,045 1,428,582 | $ 1,673,836  $ 2,014,320 | $ 2,161,011 $ 2,691,638
Specific Ownership Taxes $ 6,900 | $ 7,245 | $ 7,607 7,988 | $ 8,387 | $ 13,419 | $ 16,103 $ 19,324 :

12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

$ 82,800 | $ 86,940 | $ 91,287 95,851 | $ 100,644 | $ 161,030 | $ 193,236 $ 231,888
20% 16,560 17,388 18,257 19,170 20,129 32,206 38,647 46,378 :

80% 66,240 69,552 73,030 76,681 80,515 128,824 154,589 185,510

193,236 231,888

Page 33 of 170



REVENUES
Property taxes (10 Mills)
Specific ownership taxes

Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Accounting and management

Audit

Election

Legal

County treasurer fees
Miscellaneous

3% TABOR Reserve

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
2022 Proposed Budget

With 2020 Actuals, 2021 Adopted, YTD 2021 Actuals and 2021 Estimated Amounts
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

2020 2021 YTD Actual 2021 2022
Actual Adopted Budget 8/31/2021 Estimated Proposed
Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Cash Basis Modified Accrual Modified Accrual
$ 25,360 $ 57,147 56,859 $ 57,147 $ 146,387
2,756 2,000 3,836 5,754 5,855
103 50 22 50 50
28,219 59,197 60,717 62,951 152,292
5,694 5,000 2,615 5,000 5,000
941 1,000 798 1,000 1,000
2,130 - - - 2,500
- 1,000 - 1,000 1,000
381 857 851 857 2,196
32 - - - -
- 1,776 - - 4,570
9,178 9,633 4,264 7,857 16,266
19,041 $ 49,564 56,453 55,094 136,026
2,738 22,375 21,779 76,873
$ 21,779 $ 78,828 $ 76,873 $ 212,899

Page 34 of 170



MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND 10

2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET

2021 2022
2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
OPERATING REVENUES
IGA - Meridian Ranch $ 220,000 $ 260,000 $ 260,000 $ 260,000 | i $ 300,000 | jnjic |IN & JC need to discuss
AT&T Lease $ 17,334 $ 18,310 $ 11,906 $ 18,117  jc | $ 18,634  jc | $1552.87/ month
Newsletter Contrib. $ 4,800 $ 4800 | $ - $ - i $ - jc  Moved Revenue to Fund 16 #5116600
MSMD Office Sub-Lease $ 15,415 $ 3,800 $ 6,882 $ 6,880  c | $ - jc |No sub-lease in 2022
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CVRF) $ 15,000 $ - $ 240 $ 240 i | $ - ic
Operating Revenues Total $ 272549 | | $ 286,910 | $ 279,028 | $ 285,237 $ 318,634
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest and Other Income $ 11,363 $ - $ 575 $ 860 jc | $ - Don't typically budget for interest
Miscellaneous $ 135 $ - $ 163 $ 165 | jc | $ 150 | jc
Non-Operating Revenues Total $ 11,498 $ - $ 738 $ 1,025 $ 150
Revenues Total $ 284,047 $ 286,910 $ 279,766 $ 286,262 $ 318,784
EXPENDITURES
General and Administration
Accounting $ 988 $ 1,100 $ 41 $ 100 | jc | $ 1,000 | jc |If needed
Audit $ 29,149 $ 14,500 $ 342 $ 20,000 | c | $ 22,000  jn | Inreviewing other districts cost - this is in line and expected
Payroll and HR Services $ 42,221 $ 43,800 $ 31,922 $ 49000 v | $ 54,000 | cb Paychex increase fees, EE screening, add'l Ees
Election $ 4,622 $ - $ - $ - $ 30,000 | jn
Engineering/Consulting (Allocates to 10,15,40,50) $ 592 $ 700 $ 1,096 $ 1,700 jn  $ 2,000 | jn |incl. Verticloud
Legal $ 74,689 $ 30,000 $ 61,828 $ 95,000 | n | $ 80,000  jn
General and Administration Total $ 152,261 $ 90,100 $ 95,229 $ 165,800 $ 189,000
Personnel Expenses
Director Fees and Payroll Tax $ 6,800 $ 12,000 $ 4,000 $ 8,500 jc | $ 12,000 | jc | $12k is the max we can pay out per year ($2400/BOD)
Employee Salaries and Benefits $ 10,031 $ 23,215 $ 11,193 $ 23215 | 8 | $ 24,375 | 5%
Personnel Expenses Total $ 16,831 $ 35,215 $ 15,193 $ 31,715 $ 36,375 5% COLA

10/15/2021

General Fund 10

Page 35 of 17(1)0f3




MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND 10
2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET
2021 2022
2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Copier - Contract Expenses $ 3,177 $ 6,605 $ 1,033 $ 2500 i | $ 5,000 | jc |Maint & Copies $1,250/qtr
IT/Computer/Software $ 2,665 $ 10,000 $ 1,609 $ 3500 ic | $ 14,200 | jc |Website $900/yr + $8k website revamp, Constant Contact 1200
District Office Rent & Annex $ 42,376 $ 75,000 $ 28,718 $ 55,000 | o | $ 57,750 | 5%  Consider moving Annex cost to other Funds
Telephone & Internet $ 7,917 $ 700 $ 2,973 $ 6,600  c | $ 7,500 e
Telephone & Internet - Shared $ 7,725 $ 3,942 $ 3,950  jc | $ - jc |No longer Bill back shared portion to GTL
Utilities - Office & Annex $ 5,964 $ 6,695 $ 4,443 $ 11,800  c | $ 12,390 | 5% |Consider moving Annex cost to other Funds
Office Supplies (Allocates to 10,15,16,40,50) $ 831 $ 3,100 $ 2,745 $ 4500 | ic | $ 5,500 e
Training, Lic/Certs, Membership $ 247 $ 1,000 $ 499 $ 1,000 jc $ 2,500 | jc add'l Training
Subscriptions $ 766 $ 700 $ 65 $ 250 ic | $ 250
Bank Charges $ 454 $ 500 $ 138 $ 140 | jc | $ - jc | This was for Payroll account
MR Publications $ 31,796 $ - $ - $ - $ - moved to F16
Public Notifications $ 403 $ 500 $ 300 $ 500 i $ 500  jc
Meals & Entertainment $ 95 $ 200 $ 1,097 $ 5200 jn | $ 5,460 | 5% |Incl. Christmas Event
Miscellaneous $ 35 $ 1,000 $ 315 $ 1,000 | ic | $ 1,000 | jc
COVID Expense $ 6,048 $ 3,200 $ 240 $ 240 i $ - ic
General & Admin. Expense Total $ 271,866 $ 242,240 $ 158,539 $ 293,695 $ 337,425
General Operating Expenses
Insurance $ 2,700 $ 3,500 $ 2,962 $ 4415 | ic | $ 5,077 | cb |15% increase per Ins Rep
Vehicle/Equiop Repairs & Maint $ - $ - $ 407 $ 650  jn | $ 700 | jn
Fuel Expense $ 1,239 $ 1,500 $ 1,537 $ 2400 n | $ 2,700 | jn
Mileage Reimbursement $ 214 $ 500 $ 80 $ 500 | i $ 500 | jc
Travel Expense $ - $ 1,000 $ - $ 1,000  jc | $ 1,000 | jc |Trainings
General Operating Expenses $ 4,153 $ 6,500 $ 4,986 $ 8,965 $ 9,977
Emergency Tabor Reserve 3% $ - $ 8,610 $ - $ 8,560 $ 9,562
Fund and General Expenses $ 276,019 $ 257,350 $ 163,525 $ 311,220 $ 356,965
Operating Revenue Less Expenditures $ 8,028 $ 29,560 $ 116,241 $ (24,957) $ (38,180)
Capital Outlay $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Expenditures Total $ 276,019 $ 257,350 $ 163,525 $ 311,220 $ 356,965
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES $ 8,028  $ 29560 | $ 116,241 $ (24,957) $ (38,180)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Dana 26 ~f 170
10/15/2021 General Fund 10 RS A P




MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND 10

2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET

2021 2022
2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Transfer From Other Funds - $ - - $ - $ -
Other Financing Sources (Uses) Total - $ - - $ - $ -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 8,028 $ 29,560 116,241 $ (24,957) $ (38,180)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 59,316 $ 66,441 $ 67,344 $ 42,386
ENDING FUND BALANCE 67,344 $ 96,001 $ 42,386 $ 4,206

10/15/2021

General Fund 10

Page 37 of 17(30f3




MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

PARKS AND GROUNDS FUND 15

2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET

2021 2022
2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
REVENUES
Operating Revenue
Parks & Grounds Fees
Landscape, Parkways, Parks, Open Space and Drain $ 820,736 $ 910,450 $ 600,192 $ 910,450 $ 1,028,031 | Rl | CPI5%
Parks and Open Space Fees - Commercial $ 15,474 $ 16,700 $ 11,130 $ 16,700 $ 17,530 | Rl CPI5%
Parks and Grounds Open Space Fees $ 836,210 $ 927,150 $ 611,322 $ 927,150 $ 1,045,561
Street Lighting Fees
Street Lighting Fees - Residential $ 156,466 | $ 175,850 $ 115,686 | $ 175,850 $ 198,485 | Rl CPI5%
Street Lighting Fees - Commercial $ 3,887 $ 4175 $ 2,791 $ 4,175 $ 4,396 | R | CPI5%
Street Lighting Fees Total $ 160,353 $ 180,025 $ 118,477 $ 180,025 $ 202,881
Billing Fees Total $ 16,577 $ 17,850 $ 10,562 $ 15,500 | jc | $ 16,000 | jc
IGA Revenue from MRMD (CTF) $ 30,300 $ 35,000 $ 26,658 $ 51,000 | ka | $ 55,000 | ka |conservative
Operating Revenue $ 1,043,440 $ 1,160,025 $ 767,019 $ 1,173,675 $ 1,319,442
Non-Operating Revenue
Interest Income $ 1,147 $ - $ 45 $ - $ - don't typically budget for interest
Miscellaneous Income $ 1,045 $ - $ 1,817 $ 1,800 jc | $ - don't typically budget for Misc Inc
Non-Operating Revenue $ 2,192 $ - $ 1,862 $ 1,800 $ -
Revenues Total $ 1,045,632 $ 1,160,025 $ 768,881 $ 1,175,475 $ 1,319,442
EXPENDITURES
General & Admin. Expense
Professional Services
Accounting $ 4,102 $ 4,550 $ 154 $ 500 jc | $ 1,000 | jc
Customer Billing Services $ 10,879 $ 11,040 $ 14,618 $ 21,500 | c | $ 24,000 @ jc = @2000/mo
Engineering/Consulting $ 3,942 $ 3,500 $ 4,155 $ 5,400 $ 7,000 jn |Verticloud, TB, JDS
Legal $ 390 $ 2,500 $ 117 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 | jn
Professional Services Total $ 19,313 $ 21,590 $ 19,044 $ 29,900 $ 34,500
Personnel Expenses
Personnel Expenses $ 206,850 $ 206,850 | e [ $ 214,000 | ek
Labor Allocation for Ops Manager $ 162,942 $ - $ 106,072 $ -
Labor Allocation from General Fund 10 $ 40,025 $ 40,025 $ 42,026
Personnel Expenses Total $ 162,942 $ 246,875 $ 106,072 $ 246,875 $ 256,026 Move 1 PT to FT & 5% COLA

10/15/2021

Parks and Grounds Fund 15

Page 38 of 170

10f4




2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Copier - Contract Expenses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
IT/Computer/Software $ 566 $ 900 $ 5,040 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 Get info from Tobi/Aleks
Supplies - Safety $ 853§ 2,000 | $ 50 $ 2,000 $ 200
Office Supplies $ 4,437 $ 6,000 $ 2,175 $ 6,000 $ 3,500 | akiic|$1500 AK + F10 Alloc $2000
Training, Lic/Certs, Membership $ 119 $ 500 $ 185 $ 500 $ 3,000 ak |Backflow cert
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ 36 $ 100 jc | $ 100 | jc
Public Notifications $ 82 $ - $ - $ 100 | ic | $ 100 e
Meals & Entertainment $ - $ - $ 50 $ 100 $ 500 | jc
Miscellaneous $ - $ 500 3 1,095 $ 2,200 $ 2,000 | ak
General and Admin. Subtotal $ 188,312 $ 278,365 $ 133,747 $ 295,275 $ 307,426
Operating Expense
Landscape Repair & Maintenance
Landscape Maintenance $ 1,418 $ 25,000 $ 15,555 $ 25000  $ 37,500 | ak |2-Story Shed split w/F16
Landscape Maintenance Contract $ 272,460 $ 250,000 $ 181,042 $ 250,000 $ 350,000 ak |Review contract
Planting Replacements $ 17,502 $ 15,000 $ - $ 15,000 $ 30,000 | ak Trees shrubs, seed & fert (overseed)
Landscape Improvements $ 13634  § 25,000 | | $ 240 | $ 33,000 $ 25,000 | ak
LS - Supplies and Small Tools $ 3,000 $ 1,500 | ak
Landscape Parts and Repairs $ 25,000 $ 25,000 | ak
Controller Repair Contractor $ 37,635 $ 20,000 $ 19,649 $ 58,000 $ 20,000 | ak
Timer Replacement $ - $ 15,000 | ak |10 Timer replacements
$ - $ - ak
Snow Removal Expense $ 1,736 $ 1,500 $ 1,359 $ 2,000 $ 2,000
Landscape Maintenance Subtotal $ 344,385 $ 364,500 $ 217,845 $ 383,000 $ 506,000
Hardscape Repair & Maintenance
Hardscape Repair & Maintenance $ - $ - $ 35 $ 100 $ 1,000 jn Need for General R&M
Fencing Repairs $ 47,553 $ 20,000 $ - $ 20,000 $ 20,000 | ak
Dog Pot Stations $ 570 $ 1,000 $ - $ 1,000 $ 3,500 | ak
Hardscape Repair & Maintenance Total $ 48,123 $ 21,000 $ 35 $ 21,100 $ 24,500
Park Maintenance $ 20,000 $ 20,000 | jn Need for General R&M
Christmas Décor $ 12,031 $ 2,000 $ 7,272 $ 17,000 $ 9,000 | jn |New Xmas lights/wreaths
Concrete and Drainage Repairs $ 5,000 $ 8,500 | ak | Trail Repair/benches
Park Maintenance Total $ 12,031 $ 27,000 $ 7,272 $ 17,000 $ 37,500
Pond Maintenance $ 2518 | $ 15,000 | $ 552 |'$ 7,000 $ 7,000  ak
Utilities
Utilities - Street lights $ 139,157 $ 147,000 $ 106,192 $ 154,100 $ 161,805 | 5%
Utilities - Landscape and Parks - Electricity $ 21,384 | | $ 23,600 $ 16,221 $ 25,000 $ 26,250 | 5%
Utilities - Landscape and Parks - Water $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 5%
Utilities - Phones & Internet $ 696 $ 750 $ 692 $ 1,100 $ 1,155 | 5%
Landscape Utilities Total $ 161,237 $ 171,350 $ 123,105 $ 180,200 $ 189,210

10/15/2021

Parks and Grounds Fund 15

Page 39 of 170

20f4




2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Insurance $ 11,184 $ 12,360 $ 11,464 $ 16,787 | ic ' $ 19,305 | 15% |15% increase per Ins Rep
Landscape Damage from Residents (Non Recoverable] $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Tractor Repairs and Maintenance $ 3,500
Vehicle/Equip Repairs and Maintenance $ 4,344 3 2,500 $ 1,952 $ 6,000 $ 7,000 | =
Fuel $ 4,489 $ 9,000 $ 3,626 $ 5,500 $ 7,500 jn Low?? - Add for increased fuel prices
Mileage Reimbursement $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Travel Expense $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 500 Training
Operating Expenditures Total $ 588,311 $ 626,210 $ 365,851 $ 636,587 $ 798,515
Fund and General Expense Total $ 776,623 $ 904,575 $ 499,598 $ 931,862 $ 1,105,941
Operating Revenue Less Expenditures $ 269,009 $ 255,450 $ 269,283 $ 243,613 $ 213,501
Capital Expenses
Vehicle 18.634 $ 52,500 $ 39,329 $ 39,500 | ic | $ 12,000 = ak Skid $36k split w/F15, F40 & F50
Equipment ’ $ 6,400 $ 9,000 $ 9,000 | jc | $ 9,000 | ak |water trailer
Capital Subtotal 18,634 $ 58,900 $ 48,329 $ 48,500 $ 21,000
Expenditures Total $ 795,257 $ 963,475 $ 547,927 $ 980,362 $ 1,126,941
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES $ 250,375 $ 196,550 3 220,954 $ 195,113 $ 192,501
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from (to) Capital $ (783,978) $ (300,000) $ (200,000) | $ (300,000) $ (300,000) jn
Transfer from Sewer Fund $ 750,000 $ - $ - $ - ic | $ - ic
Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve $ 202,034 $ - $ - $ - $ - in
Transfer from (to) Rate Stabilization Reserve $ (10,000) | $ - $ - $ - $ - jn
Audit Adj from 2019 $ 71,538 | $ - $ - $ - $ -
Emergency Reserve (5%) - Contra $ (202,034) | $ - $ - $ - $ -
Rate Stabilization Reserve - Contra $ 10,000 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Transfer from(to) Other Funds Total $ 37,560 | $ (300,000) | $ (200,000) | $ (300,000) $ (300,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 287,935 $ (103,450) ' $ 20,954 $ (104,887) $ (107,499)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE $ 150,488 | $ 347,868 $ 438,423 $ 333,536
|
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 438,423 | $ 244,418 $ 333,536 $ 226,037

10/15/2021

Parks and Grounds Fund 15

Page 40 of 170

3 of 4




2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Fund Balance Distribution:
Operating Capital Ending Balance $ 283,419 $ 89,414 $ 178,532 $ 71,033
Emergency Reserve Ending Balance $ 145,004 $ 145,004 $ 145,004 $ 145,004
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Total Fund Balance $ 438,423 $ 244,418 $ 333,536 $ 226,037
Calculation of Distributions:
Operating Capital Beginning Balance $ (196,550) $ 192,864 $ 283,419 $ 178,532
Budget Year Contribution $ 479,969  $ (103,450) $ (104,887) $ (107,499)
Operating Capital Ending Balance $ 283,419 $ 89,414 $ 178,532 $ 71,033
Emergency Reserve Beginning Balance $ 347,038 $ 145,004 $ 145,004 $ 145,004
Budget Year Contribution 3 (202,034) $ - $ - $ -
Emergency Reserve Ending Balance $ 145,004 $ 145,004 $ 145,004 $ 145,004
Rate Stabilization Reserve Beginning Balance $ - $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Budget Year Contribution $ 10,000 |'$ - $ - $ -
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Total Ending Fund Balance $ 438,423 $ 244,418 $ 333,536 $ 226,037

10/15/2021

Parks and Grounds Fund 15

Page 41 of 170

4 of 4




MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

RECREATION FUND 16

2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET

2021 2022
2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
REVENUES
Rec Center Revenue - Fund 16
Fee Based Programming
Recreation Center Service Fees $ 1,593,369 $ 1,804,450 $ 1,186,619 $ 1,804,450 $ 2,037,646 RI CPI5%
Fee Based Program: Childcare $ 6,009 $ 10,000 $ 12,393 $ 14,000 $ 15,000
Fee Based Program: District Events $ 1,495 $ 2,000 $ 391 $ 1,500 $ 3,000
Fee Based Program: Guest Pass/Rentals $ 11,232 $ 15,000 $ 21,561 $ 24,500 $ 25,000
Fee Based Program: Group Exercise $ 5632 |'$ 6,000 |'$ 4535 | $ 6,000 $ 6,000
Fee Based Program: Aquatics $ 11,466 $ 12,000 $ 26,590 $ 34,000 $ 35,000
Fee Based Program: Sports $ 12,201 $ 15,000 $ 22,219 $ 30,000 $ 30,000 | rk
Fee Based Programming Total $ 1,641,404 $ 1,864,450 $ 1,274,308 $ 1,914,450 $ 2,151,646
MRRC Concession Sales $ 1,347 $ 1,000 $ 1,242 $ 2,000 $ 2,000
Falcon Freedom Days Donations $ 16,300 $ 20,000 $ 8,750 $ 8,750 i $ 8,750 n
Advertising Fees $ - $ 3,800 $ 4,120 $ 500 $ 5,340 jc DRCs+GTL for year + $125/mo in add'l Ad Rev
Rec Center Revenue Total $ 1,659,051 $ 1,889,250 $ 1,288,420 $ 1,925,700 $ 2,167,736
Billing Fees Total $ 16,576 $ 17,850 $ 10,562 $ 15,500 jc | $ 16,000 | jc
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CVRF) $ 6,959 | $ - $ 32 $ 32 $ - jc
Operating Revenue Total $ 1,682,586 $ 1,907,100 $ 1,299,014 $ 1,941,232 $ 2,183,736
Non-Operating Revenue
Interest Income $ - $ - $ 14 $ 25 jc | $ - don't typically budget for interest
Miscellaneous Income $ 1,794 $ - $ 3,406 $ 3,405 jc | $ - don't typically budget for Misc Inc
Non-Operating Revenue Total $ 1,794 $ - $ 3,420 $ 3,430 $ -
Revenues Total $ 1,684,380 $ 1,907,100 $ 1,302,434 $ 1,944,662 $ 2,183,736
EXPENDITURES
General & Admin. Expense
Professional Services
Accounting $ 24,300 $ 6,700 $ 263 $ 1,000  jc | $ 1,000  jc
Customer Billing Services $ - $ 18,600 $ 24,851 $ 38,500 jc  $ 38,400 jc @ $3,200/month - may need to increase
Engineering/Consulting $ 4,303 $ 5,000 $ 8,409 $ 14,000 $ 8,000 jc Verticloud, TB, JDS
Legal $ 1,276 $ 5,000 $ - $ 5,000 $ 1,000 | jn
Professional Services Total $ 29,879 $ 35,300 $ 33,523 $ 58,500 $ 48,400

10/15/2021

Recreation Fund 16

Page 42 of 170 .




2021

2022

2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Personnel Services
Personnel Expenses $ 810,900 $ 810,900 | ek | $ 852,000 | ek
Labor Allocation from General Fund 10 AR $ 159,300 $ Celfess $ 159,300 $ 167,264
Personnel Expenses 872,905 $ 970,200 637,254 $ 970,200 $ 1,019,264 5% COLA
Copier - Contract Expense $ 2,901 $ 4,000 $ 2340 | $ 4,000 $ 4,000
Software $ 22,000
Software Maint $ 28,376 $ 3,000 $ 26,238 $ 42,000 $ 42,000 | rk
Credit Card Fees $ 4,500
Supplies - Safety $ 130 $ 1,000 $ - $ 1,000 $ 100
Office Supplies $ 4814 | $ 11,700 | $ 4577 | $ 7,000 $ 7,000
Training, Lic/Certs, Membership $ 556 $ 1,000 $ 784 $ 1,500 $ 1,500
Subscriptions $ 30 $ - $ 61 $ 100 $ 100 | jc
MR Publications $ - $ 1,000 $ 5,725 $ 5750 « ' $ 2,000 jc Estimate - software, supplies etc.
Public Notifications $ 218 $ 150 $ - $ 150 jc | $ 150  jc
Meals & Entertainment $ - $ - $ 85 $ 300 $ 500
Miscellaneous $ - $ - $ 1,863 $ 2,000 $ 2,000
COVID Expense $ 6,297 $ - $ 32 $ 32 $ - jc
General and Admin. Subtotal $ 946,106 $ 1,053,850 $ 712,482 $ 1,092,532 $ 1,127,014
Operating Expense
Programming Supplies
Childcare Supplies $ 9,247 $ 14,500 $ 1,927 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Group Exercise Supplies $ 3,349 $ 3,000 $ 866 $ 2,000 $ 2,000
Sports Supplies $ 8,306 $ 10,000 $ 7,456 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
MRRC Supplies $ 30,661 $ 27,000 $ 21,993 $ 27,000 $ 30,000 @ rk
Aquatics Supplies $ 6,957 $ 9,000 $ 8,607 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Programming Supplies Total $ 58,520 $ 63,500 $ 40,849 $ 59,000 $ 62,000
Maintenance
Building Maintenance
Interior Painting $ 500 $ 500 | r«
Fire Ext, Suppression, Backflow Prev $ 5,700 $ 5,700 |
HVAC Contract Maint $ 4,250 $ 4,500 |
Building Maintenance $ 20,000 $ 20,000 | r«
Basketball Pulleys $ - $ 10,000 | r«
Wood Floor Refinishing $ - $ 8,000
Parking Lot/Pool LED Conversion $ 87,412 $ 4,000 $ 67,309 $ 161,450 $ 40,000 |
Janitorial Contract $ 39,000 $ 8,000 |
Cleaning/Pest Control $ 8,000 $ 35,520 | jc |Bug 60/mo, JanP 2900/mo
Locker Room Remodel $ 75,000 $ - jnirk moved to Capital
2-Story Shed $ - $ 7,500 Shed shared w/F15
Rec Center Signs $ 5,000 $ 5,000 |
Grounds Maintenance $ 1,056 $ 2,000 $ - $ 2,000 $ 1,000

10/15/2021

Recreation Fund 16

20f5

Page43-of 170



2021 2022
2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Pool Maintenance
Pool Chemicals $ 22,000
Pool Equipment Maintenance $ 20,000 $ 55000 |
Pool Water Treatment UV Bulbs Annual Replac $ 9,300 ’
Pool Heaters (3) Annual Maintenance $ 2,750
Slide - Outdoor Pool $ 53,023 $ 21,485 $ 54,050 $ 20,000 | rk
Shade Structures - Outdoor Pool $ 40,000 |
Amenity Pump $ 5,000 | rk
Plaster Outdoor Pool $ 30,000 | rk
Lilly Pads - Indoor Pool $ 7,000 | rk
Maintenance Total $ 141,491 $ 217,500 $ 88,794 $ 217,500 $ 302,720
MRRC Security
Additional Surveillance Cameras $ -
Service $ 4,867 $ 4,000 $ 2,081 $ 4,000 $ 4,000 | rk
Security Alarms $ -
Exercise Equip. and Furn. - Replace
Exercise Equipment Replacement $ 30,000 $ 70,000 | r«
Furniture Replacement $ 39,889 $ 10,000 $ 27,833 $ 40,000 | $ 5,000 | rk
MR Community Events $ 7,868 $ 15,000 $ 3,277 $ 10,000 w« | $ 15,000
Falcon Freedom Days $ 27,735 $ 50,000 $ 27,547 $ 27550 « | $ 30,000 5% To be reviewed
Utilities
Electric $ 98,562 $ 106,000 $ 83,832 $ 115,000 $ 120,750 5% 5% increase from 2021 projected
Gas $ 33,462 $ 60,500 $ 32,407 $ 50,000 $ 52,500 5% |5% increase from 2021 projected
Trash $ 2,290 $ 3,000 $ 2,228 $ 3,500 $ 3,675 | 5% |5% increase from 2021 projected
Utilities - Water $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 5% |5% increase from 2021 projected
Utilities - Phones & Internet $ 7,713 $ 12,600 $ 5,905 $ 9,000 $ 9,450 | 5% |5% increase from 2021 projected
Utilities Total $ 142,027 $ 182,100 $ 124,372 $ 177,500 $ 186,375
Insurance $ 18,016 $ 18,823 $ 19,097 $ 28,100 jc | $ 32,315 | k |15% increase per Ins Rep
Vehicle Repairs & Maint. $ 360 $ 1,000 $ 334 $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Fuel Expense $ 1,140 $ 4,000 $ 502 $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Mileage Reimbursement $ 349 | $ 500 $ - $ 500 $ 500 | rk
Travel Expense $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - rk
Operating Expenditures Total $ 442262 | $ 596,423 | $ 334,686 | $ 566,150 $ 709,910
Fund and General Expense Total $ 1,388,368 $ 1,650,273 $ 1,047,168 $ 1,658,682 $ 1,836,924
Operating Revenue Less Expenditures $ 296,012 $ 256,827 $ 255,266 $ 285,980 $ 346,811 . ok om—e
_ Fayec 44 01 17U
10/15/2021 Recreation Fund 16 3of5




2021

2022

2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay - Vehicle $ 22948 | $ - $ 10,076 | $ 10,100 $ -
Capital Outlay Total $ 22,948 $ - $ 10,076 $ 10,100 $ -
Capital Expenses Total $ 22,948 $ - $ 10,076 $ 10,100 $ -
Expenditures Total $ 1,411,316 $ 1,650,273 $ 1,057,244 $ 1,668,782 $ 1,836,924
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES $ 273,064 $ 256,827 $ 245,190 $ 275,880 $ 346,811
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from (to) Capital $ (213,000) | $ (200,000) @ $ (133,333)  $ (200,000) jc $ (268,000)| jn
Transfer from (to) Emergency Reserve $ - $ (50,000) | $ (33,333) | $ (50,000) jc  $ - in
Transfer from (to) Rate Stabilization Reserve $ (10,000)| | $ - $ - $ - $ - i
Emergency Reserve $ - $ 50,000 $ 33,333 $ 50,000 j $ -
Rate Stabilization Reserve $ 10,000 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Transfer from(to) Other Funds Total $ (213,000) $ (200,000) $ (133,333)  $ (200,000) $ (268,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 60,064 $ 56,827 $ 111,857 $ 75,880 $ 78,811
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE $ 329,503 $ 401,338 $ 389,567 $ 465,447
|
ENDING FUND BALANCE 389,567 458,165 465,447 544,258

10/15/2021

Recreation Fund 16

Page 45 of 170




2021 2022

2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended

Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21

Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Fund Balance Distribution:
Operating Capital Ending Balance $ 269,989 | | $ 288,587 $ 295,869 $ 374,680
Emergency Reserve Ending Balance $ 109,578 $ 159,578 $ 159,578 $ 159,578
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Total Fund Balance $ 389,567 $ 458,165 $ 465,447 $ 544,258
Calculation of Distributions:

Operating Capital Beginning Balance $ 219,925 $ 281,760 $ 401,993 $ 401,993
Budget Year Contribution $ 50,064 $ 6,827 $ (106,124) $ (27,313)
Operating Capital Ending Balance $ 269,989 $ 288,587 $ 295,869 $ 374,680
Emergency Reserve Beginning Balance $ 109,578 $ 109,578 $ 109,578 $ 159,578

Budget Year Contribution $ - $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ -
Emergency Reserve Ending Balance $ 109,578 $ 159,578 $ 159,578 $ 159,578
Rate Stabilization Reserve Beginning Balance $ - $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000

Budget Year Contribution $ 10,000  $ - $ - $ -
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Total Ending Fund Balance $ 389,567 |  $ 458,165 $ 465,447 $ 544,258

10/15/2021

Recreation Fund 16

Page 46 of 170




MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

CAPITAL FUND 30

2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET

2021 2022 2023+
2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21 Budget
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
General Revenue & Expense

IGA Revenue from MRMD $ - $ - $ - $ -

Developer Reimbursements $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 19,310,000
| General Revenue & Expense Subtotal $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 19,310,000
GENERAL FUND 10

Capital Financing Sources - Other

Interest $ 30,602 @ $ - $ 1,762 | | $ 3,034 $ - $ -

Miscellaneous Income $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Transfer From General Fund 10 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Transfer From Water Fund 40 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Transfer From Sewer Fund 50 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,300,000 $ -

Capital Financing Sources - Fund 10 Total $ 30,602 $ - $ 1,762 $ 3,034 $ 2,300,000 $ -
Capital Expenses - Other

Build-Out CIP and Funding Plan $ 9,164 $ 100,000 $ 116,292 $ - $ - $ -

District Office Bldg. (Shop and Yard Combined in QB) $ - $ 600,000 | | $ - $ - $ - $ 1,100,000

Maintenance Shop and Yard $ - $ 700,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,200,000

Improvements/Mtc to Main Drainage Channels and Ponds $ - $ 230,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,000,000

Capital Expenses - Other - Total $ 9,164 $ 1,630,000 $ 116,292 $ - $ - $ 2,300,000
Net Capital Financing Sources less Expenditures $ 21,438 $ (1,630,000) $ (114,530) $ 3,034 $ 2,300,000 $ (2,300,000)
Capital Beg Fund Balance - Other $ - $ 21,438 $ 21,438 $ 24,472
B Capital End Fund Balance - Other $ 21,438 $ (93,092) $ 24,472 $ 2,324,472 $ (2,300,000)

10/15/2021

Capital Fund 30

Page 47 of 170

10of5




2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21 Budget
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
PARKS & GROUNDS FUND 15
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 15
Transfer From Parks and Grounds Fund 15 $ 783,978 $ 300,000 $ 200,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 15 Total $ 783,978 $ 300,000 $ 200,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ -
Capital Expenses - Fund 15
3" Const and Acg-Winding Walk $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 |ic | $ 300,000 |ic | $ 257,722 Payment to GTL
Parks for New Development (Rolling Hills, Summit Estates) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 600,000
MRB/Stapelton Materials Storage $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 30,000 | BM | Create Maint Yard at this location
Trail Markers $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ?
Trail Signs and Kiosks $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ?
Capital Expenses - Fund 15 - Total $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 887,722
Net Capital Financing Sources less Expenditures $ 483,978 $ - $ (100,000) $ - $ - $ (887,722)
[ Capital Beg Fund Balance - Fund 15 $ (327,159)
Capital End Fund Balance - Fund 15 $ 156,819 $ (100,000) $ - $ = $ (887,722)
MRRC FUND 16
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 16
Transfer From Recreation Fund 16 $ 213,000 $ 200,000 $ 133,333 $ 200,000 $ 268,000
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 16 Total $ 213,000 $ 200,000 $ 133,333 $ 200,000 $ 268,000 $ -
Capital Expenses - Fund 16
Parking Lot Pavement $ 3159 | $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
MRRC Expansion $ - $ 50,000 $ - $ - $ 50,000 $ 200,000 Ryan talk with Jim about this. Begin Design in 2022
MRRC No 2 on Rainbow Bridge Dr $ - $ 100,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,000,000 Not starting the design on this yet
Lobby Remodel $ - $ 200,000 $ 9,800 $ 20,000 $ 118,000 |jrk | § -
Locker Replacement $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 100,000 | jnrk | $ -
MRRC Monument Marquee $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Capital Expenses - Fund 16 - Total $ 3,159 $ 350,000 $ 9,800 $ 20,000 $ 268,000 $ 5,200,000
Net Capital Financing Sources less Expenditures $ 209,841 $ (150,000) $ 123,533 $ 180,000 $ - $ (5,200,000)
[ Capital Beg Fund Balance - Fund 16 $ (26,905) $ 182,936 $ 182,936 $ 362,936 $ 362,936
Capital End Fund Balance - Fund 16 $ 182,936 $ 306,469 $ 362,936 $ 362,936 $ (4,837,064)

Page 48 of 170

10/15/2021 Capital Fund 30 20of5



2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21 Budget
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
WATER FUND 40
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 40
IGA Shared Water Cost Reimb. $ 155,490 $ - $ 142 $ 284 $ - in | $ -
Miscellaneous Income $ 16,950 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
IGA Revenue from MRMD $ 4,184,000 |$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Transfer From Water Fund 40 $ 964,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,333,333 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,500,000 $ -
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 40 Total $ 5,320,440 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,333,475 $ 2,000,284 $ 1,500,000 $ -
Capital Expenses - Fund 40
Legal $ 819 $ 10,000 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Well No. 6 - Completed 2020 $ 951,205 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - Completed in 2020
Guthrie Well Area B and Supply Line Extension - SHARED $ 5,372 $ 50,000 $ 113 $ - $ - $ 2,200,000
Guthrie Well LFH-2 Rehab - SHARED - Completed 2020 $ 69,727 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - Completed in 2020
Expand Filtration Plant and Building $ - $ 830,000 | $ 4475 | $ - $ 2,000,000 jn |'$ -
Purchase & Paint WHMD 2.0 MG Water Tank $ - $ 370,000 $ - $ - $ 800,000 jn | $ -
ACGC Weir Improvements - SHARED - Completed in 2020 $ 232,654 $ 15,000 $ - $ - $ - in |9 - Completed in 2020
Wells Sites 5, 7, 8 $ 522,929 $ 4,400,000 $ 2,961,774 $ 3,500,000 jn @ $ - n % - Will be completed in 2021
Eastonville Raw Water Pipeline $ 8,470 $ 450,000 $ 403,896 $ 450,000 $ - in | $ -
Water Rights $ - $ - $ 25,288 $ 40,000 $ 100,000 | jn $ - Replacement Plan Development
Audit Difference $ (24,378)]  $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Wells at Guthrie Ranch Site 4 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - n | $ 1,500,000 | jn
Well 4 Piping $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - n |$ 1,000,000 | jn
Well at Latigo Trails $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,500,000 jn | $ -
Tamlin Line Acquisition $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - in |'$ 1,000,000 | jn
Transmission Line Filter Plant to Tanks $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,200,000 |jn | $ -
Latigo Transmission Line $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - in |'$ 2,000,000 | jn
Wells at NE Corner Regional Park $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - in |'$ -
Acquire Permanent Guthrie Water Rights $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - n 9 6,000,000
Raw Water Supply Pipelines and Pump Stations $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - im0 % 3,000,000
3 Mil Gal Water Storage Tank No. 3 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - in | $ 2,500,000
3 Mil Gal Water Storage Tank No. 4 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - in | $ 2,500,000
Capital Expenses - Fund 40 - Total $ 1,766,798 $ 6,125,000 $ 3,395,546 $ 3,990,000 $ 5,600,000 $ 21,700,000
Net Capital Financing Sources less Expenditures $ 3,553,642 $ (4,125,0000 $ (2,062,071) $ (1,989,716) $ (4,100,000) $ (21,700,000)
Capital Beg Fund Balance - Fund 40 $ 2,659,552 $ 6,213,194 $ 6,213,194 $ 4,223,478 $ 123,478
B Capital End Fund Balance - Fund 40 $ 6,213,194 $ 4,151,123 $ 4,223,478 $ 123,478 $ (21,576,522)

10/15/2021

Capital Fund 30

Page 49 of 170

3of5




2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21 Budget
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
SEWER FUND 50
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 50
IGA Shared Sewer Cost Reimb. $ 44,704 | $ - $ 72,000 |$ 144,000 $ - $ -
Transfer From Sewer Fund 50 $ 1,100,000 $ 785,000 $ 523,333 $ 785,000 $ - $ -
Transfer From Emerg Fund 50 (used F40 to payF50 CMD) $ - $ - $ 835,317 $ - e |'$ - $ - $0 for YE bc Will pay back when get loan
Transfer From Emerg Fund 50 $ - $ - $ 674,304 $ - i | $ - $ - $0 for YE bc Will pay back when get loan
Transfer From Sewer Emerg Fund 50 $ - $ - $ 367,915 $ - ic | $ - $ - $0 for YE bc Will pay back when get loan
Capital Financing Sources - Fund 50 Total $ 1,144,704 $ 785,000 $ 2,472,869 $ 929,000 $ - $ -
Capital Expenses - Fund 50
2020 Falcon Lift Station Improvements - Completed 2020 $ 235,286 $ 30,000 $ - $ - i % - ic | $ - Completed in 2020
Woodmen Hills Sewer Bypass $ 346,881 $ 710,000 | $ 801,126 | $ 810,000 $ - $ -
Replace Chemical Tanks - MSMD $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
TDS Treatment at Cherokee (Tolling Agreement) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
WH Sewer Bypass Phase 2 & 3 $ - $ 500,000 $ - $ - in |'$ - in | $ 500,000 | jn
Mid-Point Injection Station $ - $ 20,000 $ - $ - $ 20,000 $ 75,000 2022 Eng & permiting, 2023 Construction
Lift Station Improvements $ - $ 35,000 $ - $ - $ 35,000 $ - BM | $25k Grate over wet well, $10k Storage Building at Station
Sewer Lift Station Expansion $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 500,000 | jn
Audit Difference $ 34,038 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Capital Expenses - Fund 50 - Total $ 616,205 $ 1,295,000 $ 801,126 $ 810,000 $ 55,000 $ 1,075,000
Net Capital Financing Sources less Expenditures $ 528,499 $ (510,000) $ 1,671,743 $ 119,000 $ (55,000) $ (1,075,000)
[ | Capital Beg Fund Balance - Fund 50 $ 267,402 $ 795,901 $ 795,901 $ 914,901 $ 859,901
Capital End Fund Balance - Fund 50 $ 795,901 $ 2,467,644 $ 914,901 $ 859,901 $ (215,099)
| TDS Improvement - Fund 50 L
Contributions to Other Gov'ts $ (2,985,929) ' $ - $ (10,800,000)  § (8,575,300) $ - Total $4,2304,133 - MSMD Share = $19,375,293
Interest Accrued $ - $ - $ - $ (550,243) $ (709,992) $  (14,863,200)
TDS Improvement Surcharge (2021-2051) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 896,448 $ 37,968,740 Avg 3248x$23/mo
TDS Improvement - Fund 50 Total $ (2,985929) $ - $ - $ (11,350,243) $ (8,388,844) $ 23,105,540
Capital Beg Balance - TDS Improvement $ - $ - $ (2,985,929) | $ (2,985,929) $  (14,336,172) $ (22,725,016)
B Capital End Balance - TDS Improvement $ (2,985929) $ o $ (2,985929) $ (14,336,172) $ (22,725,016) $ 380,524

10/15/2021

Capital Fund 30

Page 50 of 170

40f5




2020 2021 BUDGET 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21 Budget
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 1,811,469 $ (6,415,000) $ (481,325) | $ (13,037,924) $ (10,243,844) $ 11,252,818

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,811,469 $ (6,415,000) | $ (481,325) | $ (13,037,924) $ (10,243,844) $ 11,252,818
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,572,890 $ 7,538,868 $ 4,384,359 $ (8,653,565) $ (18,897,409)
ENDING FUND BALANCE 4,384,359 $ 1,123,868 $ (8,653,565) $ (18,897,409) $ (7,644,591)

10/15/2021

Capital Fund 30

Page 51 of 170

50f 5




MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

WATER FUND 40

2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET

2021 2022
2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
REVENUES
Water Revenue - Fund 40
Water Service Fees - Residential
Water Resource Fee - Residential $ 1,132,558 $ 1,275,325 $ 837,483 $ 1,257,000 $ 1,365,251 | Rl
Water Use Base Fee - Residential $ 600,634 $ 666,650 $ 439,480 $ 660,000 $ 713,729 R
Water Consumption - Residential $ 623,933 $ 600,000 $ 428,373 $ 600,000 $ 630,000 5%
Water Service Fees - Residential Total $ 2,357,125 $ 2,541,975 $ 1,705,336 $ 2,517,000 $ 2,708,980
Water Service Fees - Commercial
Water Resource Fee - Commercial $ 40,986 $ 43,225 $ 29,626 $ 43,200 $ 46,024 Ri
Water Use Base Fee - Commercial $ 60,855 $ 54,750 $ 39,465 $ 58,500 $ 61,425 5%
Water Consumption - Commercial $ 6,833 $ 8,000 $ 15415 | $ 18,600 $ 19,530 5%
Bulk Water Consumption - Contractors $ 45,038 $ 37,000 $ 12,358 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 jc |same as 2021
Water Service Fees - Commercial Total $ 153,712 $ 142,975 $ 96,864 $ 138,300 $ 144,979
Meter Set Fees (Service) $ 214,662 $ 187,500 $ 66,635 $ 100,000 jc @ $ 130,000 | je
Irrigation
Water Resource Fee - Irrigation $ 38,808 $ 40,825 $ 27,224 $ 40,825 $ 42,878 | RI
Water Use Base Fee - Irrigation $ 48,320 $ 51,725 $ 34,484 $ 51,725 $ 54,312 R
Water Consumption - Irrigation $ 149,122 $ 160,000 $ 92936 | $ 150,000 $ 157,500 5%
Irrigation Total $ 236,250 $ 252,550 $ 154,644 $ 242,550 $ 254,690
UB - Water Adjustments $ (6,762)  $ - $ (1,547) ' $ - 3 - jc
WHMD Shared Cost Reimbursement $ 33,062 $ 25,000 $ 110 $ 25,000 $ 26,250 5% | From shared projects
Billing Fees Total $ 16,577 $ 17,850 $ 10,562 $ 15,500  ic  $ 16,000 | ic
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CVRF) $ 856 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Water Revenue - Fund 40 Total $ 3,005,482 $ 3,167,850 $ 2,032,604 $ 3,038,350 $ 3,280,899
NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Development Inspection Fees $ - $ - $ - $ 34813 ¢ | $ - in
Interest Income $ - $ - $ 19 $ - $ - don't typically budget for interest
Miscellaneous Income $ 5,861 $ - $ 3,990 $ 3990 ¢ | $ - don't typically budget for Misc Inc
Revenues Total $ 3,011,343 $ 3,167,850 $ 2,036,613 $ 3,077,153 $ 3,280,899

10/15/2021

Water Fund 40

D LD ~f 170
rage oz 01179

N

of 5




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
EXPENDITURES
General & Admin. Expense
Professional Services Expense
Professional Accounting Svcs $ 17,011 $ 9,000 $ 359 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 | jc
Customer Billing Services $ 42,560 $ 45,000 $ 33,622 $ 50,000 $ 52,800 | jc = @4400/mo
Engineering/Consulting $ 58,403 $ 50,000 $ 67,231 $ 92,000 $ 100,000  jn Verticloud, TB, JDS
Legal $ 10,674 3 20,000 $ 15,676 $ 7,900 $ 20,000 | bm
Professional Services Expense Total $ 128,648 $ 124,000 $ 116,888 $ 150,900 $ 173,800
Personnel Expenses
Personnel Expenses $ 230,500 $ 230,500 | ek | $ 300,000 | ek
Labor Allocation for Ops Manager $ 392,768 $ 52,550 $ 240,873 $ 52,550 $ 55,750
Labor Allocation from Fund 10 $ 293,775 $ 293,775 $ 308,473
Personnel Expenses Total $ 392,768 $ 576,825 $ 240,873 $ 576,825 $ 664,223 Hire W&WW Lead split & 1 Support and 5% COLA
Copier - Contract Expenses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
IT/Computer/Software $ 2,587 $ 2,375 $ 9,329 $ 11,500 $ 12,075 5% |What hardware is needed? Get info from Tobi/BM
Supplies - Saftey $ 180 $ 1,800 $ 783 $ 1,800 $ 2,000 | bm
Office Supplies $ 6,611 $ 13,000 $ 5,392 $ 7,500 $ 10,500 | bm
Training, Lic/Certs, Membership $ 1,552 $ 1,500 $ 2,068 $ 3,000 $ 4,000 | jn
Dues and Subscriptions $ 445 $ 1,000 $ 483 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 | jc
Bank Charges $ 5,279 $ 5,650 $ 1,875 $ 2800  jc | ' $ 6,000 | jc Wil have less $ in WF Op, charges will increase
Public Notifications $ 336 $ - $ 78 |'$ - $ - jn
Meals & Entertainment $ - $ 116 $ 250 $ 500 | jc
Miscellaneous $ - $ 475 $ 2,548 $ 2,700 | jc | $ 2,000 | jc
COVID Expense $ 856 $ - $ 200 ' $ 200  jc | $ - ic
General & Admin. Expense Subtotal $ 539,262 $ 726,625 $ 380,633 $ 758,475 $ 876,098
Operating Expense
Water Operations General
SCADA Mtc
SCADA Supplies
Equipment Rental
Misc Services $ 121,858 $ 111,785 $ 25,456 $ 50,000 $ 85,000 | bm
Misc Supplies
Security Improvements
Small Tools
Permits and Fees $ - $ 1,000 $ - $ 1,000
Water Operations General Total $ 121,858 $ 112,785 $ 25,456 $ 51,000 $ 85,000
Page-53-6+1+0
10/15/2021 Water Fund 40 20f5




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Raw Water Operations
Flow Meter Calibration/Well Inspections $ ) $ 31,650 $ 7.388 $ 25000 $ 255,000 | bm Pull Wells LFH4&3, Arap #4
Well site upgrades $ 30,000 | bm
Repairs & Maintenance (RWO) $ - $ 7,000 $ 12,992 $ 8,000 $ 10,000 | bm
Infiltration Galleries $ 386 $ 5,000 $ 1,894 $ 4,000 $ 5,000 | bm
WHMD - Guthrie - Shared $ 12,684 $ 10,000 3 14,059 $ 10,000 3 75,000 | bm Arap 2 Pull
Raw Water Operations Total $ 13,070 $ 53,650 $ 36,333 $ 47,000 $ 375,000
Water Treatment Operations
Reclaim tank/rehab connection $ - $ 150,000 | bm
Lab Services $ i $ 10,000 $ 7.002 $ 15,000 $ 15,000 | jn
Flow Control (2 new) $ - $ 250,000 | bm
Filtration Plant Bldg. Improvements 3 10,300 3 - bm
Repairs & Maintenance (WTO) $ 11,771 $ 25,000 $ 23,820 $ 30,000 $ 30,000 | jn
Sodium Hypochlorite $ 18,436 $ 20,000 $ 16,597 $ 22,000 $ 28,000 | bm
Water Treatment Operations Total $ 30,207 $ 65,300 $ 48,319 $ 67,000 $ 473,000
Water Distribution Operations
Water Distribution Expense $ - $ 9,775 $ 8,702 $ 9,000 $ 9,000 | jn
Repairs & Maint (WDO) $ - $ 75,000 $ 30 $ 100 jn $ 75,000 | in | Spare pump/motor for booster
Water Meters $ 108,776 $ 115,000 $ 42,871 $ 70,000 $ 100,000 | bm
WHMD Water Treatment and Supply $ 29,879 $ 30,000 | $ - $ - $ - ic
Emergency Water Supply $ 63,711 $ - $ - $ - $ - ic
Tank Cleaning Maint. $ 411,898 $ - $ - $ - $ - in
Water Distribution Operations Total $ 614,264 $ 229,775 | $ 51,603 @ $ 79,100 $ 184,000
Non-Potable Water Operations
Non-Potable Water (iversion structure) $ 205 $ 16,500 $ 5,725 $ 10,000 $ 16,500 | bm
Non-Potable Water - Shared $ 23,691 $ 30,000 $ 8,013 $ 14,000 $ 1,000 | bm
Non-Potable Water Operations Total $ 23,896 $ 46,500 $ 13,738 $ 24,000 $ 17,500
Utilities
Utilities - Electricity $ 445213 $ 491,500 $ 338,205 $ 491,500 $ 531,075 5% |5% increase from 2021 projected + $15k for new wells
Utilities - Trash $ 1,041 $ 1,200 $ 763 $ 1,200 $ 1,260 | 5% 5% increase from 2021 projected
Utilities - Cable, Phone, Internet $ 4,893 $ 7,000 $ 3,852 $ 7,000 $ 7,350 5% 5% increase from 2021 projected
Utilities Subtotal $ 451,147 $ 499,700 $ 342,820 $ 499,700 $ 539,685

10/15/2021

Water Fund 40

Page 54 of 170

3of 5




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Insurance $ 44,292 $ 65,000 $ 26,453 $ 38,650 jc $ 49,447 | 15% |15% increase per Ins Rep + $5k for new wells
Vehicle/Equip. Repairs & Maint. $ 3,516 $ 5,000 $ 1,898 | § 4,000 $ 5,000  jn
Fuel Expense $ 6,075 $ 10,000 $ 4,160 $ 8,000 $ 10,000 | jn
Mileage Reimbursement $ - $ - $ 5 % 5 ic|$ -
Travel Expense $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 500 | jc |Training
Operating Expenses Total $ 1,308,325 $ 1,087,710 $ 550,785 $ 818,455 $ 1,739,132
Fund and General Expense Total $ 1,847,587 $ 1,814,335 $ 931,418 $ 1,576,929 $ 2,615,230
Operating Revenue Less Expenditures $ 1,163,756 $ 1,353,516 $ 1,105,196 $ 1,500,224 $ 665,669
Capital Outlay
Trac.tor $ 28.634 $ 36,500 $ 40,942 $ 41,000 | jo $ 12,000 | bm |Skid $36k split w/F15, F40 & F50
Vehicle $ -
Capital Expenses Total $ 28,634 $ 36,500 $ 40,942 $ 41,000 $ 12,000
Expenditures Total $ 1,876,221 $ 1,850,835 $ 972,360 $ 1,617,929 $ 2,627,230
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES $ 1,135,122 $ 1,317,016 $ 1,064,254 $ 1,459,224 $ 653,669
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Facilities Fees - MRMD $ 2,902,000 $ 1,800,000 $ 923,500 $ 1,283,500 $ 2,375,000 RI |250 Taps pd in 2022 @ $9,500
Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD $ (3,094,000)  $ (1,800,000) $ (622,000) $ (982,000) $ (2,375,000) R
Transfer from (to) Capital Projects Fund $ (964,000) $ (2,000,000)| | $ (1,333,333) | $ (2,000,000) $ (1,500,000) jn
Transfer from (to) Emergency Reserve $ (150,000) $ (290,000)| | $ (193,333) $ (290,000) $ - jn
Transfer from (to) Rate Stabilization Reserve $ (40,000) $ 40,000 $ 26,667 $ 40,000 | c | $ - jn
Audit Adj $ 6,471 $ - $ - $ - $ - e
Emergency Reserve (5%) $ 150,000 $ 290,000 $ (641,984) $ 290,000 | jc  $ -
Rate Stabilization Reserve $ 40,000 $ (40,000) | $ (26,667) | $ (40,000) jc $ -
Transfer from(to) Other Funds Total $ (1,149,529) $ (2,000,000) | $ (1,867,150) $ (1,698,500) $ (1,500,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (14,407)  $ (682,985) | $ (802,896)  $ (239,277) $ (846,331)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE $ 2,427,743 $ 2,611,484 $ 2,413,336 $ 2,174,060
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 2,413,336 $ 1,928,499 $ 2,174,060 $ 1,327,729

10/15/2021

Water Fund 40




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Fund Balance Distribution:
Operating Capital Ending Balance $ 1,357,583 $ 622,746 $ 868,307 $ 21,976
Emergency Reserve Ending Balance $ 715,753 $ 1,005,753 $ 1,005,753 $ 1,005,753
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 340,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Total Fund Balance $ 2,413,336 $ 1,928,499 $ 2,174,060 $ 1,327,729
Calculation of Distributions:
Operating Capital Beginning Balance $ 1,561,990 $ 1,555,731 $ 1,357,583 $ 868,307
Budget Year Contribution $ (204,407) (932,986) (489,277) (846,331)
Operating Capital Ending Balance 1,357,583 622,746 868,307 21,976
Emergency Reserve Beginning Balance $ 565,753 $ 715,753 $ 715,753 $ 1,005,753
Budget Year Contribution $ 150,000 $ 290,000 $ 290,000 $ -
Emergency Reserve Ending Balance $ 715,753 $ 1,005,753 $ 1,005,753 $ 1,005,753
Rate Stabilization Reserve Beginning Balance $ 300,000 $ 340,000 $ 340,000 $ 300,000
Budget Year Contribution $ 40,000 $ (40,000) $ (40,000) $ -
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 340,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Total Ending Fund Balance $ 2,413,336 $ 1,928,499 $ 2,174,060 $ 1,327,729

10/15/2021

Water Fund 40

Page 56 of 17050f

5




MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

SEWER FUND 50

2021 AMENDED & 2022 PROPSED BUDGET WORKSHEET

2021 2021 2022
2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
REVENUES
Sewer Revenue - Fund 50
Sewer fees - Residential $ 1,625,179 $ 1,718,350 $ 1,128,441 $ 1,718,350 B  $ 1,848,242 RI |Noincrease on service fees due to adding surcharge
Sewer fees - Commercial $ 23,821 $ 35,000 $ 18,867 $ 35,000 B | $ 36,750 | 5% |No increase on service fees due to adding surcharge
Sterling Ranch - Tap Fees $ 2,679,452 $ 1,251,175 $ 36,585 $ 1,402,640 jc  $ 1,341,468 | jc 2022 Taps due 12.31.22
IGA Shared Sewer Cost Reimb $ 88,561 $ 103,000 $ 18,787 $ 103,000 B8 $ 108,150 5% Need from BM/JN - based on Shared Expense
Billing Fees Total $ 16,576 $ 17,850 $ 10,562 $ 15,500  ic $ 16,000 | ic
CVRF Grant Reimbursemnet $ 1694  $ - $ - $ - i $ - ic
Sewer Revenue - Fund 50 Total $ 4,335,283 $ 3,125,375 $ 1,213,242 $ 3,274,490 $ 3,350,610
OPERATING REVENUE TOTAL $ 4,335,283 $ 3,125,375 $ 1,213,242 $ 3,274,490 $ 3,350,610
NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Development Inspection Fees $ - $ - $ - $ 34813 | jc  $ - jn
Insurance Claim Reimb $ 5,612 $ - $ - $ - $ - ic
Interest Income $ 32,071 $ - $ 37,285 $ 37,300 jc | $ - jc  don't typically budget for interest
Miscellaneous Income $ 4171 $ - $ 4,334 $ 4335 ¢ $ - jc |don't typically budget for Misc Inc
NON-OPERATING REVENUE TOTAL $ 41,854 $ - $ 41619 $ 76,448 $ -
Revenues Total $ 4,377,137 $ 3,125,375 $ 1,254,861 $ 3,350,938 $ 3,350,610
EXPENDITURES
General & Admin. Expense
Professional Services
Accounting $ 16,382 $ 9,000 $ 255 $ 1,000 jc $ 1,000 | jc
Customer Billing Services $ 41,436 $ 42,000 $ 24,364 $ 37,000 $ 42,000 jc | @3500/mo
Engineering/Consulting $ 23,316 $ 35,000 $ 15,160 $ 22,000 $ 35,000 | bm Verticloud, TB, JDS
Engineering/Consulting Cherokee $ 205,010 $ 40,000 $ 52,224 $ 52,250 $ - jc | Not using this account since Arbitration is complete
Legal $ 33,621 $ 20,000 $ 13,207 $ 10,500 $ 20,000 | jn
Legal - Cherokee $ 497,337 $ 150,000 $ 368,576 $ 371,750 $ - jc  Not using this account since Arbitration is complete
Professional Services Total $ 817,102 $ 296,000 $ 473,786 $ 494,500 $ 98,000

10/15/2021

Sewer Fund 50

Page 57 of 170 .




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Personnel Expenses
Personnel Expenses $ 199,800 $ 199800 | 8 | $ 266,000 | ek
Labor Allocation for Ops Manager $ 339,287 $ 52,550 $ 262,772 $ 52,550 $ 55,750
Labor Allocation from Fund 10 $ 284,175 $ 284,175 $ 284,175
Personnel Expenses Total $ 339,287 $ 536,525 $ 262,772 $ 536,525 $ 605,925 Hire W&WW Lead split & 5% COLA
IT/Computer/Software $ 3,020 $ 2,500 $ 6,675 $ 8,000 $ 8,400 5% What hardware is needed? Get info from Tobi/BM
Supplies - Safety $ 3,414 $ 5,300 $ 8,088 $ 15,000 $ 15,000  bm
Office Expense $ 6,383 | $ 14,250 $ 4548 | $ 8,000 $ 8,000 | jc
Training, Lic/Certs, Membership $ 764 $ 2,500 $ 2,308 $ 4,500 $ 5,000 | jn
Dues and Subscriptions $ - $ 500 $ 59 § 500 $ 500  jc
Public Notification $ 326 $ 78 $ 125 jc | $ 150 | jc
Meals & Entertainment $ - $ 82 $ 200 $ 500  fc
Miscellaneous Expense $ - $ 2,000 $ 1,810 $ 2,000 $ 2,000 | bm
COVID Expense $ 2,014 | $ - $ 2000 | $ - $ - ic
General & Admin. Expense Subtotal $ 1,172,310 $ 859,575 $ 760,407 $ 1,069,350 $ 743,475
Operating Expense
Sewer Operations Expense
Equipment Rental $ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 4,000 | bm
Flow Meter Calibrations $ 900 $ 900 $ 1,000 | bm
CCTV Lines $ 5,000 $ - $ 5,000 | bm
Misc Supplies $ 25,114 $ 15,000 $ 15,152 $ 15,000 $ 15,000 | bm
Tech Support Pumps, Cla-Val, Air Release $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 5,000 | bm
Tools $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 6,000 | bm
Traffic Control Services $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 5,600 | bm
Cherokee Wastewater Treatment $ 298,354 $ 330,000 $ 248,592 $ 350,000 i  $ 367,500 | 5%
Sewer Treatment at WHMD TP $ 74,880 $ 78,000 $ 44,310 $ 76,000 jc | $ 80,400 jc | $6700/mo
Sewer Operations Expense Total $ 398,348 $ 451,900 $ 308,054 $ 464,900 $ 489,500

10/15/2021

Sewer Fund 50

Page 58 of 170, .




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Lift Station Operations Expense
Chemicals LS - MSMD $ 134,405 $ 132,000 $ 69,822 $ 132,000 $ 168,000 ' bm
Air Release Rebuild Parts $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 7,000 | bm
Misc Repair Services $ 10,508 | | $ 20,000 $ 7741 | $ 10,000 $ 15,000 | bm
Manhole Coating and Repairs $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 5,000 | bm
Supplies - Cleaning - Lift Station MSMD $ 600 $ 1,000 | bm
Effluent Flow Meter Calibration $ 700 $ 700 | bm
FM Vault Cleaning & Maintenance $ 9,500 $ 9,500 | bm
H<.aater Se.rvice Dry Well Side $ 12.176 $ 500 $ 9,255 $ 25,000 $ 2,000 | bm
Misc Services $ 8,000 $ 8,000 | bm
Pump Seal Filters $ 800 $ 1,000 | bm
SCADA Maintenance $ 12,000 $ 12,000 | bm
SCADA Supplies $ 3,000 $ 15,000 | bm
Lift Station Operations Expense Total $ 157,089 $ 195,100 $ 79,851 $ 175,000 $ 244,200
Lift Station Operations Expenses - Shared
Utilities - Electric - Lift Station - Shared $ 49,966 | | $ 5,200 $ 39,928 | | $ 54,000 $ 56,000 | bm
Utilities - Gas - Lift Station - Shared $ 10,284 $ 19,000 $ 10,960 $ 17,000 $ 19,000 | bm
Utilities - Trash - Lift Station - Shared $ 1,309 | $ 2,100 $ 1,050 | $ 2,100 $ 2,300 | bm
Utilities - Internet - Lift Station - Shared $ 2,778 $ 3,000 $ 1,746 $ 3,000 $ 300 | bm
Lift Station Operations Expenses - Share $ 64,337 $ 29,300 $ 53,684 $ 76,100 $ 77,600
Repairs & Maintenance - LS Shared
Heater Service Wet Well Side $ 500 $ 2,000 | bm
Influent Flow Meter Calibration $ 1,000 $ 1,000 | bm
Misc Parts/Repairs $ 5,000 $ 7,000 | bm
Rep and Maint - Generator - Lift Station - Shd $ 19517 | $ 2,500 $ 44,888 $ 50,000 $ 2,500 | bm
Rep and Maint - Grit - Lift Station - Shared $ 7,500 $ 17,000 | bm
Supplies - Cleaning - Lift Station - Shared $ 2,500 $ 2,000 | bm
Supplies - Safety - Lift Station - Shared $ 1,000 $ 1,000 | bm
Repairs & Maintenance - LS Shared Tota $ 19,517 $ 20,000 $ 44,888 $ 50,000 $ 32,500
Utilities Expenses
Utilities - Electric $ 2,384 $ 2,500 $ 1,745 $ 2,500 $ 2,625 | 5%
Utilities - Internet, Phone - Lift Station/Blaney  $ 1,947 $ 2,900 $ 1,133 $ 1,800 $ 1,890 | 5%
Utilities Expenses Total $ 4,331 $ 5,400 $ 2,878 $ 4,300 $ 4,515

10/15/2021

Sewer Fund 50

Page 59 of 170, .




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
Insurance $ 43,484 $ 50,000 $ 18,552 $ 27276  jic | $ 31,367 | 15% 15% increase per Ins Rep
Vehicle/Equip. Repairs & Maint $ 6,936 $ 8,000 $ 3,957 $ 8,000 $ 8,000  jn
Fuel Expense $ 6,699 $ 9,000 $ 5,530 $ 9,000 $ 11,000 | jn
Mileage Reimbursement $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - bm
Travel Expense $ 1,027 $ - $ - $ - $ 500 @ jc | Training
Operating Expenses Total $ 701,768 $ 768,700 $ 517,394 $ 814,576 $ 899,182
Fund and General Expenses Tota $ 1,874,078 $ 1,628,275 $ 1,277,801 $ 1,883,926 $ 1,642,657
Operating Revenue Less Expen $ 2,503,059 $ 1,497,100 $ (22,939) $ 1,467,012 $ 1,707,953
Capital Outlay
Cap!tal Outlay - Veh!cle (Tractor) $ 83,812 $ 36,500 $ 10,076 $ 36,500 $ 12,000 | bm |Skid $36k split w/F15, F40 & F50
Capital Outlay - Vehicle (Crew Truck) $ - jn
Capital Outlay Total $ 83,812 $ 36,500 $ 10,076 $ 36,500 $ 12,000
Expenditures Total $ 1,957,890 $ 1,664,775 $ 1,287,876 $ 1,920,426 $ 1,654,657
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES $ 2,419,247 $ 1,460,600 $ (33,015) $ 1,430,512 $ 1,695,953
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Tap Fees Received $ 2,902,000 $ 1,700,000 $ 923,500 $ 1,283,500 $ 2,375,000 RI |250 Taps pd in 2022 @ $9,500
Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD $ (3,094,000) $ (1,700,000)  $ (622,000) $ (982,000) $ (2,375,000) R
Transfer from (to) Parks and Grounds Fund $ (750,000)  $ - $ - $ - $ -
Transfer from (to) Capital Projects Fund $ (1,100,000), | $ (785,000) @ $ (523,333) $ (785,000) $ - jn
Transfer from (to) Capital Projects Fund-F10  $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (2,300,000) in |Transfer to Capital General Fund 10
Transfer from (to) Emergency Reserve $ - $ (225,000) @ $ (150,000)  $ (225,000) $ -
Transfer from (to) Sewer Emergency Reserve ( $ (65,526) @ $ (72,048) | $ (47,910) | $ (72,048) $ (78,000)| jn
Transfer from (to) Rate Stabilization Reserve  $ (40,000)| | $ 25,000 $ 16,667 $ 25,000 $ -
Audit Adj $ (5528) $ - $ - $ - $ - e
Emergency Reserve (5%) $ - $ 225,000 $ (524,304)| | $ 225,000 $ -
Sewer Emergency Reserve ($2) $ 65,526 $ 72,048 $ (320,005)| | $ 72,048 $ 78,000
Rate Stabilization Reserve $ 40,000 $ (25,000) | $ (16,667) $ (25,000) $ -
Transfer from (to) Other Funds Total | $ (2,047,528) | $ (785,000) $ (1,264,052) | $ (483,500) $ (2,300,000)

10/15/2021

Sewer Fund 50

Page 60 of 170 .




2020 Modified Accrual 2021 GM Recommended GM Recommended
Audit ADOPTED QB 8/31/21 Amended Budget Budget 10/15/21
Accrual Modified Accrual YTD Actuals Modified Accrual Modified Accrual 2022 PROPSED BUDGET NOTES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) TOTAL  § (2,047,528)  $ (785,000)  $ (1,264,052)  $ (483,500) $ (2,300,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 371,719 $ 675,600 $ (1,297,067)  $ 947,012 $ (604,047)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE $ 1,957,731 $ 1,497,791 $ 2,329,450 $ 3,276,462
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 2,329,450 $ 2,173,391 $ 3,276,462 $ 2,672,414
Fund Balance Distribution:
Operating Capital Ending Balance $ 1,095,588 $ 667,481 $ 1,770,552 $ 1,088,504
Emergency Reserve 5% Ending Balance $ 561,804 $ 786,804 $ 786,804 $ 786,804
Emergency Reserve ($2) Ending Balance $ 332,058 $ 404,106 $ 404,106 $ 482,106
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 340,000 $ 315,000 $ 315,000 $ 315,000
Total Fund Balance $ 2,329,450 $ 2,173,391 $ 3,276,462 $ 2,672,414
Calculation of Distributions:
Operating Capital Beginning Balance $ 829,395 $ 265,687 $ 1,095,588 $ 1,770,552
Budget Year Contribution $ 266,193 $ 401,794 $ 674,964 $ (682,047)
Operating Capital Ending Balance $ 1,095,588 $ 667,481 $ 1,770,552 $ 1,088,504
Emergency Reserve 5% Beginning Balance $ 561,804 $ 561,804 $ 561,804 $ 786,804
Budget Year Contribution $ - $ 225,000 $ 225,000 $ -
Emergency Reserve 5% Ending Balance | $ 561,804 $ 786,804 $ 786,804 $ 786,804
Emergency Reserve ($2) Beginning Balance  $ 266,532 $ 332,058 $ 332,058 $ 404,106
Budget Year Contribution $ 65,526 $ 72,048 $ 72,048 $ 78,000
Emergency Reserve ($2) Ending Balance  $ 332,058 $ 404,106 $ 404,106 $ 482,106
Rate Stabilization Reserve Beginning Balance $ 300,000 $ 340,000 $ 340,000 $ 315,000
Budget Year Contribution $ 40,000 $ (25,000) $ (25,000) $ -
Rate Stabilization Reserve Ending Balance $ 340,000 $ 315,000 $ 315,000 $ 315,000
Total Ending Fund Balance $ 2,329,450 | $ 2,173,391 $ 3,276,462 $ 2,672,414

10/15/2021

Sewer Fund 50

Page 61 of 170 .




Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Residential Fees: Monthly Fee Schedule Per Single Family Residence

2021 | Proposed 2022 Rate | Difference
Water
Water Resource Fee $33.36 per month $35.03 per month $1.67 5.0%
Water Use Fee (Includes 5,000 gallons per month) $17.44 per month $18.31 per month $0.87 5.0%
Excess Water Usage Fee If Exceed The Included 5,000 Gallons Per Month
5,001 to 10,000 gallons per month $4.55 per 1,000 gallons $4.78 per 1,000 gallons $0.23 5.0%
10,001 to 15,000 gallons per month $5.31 per 1,000 gallons $5.57 per 1,000 gallons $0.27 5.0%
15,001 to 20,000 gallons per month $7.33 per 1,000 gallons $7.70 per 1,000 gallons $0.37 5.0%
20,001 to 30,000 gallons per month $19.71 per 1,000 gallons $20.70 per 1,000 gallons $0.99 5.0%
Over 30,001 gallons per month $23.76 per 1,000 gallons $24.95 per 1,000 gallons $1.19 5.0%
Sewer
Sewer Charges $47.42 per month $47.42 per month $0.00 0.0%
MSMD Clean Water Surcharge N/A $10.00 per month $10.00 100.0%
Recreation
Landscape Parkways, Parks, Open Spaces & Drainage $25.12 per month $26.38 per month $1.26 5.0%
Recreation Center $49.79 per month $52.28 per month $2.49 5.0%
Total Recreation Fee $74.91 per month $78.66 per month $3.75 5.0%
Street Lighting
Street Lighting $4.85 per month | $5.09 per month | $0.24 5.0%
Total Minimum Monthly Fee Per Single Family Residence| $177.98 per month | $194.51 per month | $16.53 9.3%|

November 3, 2021
DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule Pag@'d@ﬂaﬁfeg_-mnthly



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Residential Fees: Tap & Other Fees
Water Tap Fee, Sewer Tap Fee, and Meter Set / Construction Water Fee must be paid at the time of the lot closing

2021 | Proposed 2022 | Difference
Tap Fees
Single Family
Tap Size Equivalent Water Tap Fee Sewer Tap Fee Total Tap Fee |Water Tap Fee Sewer Tap Fee Total Tap Fee S %
3/4" 1 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $18,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $19,000.00] $1,000.00 5.6%
1" 2 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $36,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $38,000.00] $2,000.00 5.6%
1-1/2" 4 Call for Quote Call for Quote
Other Fees

Meter set / Construction Water Fee $625.00 per connection $655.00 per connection $30.00 5.0%
Meter set Re-visit $250.00 per occurrence $250.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Water Service Turn OFF Fee $200.00 per occurrence $200.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Water service Turn ON Fee $150.00 per occurrence $150.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
30 Day Delinquent Payment Fee $35.00 per occurrence $35.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
60 Day Delinquent Payment Fee $100.00 per occurrence $100.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Return Check Fee $75.00 per occurrence $75.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Transfer of Account Fee $60.00 per occurrence $60.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Plan Check $25.00 per lot $25.00 per lot $0.00 0.0%
Inspection Fee $100.00 per lot $100.00 per lot $0.00 0.0%
Meter Tampering Penalty Fee $850.00 plus estimated usage $850.00 plus estimated usage $0.00 0.0%
Certification of Delinquent Account Fee $75.00 per occurrence $75.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%

Damage to District Property Fee Repair cost plus greater of $75 or 20% Repair cost plus greater of $75 or 20% No change

November 3, 2021

DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule

"y BY G DT Fees



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Meridian Ranch Recreation Center Program Fees

Group Fitness Classes
Childwatch Daily Drop-in
Guest Pass

Group Swim Lessons
Private Swim Lessons

Youth Sports Registration

Adult Sports Registration

Parent's Night Out

Summer Camp - Weekly

Summer Camp Before/After Care
Mini Camps

Group Fitness Classes
Childwatch Daily Drop-in
Guest Pass

Group Swim Lessons
Private Swim Lessons

Youth Sports Registration

Adult Sports Registration

Parent's Night Out

Summer Camp - Weekly

Summer Camp Before/After Care
Mini Camps

Business Card (3.5"x2") - Color

Business Card (3.5"x2") - B&W

1/6th page vertical - Color

%" page vertical - B&W

vt page - Color

v page - B&W

DRC 1 & 2 and Stonebridge HOA Flat Fee

November 3, 2021
DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule

2021 |

2022 Proposed

Members

Free
S5 Each / 10 for $30
S5 Each / 10 for $30
$80 Month (8 Lessons)
$30 Each / 4 for $80
$80 Session (6 Weeks, 1 Practice/1 Game
each week)
$20 Each
$200 Week (Monday - Friday 9a - 4p)
S5 Each (7a-9a / 4p-6p)
$25 Each

Free

S5 Each / 10 for $30

S5 Each / 10 for $30
$45 Month (4 Lessons)

S40 Each / 4 for $100

$80 Session (8 Weeks, 1 Practice/1 Game
each week)
$100 Session (8 Weeks)
$20/first child, $15 each additional
$200 Week (Monday - Friday 9a - 4p)
S5 Each (7a-9a / 4p-6p)
$25 Each

Non-Members

S5 Each / 10 for $30
$7.50 Each / 10 for $50
N/A
$100 Month (8 Lessons)
$40 Each / 4 for $100
$100 Session (6 Weeks, 1 Practice/1
Game each week)
$25 Each
$250 Week (Monday - Friday 9a - 4p)
$6.50 Each (7a-9a / 4p-6p)
$30 Each

S5 Each / 10 for $30
$7.50 Each / 10 for $50
N/A
S55 Month (4 Lessons)
S50 Each / 4 for $120
$100 Session (8 Weeks, 1 Practice/1
Game each week)
$120 Session (8 Weeks)
S25/first child, $20 each additional
$250 Week (Monday - Friday 9a - 4p)
$6.50 Each (7a-9a / 4p-6p)
$30 Each

Newsletter Ad

vertising Fees

2021 2022 Proposed
$35.00 $36.75
$30.00 $31.50
$50.00 $52.50
$45.00 $47.25
$70.00 $73.50
$60.00 $63.00
$80.00 $84.00

[Eh&ga@r@,q_me*ﬂ’@g?%@ Fees



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Commercial Fees - Monthly
Meters used for irrigation only, using treated water, will be charged the base fees for Water Resource and Water Usage based on the meter size and consumption based on allotment.

2021 | 2022 Proposed [ Difference
Water
Water Resource Fee Based on Water Meter Size / SFE
Water Meter Size Single Family Equivalent Water Resource fee Water Resource fee S %
3/4" 1 $33.36 Per Month $35.03 Per Month $1.67 5.0%
1" 2 $66.73 Per Month $70.06 Per Month $3.34  5.0%
11/2" 4 $133.45 Per Month $140.12 Per Month $6.67 5.0%
2" 8 $266.90 Per Month $280.25 Per Month $13.35 5.0%
3" 18 $600.53 Per Month $630.56 Per Month $30.03 5.0%
4" 36 $1,201.07 Per Month $1,261.12 Per Month $60.05 5.0%
6" 94 $3,136.12 Per Month $3,292.93 Per Month $156.81 5.0%
Water Usage Fee Based on Water Meter Size / SFE plus water use above monthly allotment
Water Meter Size Single Family Equivalent Water Use fee Water Use fee
3/4" 1 $42.26 Plus usage above 5,000 gallons $44.37 Plus usage above 5,000 gallons $2.11  5.0%
1" 2 $84.52 Plus usage above 10,000 gallons $88.75 Plus usage above 10,000 gallons $4.23  5.0%
11/2" 4 $169.04 Plus usage above 20,000 gallons $177.49 Plus usage above 20,000 gallons $8.45  5.0%
2" 8 $338.08 Plus usage above 40,000 gallons $354.98 Plus usage above 40,000 gallons $16.90 5.0%
3" 18 $760.68 Plus usage above 90,000 gallons $798.71 Plus usage above 90,000 gallons $38.03 5.0%
4" 36 $1,521.35 Plus usage above 180,000 gallons $1,597.42 Plus usage above 180,000 gallons $76.07  5.0%
6" 94 $3,972.42 Plus usage above 470,000 gallons $4,171.04 Plus usage above 470,000 gallons $198.62  5.0%
DOMESTIC WATER USAGE FEE FOR WATER OVER ALLOTMENT
Water Usage Fee For Monthly Allotment Water $8.49 per 1,000 gallons $8.92 per 1,000 gallons $0.42  5.0%
Water Usage Fee Over Allotment to 2X Over Monthly Allotment $10.62 per 1,000 gallons $11.15 per 1,000 gallons $0.53 5.0%
Water Usage Fee 2X to 3X Over Monthly Allotment $13.55 per 1,000 gallons $14.22 per 1,000 gallons $0.68  5.0%
Water Usage Fee Over 3X Over Monthly Allotment $17.95 per 1,000 gallons $18.84 per 1,000 gallons $0.90 5.0%
IRRIGATION WATER USAGE FEE FOR WATER OVER ALLOTMENT
Water Usage Fee For Monthly Allotment Water $8.49 per 1,000 gallons $8.92 per 1,000 gallons $0.42  5.0%
Water Usage Fee Over Allotment to 2X Over Monthly Allotment $10.62 per 1,000 gallons $11.15 per 1,000 gallons $0.53  5.0%
Water Usage Fee 2X to 3X Over Monthly Allotment $13.55 per 1,000 gallons $14.22 per 1,000 gallons $0.68  5.0%
Water Usage Fee Over 3X Over Monthly Allotment $17.95 per 1,000 gallons $18.84 per 1,000 gallons $0.90 5.0%
North Channel Diversion water Bulk $0.96 per 1,000 gallons $1.01 per 1,000 gallons $0.05  5.0%
Non-potable Bulk (other) $3.54 per 1,000 gallons $3.72 per 1,000 gallons $0.18  5.0%
Raw Water Bulk $3.29 per 1,000 gallons $3.45 per 1,000 gallons $0.16  5.0%
Potable Water Bulk (plus water resource fee based on meter size) $8.49 per 1,000 gallons $8.92 per 1,000 gallons $0.42  5.0%
Out of District Potable Water Bulk 1.5 Times above Fee 1.5 Times above Fee No change
Sewer
Rate per 1,000 Gallons of Potable Water Usage $9.50 $9.50 $0.00 0.0%
MSMD Clean Water Surcharge per SFE N/A $10.00 $10.00 100.0%

November 3, 2021

DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule Pag ecﬁﬁereyfFéEq@onthly



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Commercial Fees - Monthly
Meters used for irrigation only, using treated water, will be charged the base fees for Water Resource and Water Usage based on the meter size and

2021 | 2022 Proposed | Difterence
Landscape Drainage Fee Based on Water Meter Size / SFE Landscape Drainage (Open space, Trails, Entry Features and Drainage)
Water Meter Size Single Family Equivalent
3/4" 1 $19.31 Per Month $20.28  Per Month $0.97 5.0%
1" 2 $38.67 Per Month $40.60 Per Month $1.93 5.0%
11/2" 4 $77.29 Per Month $81.16  Per Month $3.86 5.0%
2" 8 $154.58 Per Month $162.31 Per Month $7.73 5.0%
3" 18 $347.83 Per Month $365.23  Per Month $17.39 5.0%
4" 36 $695.67 Per Month $730.45 Per Month $34.78 5.0%
6" 94 $1,816.41 Per Month $1,907.23 Per Month $90.82 5.0%
Street Lighting Fee Based on Water Meter Size / SFE Street Lighting
Water Meter Size Single Family Equivalent
3/4" 1 $4.85 Per Month $5.10  Per Month S0.24 5.0%
1" 2 $9.71 Per Month $10.19  Per Month $0.49 5.0%
11/2" 4 $19.41 Per Month $20.38 Per Month $0.97 5.0%
2" 8 $38.72 Per Month $40.66  Per Month $1.94 5.0%
3" 18 $87.15 Per Month $91.51  Per Month $4.36 5.0%
4" 36 $174.30 Per Month $183.01 Per Month $8.71 5.0%
6" 94 $455.15 Per Month $477.91 Per Month $22.76 5.0%

November 3, 2021
DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule Ffa@l@e@gl I@fslfﬂ@thly



Tap Fees For Fire Service Lines are Excluded

Tap Size Single Family Equivalent
3/4" 1
1" 2
11/2" 4
2" 8
3" 18
4" 36
6" 94

Meter set / Construction Water Fee
Meter set Re-visit

Water Service Turn OFF Fee

Water service Turn ON Fee

30 Day Delinquent Payment Fee

60 Day Delinquent Payment Processing Fee
Return Check Fee

Transfer of Account Fee

Plan Check

Inspection Fee

Meter Tampering Penalty Fee
Certification of Delinquent Account Fee
Damage to District Property Fee

November 3, 2021

DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Commercial Tap & Other Fees
Water and Sewer Tap fees along with the meter set / construction water fee for every lot must be paid at the time of the lot closing

2021 Proposed 2022 | Difference
Tap Fees (Potable & Non Potable)
Water Tap fee Sewer Tap Fee Total Tap Fee [|Water Tap fee Sewer Tap Fee Total Tap Fee S %
$9,000.00 $9,000.00 $18,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $19,000.00 $1,000.00 5.6%
$18,000.00 $18,000.00 $36,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $38,000.00 $2,000.00 5.6%
$36,000.00 $36,000.00 $72,000.00 $38,000.00 $38,000.00 $76,000.00 $4,000.00 5.6%
$72,000.00 $72,000.00 $144,000.00 $76,000.00 $76,000.00 $152,000.00 $8,000.00 5.6%
$162,000.00 $162,000.00 $324,000.00 $171,000.00 $171,000.00 $342,000.00 | $18,000.00 5.6%
$324,000.00  $324,000.00  $648,000.00 | $342,000.00 $342,000.00  $684,000.00 | $36,000.00 5.6%
$846,000.00 $846,000.00 $1,692,000.00 $893,000.00 $893,000.00 $1,786,000.00 | $94,000.00 5.6%
Other Fees
$625.00 per connection $655.00 per connection $30.00 4.8%
$250.00 per occurrence $250.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
$200.00 per occurrence $200.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
$150.00 per occurrence $150.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
$35.00 per occurrence $35.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
$100.00 per occurrence $100.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
$75.00 per occurrence $75.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
$60.00 per occurrence $60.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
$25.00 per Lot $25.00 per Lot $0.00 0.0%
$100.00 per Lot $100.00 per Lot $0.00 0.0%
$850.00 Plus Estimated Usage $850.00 Plus Estimated Usage $0.00 0.0%
$75.00 Per Occurrence $75.00 Per Occurrence $S0.00 0.0%
Repair cost plus greater of $75 or 20% Repair cost plus greater of $75 or 20% No change

Paiger8! o IoFe Fees



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Latigo Trails - Monthly, Tap & Other Fees Per Single Family Residence

2021 | 2022 Proposed | Ditterence
Water
Water Resource fee $50.04 Per Month $52.55 Per Month $2.51 5.0%
Water Use fee $26.16 Per Month $27.47 Per Month $1.31 5.0%
Excess Water Usage Fee If Exceed The Included 5,000 Gallons Per Month
5,000 to 10,000 gallons per Mnth $6.82 Per 1,000 gallons $7.17 Per 1,000 gallons $0.35 5.1%
10,001 to 15,000 gallons per Mnth $7.96 Per 1,000 gallons $8.36 Per 1,000 gallons $0.40 5.0%
15,001 to 20,000 gallons per Mnth $10.99 Per 1,000 gallons $11.55 Per 1,000 gallons $0.56 5.1%
20,001 to 30,000 gallons per Mnth $29.57 Per 1,000 gallons $31.05 Per 1,000 gallons $1.48 5.0%
Over 30,000 gallons per Mnth $35.64 Per 1,000 gallons $37.43 Per 1,000 gallons $1.79 5.0%
Tap Fee
Tap Size Single Family Equivalent Water Tap fee Water Tap fee
3/4" 1 $13,500.00 $14,250.00
1" 2 $27,000.00 $28,500.00
11/2" 4
2" 8
3" 18 Call for quote Call for quote
4" 36
6" 94
All 292 taps have been purchased; some taps have not yet been activated. At the time
of activation, additional charges will apply.
Other Fees
Meter set / Construction Water Fee $937.50 per connection $982.50 per connection $45.00 4.8%
Meter set Re-visit $375.00 per occurrence $375.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Water Service Turn OFF Fee $300.00 per occurrence $300.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Water Service Turn ON Fee $225.00 per occurrence $225.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
30 Day Delinquent Payment Fee $52.50 per occurrence $52.50 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
60 Day Delinquent Payment Fee $150.00 per occurrence $150.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Return Check Fee $112.50 per occurrence $112.50 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Transfer of Account Fee $90.00 per occurrence $90.00 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Plan Check $37.50 per lot $37.50 per lot $0.00 0.0%
Inspection Fee $150.00 per lot $150.00 per lot $0.00 0.0%
Meter Tampering Penalty Fee $1,275.00 Plus Estimated Usage $1,275.00 Plus Estimated Usage $0.00 0.0%
Certification of Delinquent Account Fee $112.50 per occurrence $112.50 per occurrence $0.00 0.0%
Damage to District Property Fee|Repair cost plus greater of $75 or 20% Repair cost plus greater of $75 or 20% No change

November 3, 2021

DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule Page 68 0#'@7@5 Fees



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Bulk Water Rates
2021 2022 Proposed Difference

Minimum Monthly usage fee up to 40,0000 gallons $318.47 $334.39 $15.92 5.0%
40,001 gallons - 100,000 gallons

In District Usage $4.25 Per 1,000 Gallons S4.46 Per 1,000 Gallons $0.21 5.0%

Out of District Usage $6.40 Per 1,000 Gallons $6.72 Per 1,000 Gallons $0.32 5.0%
Above 100,000 gallons of usage

In District Usage $8.00 Per 1,000 Gallons $8.40 Per 1,000 Gallons S0.40 5.0%

Out of District Usage| $12.00 Per 1,000 Gallons $12.60 Per 1,000 Gallons S0.60 5.0%

A $1,000 deposit is required along with a hydrant use permit filled out prior to being allowed to utilize water from a hydrant. Any hydrant
meter not turned in by the end of use date filed on the hydrant use permit application will be charged the monthly minimum fee along with a
$30 per day rental fee that will be added to the final bill and or taken out of the deposit fee. Damage to the hydrant and or hydrant meter and
apparatus will be added to the final bill and or deducted from the deposit.

November 3, 2021
DRAFT - Meridian Service Metro District 2022 Fee Schedule Page 69ubfvj_f?l(§(ates



MSMD Operations Report for October 2021

As October ends, water demand continues to decrease. LFH-1 is back in the ground but
still needs additional effort prior to bringing that well site water into the system. During
October, Latigo briefly feed into the system but is currently turned off. The generator has been
removed from well site 7. Guthrie Ranch wells are still being utilized, allowing on-site wells to
be rested. Water operations completed the monthly Bac-T and monitoring plan sampling per
CDPHE requirements. Monthly water meter reads were collected on 10-26-21.

Parks and drainage continued weekly pond inspections and removed trash collected in
the drainage channels as needed. Winterization of the irrigation system began mid-month and
will continue in the upcoming weeks. During the winterization process crews have been diligent
about proper zone identification and labeling. Years of adding zones and lack of clear
identification continue to be corrected by keeping irrigation winterization in house. Four or five
zones are still on to feed late plantings but have heaters to help avoid damage to the backflow.
Londonderry and Meridian entry monument sod is one of the areas that is still on. The recently
purchased dump trailer has come in handy several times. From hauling a replacement slide to
hauling dirt to and from a water service repair to removing loads of dead trees.

Staff performed weekly infiltration gallery inspections and recorded water level logging
data. Monthly flow measurement and calculations were collected on 10-20-21. Minimal
moisture continues to keep water levels down.

The irrigation pond intake remains plugged and the temporary bypass fill line able to
maintain golf course irrigation water demand. A floating intake installation is underway but
requires draining the pond and installing a float for the intake. As the pond level remains low
for future repairs. Once drained, remaining algae will be raked up and removed.

Wastewater operations completed weekly composite sampling and drop off to
Cherokee for testing. Weekly Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) and Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) samples
were collected along with weekly sewer flow meter inspections. Sewer line cleaning continued
to the gravity system. The combo truck was used to empty the manhole septic tank at the filter
plant. The new flow meter at Blaney Road connection to Cherokee installed on 9-8-21, needs
additional trouble shooting due to a flow volume discrepancy between pumped vs released. A
factory tech from Macrometer will be down to provide us with some assistance on 11-9-21.
Cherokee is aware of the issue and in the interim, the force main flow meter will be used for
O&M treatment billing purposes. Falcon lift station influent meter channel adjustments are
completed and represent a more accurate incoming flow rate.

Page 70 of 170



Upcoming or continued water tasks:
o+ Monthly-meterreading-{completed-9-28-21)
o Well site #7 test-{work-continues-week-of Sept—9¥)
Lot el cite tg I ", leted)
o+ Annualgeneratorservice-{completed-10-26-21)
& New chlorine monitors programming (scheduled for 10-28-21)
e Filter plant fiber switch over from cellular (completed week of 10-18-21).

Upcoming or continued parks and drainage:
e Continue irrigation repairs/testing (in progress)
o+ Annual-backflow-testing{completed)
e Continue fence repairs (in progress)
e Mulch/rock replacement in planter beds (in progress)
e Dead tree removal (in progress)

Upcoming or continued wastewater tasks:
e Sewer force main air vac maintenance/vault inspections (in progress)
S : in £l I E | 1
Lie ond " I T
¢ Infiltration pit maintenance (pending weather, in progress)
e Infiltration pit logger installs (2) (pending weather, in progress)
e Begin recruitment for vacant wastewater position (in progress)

+—Annualgeneratorservice {completed 10-26-21}

Page 71 of 170



November 3rd, 2021 Recreation Board Report

Usage Numbers October 1-27, 2021

Total Attendance — 7807
Group Ex — 700 participants. Of those we received $431 from non-members
Childcare attendance - 249

Revenue collected - $8,860.00

Pulse Check:

The recreation center has been steady, and we have been prepping for end of year
activities and indoor programming.

We are currently running a basketball mini season for young children while registration is
open for indoor soccer. Indoor soccer will begin In November and run for 7 weeks. We have
added dance classes and musical theater and are having great participation. Swim lessons are still
occurring and have strong participation.

Bids have been submitted for the front desk lobby remodel and locker room lighting
upgrade. A contract for this project will be discussed at this meeting.

The Fall market held at the MRRC parking lot was a great success with well over 1000
people attending. Parking was tough but the community made it work with parking in the
neighborhood.

We have a new 14.5-foot blue spruce installed behind our monument sign. This will
become our new Christmas Tree for the community tree lighting. The outdoor pool was
winterized, and everything went smoothly.

Our annual Trunk or Treat event is on Saturday October 30" from 1-3pm. After the trunk
or treat we will be planning for festival of trees and cookies with Santa.

Page 72 of 170



EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Adopted January 1, 2022

Page 73 of 170



Welcome to The District!

Starting a new job is exciting, but at times can be overwhelming. This Employee
Handbook has been developed to help you become acquainted with the District and
answer many of your initial questions.

As an employee of the District, you are very important. Your contribution cannot be
overstated. Our goal is to provide the finest-quality services to our customers and to do
so efficiently and economically.

You are an important part of this process because your work directly influences our
District's reputation.

We are glad you have joined us, and we hope you will find your work to be both
challenging and rewarding.

Sincerely,

Jim Nikkel

General Manager

Organization & Authority (as adopted by MSMD Resolution 18-1)

The Meridian Service Metropolitan District (the “District”) is a Special District in EI Paso
County, Colorado. This District was established in accordance with Colorado Revised
Statutes Sections 32-1-101 et seq. Responsibility for governance lies with a Board of
Directors elected by electors within the District. The District Board of Directors establishes
policy for the District and has other responsibilities as specified in Colorado Revised
Statutes Section 32-1-101. The Board of Directors appoints the General Manager who
shall conduct the affairs of the District in accordance with Board policy and Colorado law.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook [
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 74 of 170



Contents

1.0 A Word About ThisS HaNADOOK ............cciviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 1
1.1 ACEWIll EMPIOYMENT. ... 1
1.2 Equal Employment OPPOrtUNILY.......coiiicerieeeiiicie ettt e e e e e e e e e 2
1.3 A Word About our Employee Relations Philosophy.............cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiies 2
1.4 NO HAIASSIMENT ...ttt e e e e et ettt e e e e e e e eetaba e e e eeaeas 2
1.5 Categories Of EMPIOYMENT........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4
1.6  Driver's License/Driving RECOI .......c..cooi ittt e et a s 5
1.7  Certification, Licensing and Other ReqUIremMEeNnts ...........cceeeiieeiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5
1.8  Immigration Reform and CONrol ACE.............uuuuuumnueiiiiiiieiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeenaeees 5
1.9  New EMPIoyee Orientation ............iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e eee et e et e e e e e e erar e e e e 5
0 O 1= 17 o T 5

2.0  YOUr PAy @nd PrOgrESS .....cciiiiiiiiiiiii e eee e eeiiie s s e e e et e s e e e e e e e e eat s s e e e e e e e easttaaaaaeaaeeannnes 7
2.1 ReCOrding YOUI TIME ..cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt 7
2.2 PaycheCK DEAUCHIONS ......coouiiiiiii i e et s e e e e e e s e aaat e e e eeaeeennne 7
2.3 Garnishment/Child SUPPOIT.......cooiiiiiiiiiii e 7
A B T (= Tox g =T o To 1 | A SSPPPPRRRPIN 8
2.5  PerformManCe REVIEWS.........uuuuuiiiieieii it e et et s e e e e e e e eeaetaa s s e e e aeeeeaassnnaasaaaaeeennnes 8
P22 ST [0 o T B 1YY od o] 110 1< PRSPPI 8
2.7 PAy AOVANCES.......ccoiiiiiiiiiie e 8
P2 S T © 1Y/ 1 10 1= PP 8
2 T O | o 2 | SRSPPPRRPN 8

3.0 Time Away From Work and Other BENefitS.........ccoooieieiiiieeeeeee e 9
3.1 EMPIOYEE BENEFILS . ... e aaaaaaan 9
3.2 HONAAYS ... 9
G0 T (o= 1119 Vo [l o] o F= V£ T SRPPPPRPPIN 9
G Vo= Lo ] 1SRRI 9
3.5  Sick Leave (see MSMD ReSOIULION 21-1).....cccciiiiiiiiiiieie ettt e e e e eaeees 10
3.8 JUNY DIULY oottt e e et e e e et e e e a b eeaeeenane 13
T A o 11 o == Y SSPRPRRR 13
3.8 MIlITANY LEAVE.....ccoiiiiiiiiieeeee e 13
3.9 Volunteer FIrefighter LEAVE ......ccooo i e e e e e e e e eeeees 14
3.10 Emergency Civil Air Patrol LEAVE..........cccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 14
3.11 Volunteer Civil Defense WOrker LEAVE..........cooi i 14
312 WILNESS LBAVE ..covvieiii ittt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e ettt e e s e e e e e e eeaaaaaanaeeaeeeannnes 15
3.13  BEreaVEMENT LEAVE ... ittt e et e e e aa s 15

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook i

DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 75 of 170



3.14  VictimS Of CriME LBAVE ....coeiiiiiii e ettt e e e e e e e e ettt a s e e e e e e eeeeaaanaaeeeaaeeeennes 15
3.15 Employee Assistance Program (EAP) ... 15
3.16  MedICAl INSUIANCE......eeeieeeeiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e ettt a e e e e e e e e eeeaaanaaeeeeaeeennnes 16
.17  Dental INSUMANCE.......cciiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 16
G 00 T 1 = [ F{ U = g o] P SSPRPRPR 16
319 SECHON 125 PIANS .....ciiiiiiiiiiiiee 17
3.20 Short-Term Disability INSUIANCE ..........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e 17
3.21 Pregnancy ACCOMMOUALION .......ceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 18
3.22  UNemploymMENTt INSUFBINCE .....uuuii e eeieieiiiicee e e e e e et e s e e e e e e e e ettt e s s e e e e e e easataaaasaeaaeeennnes 19
3.23  WOrkers’ COmMPENSAtiON.........uuiiii it eeee ettt ie e e e e e et e s e e e e e e e eeeaaenaaeeeaeeeeenne 19
3.24  RetireMeNnt PIANS .......coooiiiiiiiiii e 19
3.25 Family and MediCal LEAVE ...........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 19
4.0 ONtNE JOD... 26
4.1  Wage DiSCIOSUIE PrOtECHION ... ..uuuieietiiiittiueteeieieeeeeeesaseeeeseseeeeeeeeeeassssbeeeeeeenseennneneennnnnes 26
4.2  Attendance and PUNCIUANLY ..........oouiiiiiiiiiii it e e e eeaa s 26
G T VT I T T PP 26
I T (- 1 26
T I Vo = 1[0 g T = T (== 1 PP 26
v/ B IS =Yg Lo F= T o KSR o) S @] o 11 od Ao 27
4.7  ACCESS 10 PersONNEl FilES.......ccciiieiiiiiii et e e e 27
4.8  Customer and PUDIIC REIALIONS ..........uuuuuueueereiiiiieiiiieieeenenenneeeneeeeeneeeeneeerenrnnenenees 28
e T N[0 o B0 Yo 1o | = [0 o P 28
o O T 1 1 1 114 [0 o PR 28
4,11 Changes in Personal Datal............cuuuiiiiiiieiiieeiie e e e 29
4.12  Care Of EQUIPIMIENT . ..eieitiiiittiiiitiieteeeeeeeiee ettt e ettt b e 29
G T I T 114 o3 Y= o = 29
4.14 EmMPIoymeENt Of REIATIVES .........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieiibeeeebseee bbb eeeneeeeneeseennnnne 29
4.15 Travel/EXPENSE ACCOUNLS .......cceiiiiiiiiiiiei e e eee e eeettiee e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e as it aaeeeeeeeaneaaannes 30
4.16  PeISONAI PrOPEITY ..euiieiiiiiitiiiteteeetteeteeeeeeeeeteee ettt e et e ettt 30
4.17 1dentification BaOQgES.......uuuiiiii it a 30
418  SEVEIE WERALNET ... ..ccciiieeeii et e e e e e e e e 30
4.19 Personal Telephone CallS ... e 31
4.20 Acceptable Use of Electronic CommUNICALIONS ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiieie e 31
421 E-mail (added by MSMD ReSOIUtION 19-2) ....coouiiiiiiii e 33
S Yo ol = |1 =T [ PSP 34
4.23  BriNG YOUI OWN DEVICE.....uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiititttietsaetssesaseseesssssessseessaesssssessssssssesssssnennnnnes 35
Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook iii

DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 76 of 170



4.24  Security Of EIECIIONIC DEVICES. ......uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeiieeeesbsseeseseeeeensseseeessnenseeenneneennnnee 35
4,25 DIESS POICY ..cuiiiii it aaa e 36
o S I = (=] €= Lo = O 1= o &SRR 36
4.27 Protecting District INfOrmation .............coiiiiiiiiiici e e 36
4.28 Releasing Information (as adopted by MSMD Resolution 18-1) .............euvvveemieminennnnnne 37
4.29 Conflict of INterest/Code Of ENICS .......uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeneeeineaeerrereeree. 37
4.30 Contact With the MEAIA .......coi i e e e e 38
4.31  IFYOU MUSE LEAVE US....coiiiiiiie ettt s e e e e e e eeee e e e e e e e e eeenennnnns 38
5.0 Safety in the WOIKPIACE.........cooeeiiiiii it e e e e 39
5.1 Each Employee's ReSPONSIDIlILY .......ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 39
5.2 WOIKPIACE VIOIENCE ... e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e eanees 39
5.3  WOrKplace SEArCNES.........cooviiiiiiiiiii i 40
5.4  Hazard COMMUNICALION ......cceiiiiiiiiiiiieieee ettt 40
R I CToloTo l o [0 11 K] (=TT o] o [o IR PP PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPP 40
5.6  NOWeapons in the WOIKPIACE..........oeuiiiiiie ittt e e e e aanees 40
5.7  Environmental COMPlIANCE .......ccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 41
5.8  Political Activity (as adopted by MSMD Resolution 18-1) .........cccceeveeeiiiiiiiiiiiinieeeeeeeenns 41
5.9  Alcohol and Drug Policy (as adopted by MSMD Resolution 18-1) ...........ccccvvvvvvviennnnn. 41
Receipt of Employee Handbook and Employment-At-Will Statement..............ccccoeeeeeiiiiiiiniinnnnn. 43
Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook \Y

DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 77 of 170



1.0 A Word About This Handbook

This Employee Handbook contains information about the employment policies and
practices of the District. We expect each employee to read this Employee Handbook
carefully, as it is a valuable reference for understanding your job and the District. The
policies outlined in this Employee Handbook should be regarded as management
guidelines only, which in a developing business will require changes from time to time.
The District retains the right to make decisions involving employment as needed in order
to conduct its work in a manner that is beneficial to the employees and the District. This
Employee Handbook supersedes and replaces any and all prior Employee Handbooks
and any inconsistent verbal or written policy statements. Decisions of the Board of
Directors of the District override this Employee Handbook.

The District complies with federal and state law and this handbook generally reflects those
laws. The District also complies with any applicable local laws, even though there may
not be an express written policy contained in the handbook.

Except for the policy of at-will employment, the District reserves the right to revise, delete
and add to the provisions of this Employee Handbook at any time without further notice.
All such revisions, deletions or additions to the Employee Handbook must be in writing
and must be signed by the general manager of the District. No oral statements or
representations can change the provisions of this Employee Handbook.

The provisions of this Employee Handbook are not intended to create contractual
obligations with respect to any matters it covers. Nor is this Employee Handbook intended
to create a contract guaranteeing that you will be employed for any specific time period.
Any agreement to employment for a specified period of time will be put into writing and
signed by the General Manager of the District.

Nothing in this Employee Handbook is intended to unlawfully restrict an employee'’s right
to engage in any of the rights guaranteed them by Section 7 of the National Labor
Relations Act, including but not limited to, the right to engage in concerted protected
activity for the purposes of their mutual aid and/or protection. Nothing in this Employee
Handbook will be interpreted, applied or enforced to interfere with, restrain or coerce
employees in the exercise of Section 7 rights.

1.1  At-Will Employment

Our district is an at-will employer. This means that regardless of any provision in this
Employee Handbook, either you or the District may terminate the employment
relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without cause or notice. Nothing in this
Employee Handbook or in any document or statement, written or oral, shall limit the right
to terminate employment at-will. No officer, employee or representative of the District is
authorized to enter into an agreement — express or implied — with any employee for
employment for a specified period of time unless such an agreement is in a written
contract signed by the General Manager of the District.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 1
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 78 of 170



This Employee Handbook refers to current benefit plans maintained by the District. Refer
to the actual plan documents and summary plan descriptions if you have specific
guestions regarding the benefit plan. Those documents are controlling.

Likewise, if a written contract is inconsistent with the Employee Handbook, the written
contract is controlling.

1.2 Equal Employment Opportunity

Our District is committed to equal employment opportunity. We will not discriminate
against employees or applicants for employment on any legally—recognized basis
[“protected class”] under federal, state, or local law, including, but not limited to: race;
creed; color; religion; genetic information; national origin; ancestry; sex; sexual orientation
(including gender identity); pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions; age (40
and older); disability; citizenship status; engaging in lawful activity off premises during
nonworking hours, consumer credit information and discussion of employee wages; or

uniform servicemember status;-or-any-otherprotected-class-underfederalstate-orlocal

You may discuss equal employment opportunity related questions with Human
Resources or any other designated member of management.

1.3 A Word About our Employee Relations Philosophy

We are committed to providing the best possible climate for maximum development and
goal achievement for all employees. Our practice is to treat each employee as an
individual. We seek to develop a spirit of teamwork; individuals working together to attain
a common goal.

In order to maintain an atmosphere where these goals can be accomplished, we provide
a comfortable and progressive workplace. Most importantly, we have a workplace where
communication is open and problems can be discussed and resolved in a mutually
respectful atmosphere. We take into account individual circumstances and the individual
employee.

We firmly believe that with direct communication, we can continue to resolve any
difficulties that may arise and develop a mutually beneficial relationship.

1.4 No Harassment

We prohibit harassment of one employee by another employee, supervisor or third party
for any reason based upon_the protected classes listed in Section 1.2-anindividualsrace;

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 2
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 79 of 170



Violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate
discharge.

If you have any questions about what constitutes harassing behavior or what conduct is
prohibited by this policy, please discuss the questions with a member of management or
one of the contacts listed in this policy. At a minimum, the term “harassment” as used in
this policy includes any of the following activities pertaining to an individual’s protected
class:

e Offensive remarks, comments, jokes, slurs, threats, or verbal conduct.

e Offensive pictures, drawings, photographs, figurines, writings, or other graphic
images, conduct, or communications, including text messages, instant messages,
websites, voicemails, social media postings, e-mails, faxes, and copies.

e Offensive sexual remarks, sexual advances, or requests for sexual favors
regardless of the gender of the individuals involved; and

e Offensive physical conduct, including touching and gestures, regardless of the
gender of the individuals involved.

We also absolutely prohibit retaliation, which includes threatening an individual or taking
any adverse action against an individual for (1) reporting a possible violation of this policy,
or (2) participating in an investigation conducted under this policy.

All members of management are covered by this policy and are prohibited from engaging
in any form of harassing, discriminatory, or retaliatory conduct. No member of
management has the authority to suggest to any applicant or employee that employment
or advancement will be affected by the individual entering into (or refusing to enter into)
a personal relationship with any member of management, or for tolerating (or refusing to
tolerate) conduct or communication that might violate this policy. Such conduct is a direct
violation of this policy.

Even non-employees are covered by this policy. We prohibit harassment, discrimination,
or retaliation of our employees in connection with their work by non-employees.
Immediately report any harassing or discriminating behavior by non-employees, including
vendors, customers, and employees of contractors or subcontractors. Any employee who
experiences or observes harassment, discrimination, or retaliation should report it using
the steps listed below.

If you have any concern that our No Harassment policy may have been violated by
anyone, you must immediately report the matter. Due to the very serious nature of

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 3
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 80 of 170



harassment, discrimination and retaliation, you must report your concerns to (one of) the
individual(s) listed below:

1. Eileen Krauth, Human Resources Specialist at (719) 495-6567, 11886 Stapleton
Drive, Falcon, CO 80831 or e.krauth@meridianservice.org.

2. Jim Nikkel, General Manager at (719) 495-6567, 11886 Stapleton Drive, Falcon,
CO 80831 or j.nikkel@meridianservice.org.

If an employee makes a report to any person listed above and that person either does not
respond or does not respond in a manner the employee deems satisfactory or consistent
with this policy, the employee is required to report the situation to one of the other persons
on the list above to receive complaints.

You should report any actions that you believe may violate our policy no matter how slight
the actions may seem.

We will investigate the report and then take prompt, appropriate remedial action. The
District will protect the confidentiality of employees reporting suspected violations to the
extent possible consistent with our investigation.

You will not be penalized or retaliated against for reporting improper conduct,
harassment, discrimination, retaliation, or other actions that you believe may violate this

policy.

We are serious about enforcing our policy against harassment. Persons who violate this
or any other District policy are subject to discipline, up to and including discharge. We
cannot resolve a potential policy violation unless we know about it. You are responsible
for reporting possible policy violations to us so that we can take appropriate actions to
address your concerns.

1.5 Categories of Employment

For purposes of this handbook, FULL TIME EMPLOYEES regularly work at least a 30-
hour workweek. For other purposes, such as eligibility for health care benefits, the
definition of FULL TIME EMPLOYEES may be different.

PART TIME EMPLOYEES work less than 30 hours each week.

In addition to the preceding categories, employees are also categorized as "exempt" or
"non-exempt."

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 4
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 81 of 170



NON-EXEMPT EMPLOYEES are entitled to overtime pay as required by applicable
federal and state law.

EXEMPT EMPLOYEES are not entitled to overtime pay and may also be exempt from
minimum wage requirements pursuant to applicable federal and state laws.

Upon hire, your supervisor will inform you of your employment classification.

1.6 Driver's License/Driving Record

Employees in positions where the operation of a motor vehicle is an essential duty of the
position must present and maintain a valid driver's license and acceptable driving record
to our insurer. Changes in your driving record must be reported to your supervisor
immediately. Violations of this policy may result in immediate termination of your
employment.

1.7 Certification, Licensing and Other Requirements

You will be informed by your supervisor if there are any licensing, certification or testing
requirements for your job. Failure to qualify or to maintain a certification or license may
be sufficient cause for discharge.

1.8 Immigration Reform and Control Act

In compliance with the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), as
amended, and any state law requirements, if applicable, our District is committed to
employing only individuals who are authorized to work in the United States.

Each new employee, as a condition of employment, must complete the Employment
Eligibility Verification Form 1-9 and present documentation establishing identity and
employment eligibility.

If an employee is authorized to work in this country for a limited time period, the individual
will be required to submit proof of renewed employment eligibility prior to expiration of
that period to remain employed by the District.

1.9 New Employee Orientation

Upon joining our District, you were given this copy of our Employee Handbook. After
reading this Employee Handbook please sign the receipt page and return it to Human
Resources. You will be asked to complete personnel, payroll and if applicable, benefit
forms.

If you lose your copy of the Employee Handbook, or if it becomes damaged in any way,
please notify Human Resources as soon as possible to obtain a replacement copy.

The operations of your department are the responsibility of your supervisor. {S}he-Your
supervisor is a good source of information about the District and your job.

1.10 Talkto Us

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 5
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 82 of 170



We encourage you to bring your questions, suggestions and complaints to our attention.
We will carefully consider each of these in our continuing effort to improve operations.

If you feel you have a problem, present the situation to your supervisor so that the problem
can be settled by examination and discussion of the facts. We hope that your supervisor
will be able to satisfactorily resolve most matters.

If you still have questions after meeting with your supervisor or if you would like further
clarification on the matter, request a meeting with Human Resources—{Syhe-, who will
review the issues and meet with you to discuss possible solutions.

Finally, if you still believe that your problem has not been fairly or fully addressed, request
a meeting with the General Manager.

Your suggestions and comments on any subject are important, and we encourage you to
take every opportunity to discuss them with us. Your job will not be adversely affected in
any way because you choose to use this procedure.

If at any time you do not feel comfortable speaking with your supervisor or the next level
of management, discuss your concern with any other member of management with whom
you feel comfortable.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 6
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 83 of 170



2.0 Your Pay and Progress

2.1 Recording Your Time

Non-exempt employees must record their hours on our timekeeping system.

Accurately recording all of your time is required in order to be sure that you are paid for
all hours worked. You are expected to follow the established procedures in keeping an
accurate record of your hours worked. Time must be recorded as follows:

» Immediately before starting your shift.

* Immediately after finishing work, before your meal period.

* Immediately before resuming work, after your meal period.

* Immediately after finishing work.

* Immediately before and after any other time away from work.

Exempt employees may be required to accurately record their time worked in accordance
with federal and state wage and hour law.

All employees subiject to this policy are required to accurately record all time worked.
The workweek starts on Sunday and ends on Saturday.

2.2 Paycheck Deductions

The District is required by law to make certain mandatory deductions from your paycheck
each pay period. Mandatory deductions typically include federal and state taxes, and
retirement plan contributions. All deductions and the amount of the deductions are listed
on your pay stub. These deductions are totaled each year for you on your Form W-2,
Wage and Tax Statement.

The District will not make deductions to an employee's pay which are prohibited by state
or federal law or regulation, including those established by the United States Department
of Labor.

If questions or concerns about any pay deductions arise, discuss and resolve them with
Human Resources.

You will be reimbursed in full for any isolated, inadvertent, or improper deductions, as
defined by law. If an error is found, you will receive an immediate adjustment which will
be paid no later than your next regular payday.

2.3 Garnishment/Child Support

When an employee's wages are garnished by a court order, our District is legally bound
to withhold the amount indicated in the garnishment order from the employee's paycheck.
Our District will, however, honor applicable federal and state guidelines that protect a
certain amount of an employee's income from being subject to garnishment.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 7
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 84 of 170



2.4 Direct Deposit

You will receive your pay in a direct deposit into your bank account through our direct
deposit program.

2.5 Performance Reviews

Your performance is important to our District. Once each year, your supervisor will review
your job progress within our District and help you set new job performance plans.

Our performance review program provides the basis for better understanding between
you and your supervisor, with respect to your job performance, potential and development
within the District.

2.6 Job Descriptions

The District maintains a job description for each position in the District. The job description
outlines the essential duties and responsibilities of the position. When the duties and/or
responsibilities of a position change, the job description is revised to reflect those
changes. If you have any questions or wish to obtain a copy of your position's job
description, please see your supervisor.

2.7 Pay Advances

Pay advances will not be granted to employees.

2.8  Overtime

There will be times when you will need to work overtime so that we may meet the needs
of our customers. Although you will be given advance notice when feasible, this is not
always possible. If you are a non-exempt employee, you must have all overtime approved
in advance by your supervisor.

Non-exempt employees will be paid at a rate of time and one half their regular rate of pay
for hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek, unless state law provides a greater
benefit in which case, we will comply with the state law.

Only actual hours worked count toward computing weekly overtime.
If you have any questions concerning overtime pay, check with your supervisor.

2.9 On Call

It may be necessary for individuals in certain positions to be available by telephone after
hours during the week or on the weekend. Employees who are required to be on call will
be compensated in accordance with applicable state and federal wage and hour laws, as
well as separate written policies for each type of compensation for time spent on call or
for responding to work while on call..

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 8
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 85 of 170



3.0 Time Away From Work and Other Benefits
3.1 Employee Benefits

Our District has developed a comprehensive set of employee benefit programs to
supplement our employees' regular wages. Our benefits represent a hidden value of
additional income to our employees.

This Employee Handbook describes the current benefit plans maintained by the District.
Refer to the actual plan documents and summary plan descriptions if you have specific
guestions regarding the benefit plan. Those documents are controlling.

The District reserves the right to modify and/or terminate its benefits at any time. We will
keep you informed of any changes.

3.2 Holidays

Our District office will be closed on holidays designated each year by the Board of
Directors.

Eligible employees receive a paid holiday only if the holiday falls on a day they are
normally scheduled to work. Full-time employees are eligible for paid holidays
immediately upon hire. Exempt employees will receive holiday pay in compliance with
state and federal laws. Non-exempt employees must work their scheduled workday
before and after the holiday in order to be paid for the holiday, unless you are absent with
prior permission from your supervisor. Part-time employees are not eligible for holiday
pay unless they work on the holiday. Full-time employees will be paid at a rate of time
and one half their regular rate of pay for all hours worked on holidays. They will become
eligible immediately upon hire.

3.3 Floating Holidays

The District offers eligible employees two paid floating holidays each year, which may be
used for any purpose. Floating holidays may be used in no less than half-day increments,
and are not carried over from one year to the next. Personal holidays should be scheduled
in advance and taken with the approval of your supervisor.

3.4  Vacation

Full-time employees are eligible for paid vacation time.
Vacation is calculated according to your anniversary date as follows:

During the first ten-five years of full-time employment, 80 hours per year, accrued each
pay period proportionately (approximately 3.08 hours for each two-week pay period.)
vAs '=- atsldalaValaa vEala pe 2 ala . TQ ala i nn'- a1aAVEa Anlegv-n--

vacation may be taken as it is accrued, with the approval of your supervisor.

After ten-five years of employment, 96-120 hours per year, accrued each pay period
proportionately (approximately 3.694.62 hours each two-week pay period.)

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 9
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 86 of 170



After fifteen-ten years of employment, and each year thereafter, 120-160 hours per year,
accrued each pay period proportionately (approximately 4-626.15 hours each 2-week pay
period.)

Employees transferring to District employment on January 1, 2018 with prior District staff
service under contract will not be penalized by starting over with lower vacation accruals
and anniversary dates than they had with the previous employer. The General Manager
will determine their effective anniversary date and vacation accrual amount based on their
prior service.

Submit vacation requests in writing as soon as possible to your supervisor. When
possible, vacation requests are granted, taking into account operating requirements.
Length of employment may determine priority in scheduling vacation times.

Vacation can be carried over to the following year, up to a maximum of twice your annual
accrual. Vacation earned above the maximum will be paid.

At the end of employment, eligible employees will be paid for earned but unused vacation.

3.5 Sick Baysl eave (see MSMD Resolution 21-1)

The District provides paid sick leave to eligible employees in accordance with the
Colorado Healthy Families and Workplaces Act (HFWA) and other applicable law.

Sick leave may be taken for the following reasons:

o To care for your own, or a family member’s, mental or physical iliness, injury, or
health condition; to obtain medical diagnosis, care, or treatment of a mental or
physical illness, injury, or health condition; or to obtain preventative medical care.

o If you or a family member have been the victim of domestic abuse, sexual assault,
or harassment, in order to:
= seek medical attention or to recover from a mental or physical illness, injury, or

health condition caused by the domestic abuse, sexual assault, or harassment;
= obtain services from a victim services organization;
= obtain mental health or other counseling;
= seek relocation due to the domestic abuse, sexual assault, or harassment; or
= seek legal services, including preparation for or participation in a civil or criminal
proceeding related to or resulting from the domestic abuse, sexual assault, or
harassment.

o Due to a public health emergency, a public official has ordered the closure of:
= your place of business; or
= your child’s school or place of care and you need to be absent from work to

care for your child.

“‘Family member” means:

o A person who is related to you by blood, marriage, civil union, or adoption;

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 10
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 87 of 170



o a child to whom you stand in loco parentis or a person who stood in loco parentis
to you when were you were a child; or

o a person for whom you are responsible for providing or arranging health- or safety-
related care.

“Public health emergency” means:

o An act of bioterrorism, a pandemic influenza, or an epidemic caused by a novel
and highly fatal infectious agent, for which: 1) an emergency is declared by a
federal, state, or local public health agency; or 2) a disaster emergency is declared
by the governor; or

o a highly infectious iliness or agent with epidemic or pandemic potential for which a
disaster emergency is declared by the governor.

Eligible employees accrue one hour of sick leave for every 30 hours worked up to a
maximum accrual of 48 hours in a leave year. You will begin accruing sick leave on
Jandary-1.-2021-eryour first day of employment-whicheveris-later. For purposes of this
policy, the leave year is the calendar year. You may begin using sick leave as it accrues.

If you do not use your sick days during the year, you can carry them into the following
year, up to a maximum accrual of 96 hours (which is twice the maximum annual accrual).

You will be compensated for sick leave at your regular rate of pay at the time the leave is

takenerthe-applicable-minimum-wagewhicheveris-higher. If you exhaust your accrued

sick leave, you may use accrued vacation time for the purposes listed in this section.

If the need for leave is foreseeable, you must make a good-faith effort to provide advance
notice and make a reasonable effort to schedule leave in a manner that does not unduly
disrupt the operations of the District. If unforeseeable, provide notice as soon as practical.
If known, notice should include the expected length of the absence.

If you are absent for four or more consecutive days, you may be reguested-required to
provide reasonable documentation as soon as you are reasonably able to provide it
showing that the leave is being taken for permitted purposes. Such documentation may
be required before you return to work.

You will not be paid for any unused sick leave when your employment ends. Sick leave
will run concurrently with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act and/or other leaves
where permitted under state and federal law.

The Company will reinstate previously accrued, unused sick leave if you separate and
are rehired within six months.

The District will not retaliate against employees who request or take leave in accordance
with this policy.

Supplemental Paid Sick Leave for Public Health Emergency

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 11
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 88 of 170



In addition to paid sick leave-previded-underthe-Ceolorado-Paid-Sick-LeavePeliey, the

District will provide eligible employees with paid public health emergency leave, in
accordance with the Colorado Healthy Families and Workplaces Act, for a declared public
health emergency.

Public health emergency leave may be used for the following reasons:

1. To self-isolate due to either being diagnosed with, or having symptoms of, a
communicable iliness that is the cause of a public health emergency;

2. To seek diagnosis, treatment, or care (including preventive care) of such illness;

3. Exclusion from work by a government health official, or by your employer, due to
your exposure to, or symptoms of, such illness;

4. Inability to work due to a health condition that may increase your susceptibility or
risk of such iliness; or

5. To care for a child or other family member who is in category 1, 2, or 3 above, or
whose school, childcare provider, or other care provider is either unavailable,
closed, or providing remote instruction due to the public health emergency.

Public health emergency leave will be provided, as needed, in addition to any paid sick
leave that you have already accrued. If you normally work 40 or more hours in a week,
you will be provided with enough public health emergency leave to ensure that you are
able to take 80 hours of leave during a public health emergency. If you work fewer than
40 hours per week, you will be provided with enough public health emergency leave to
ensure that you are able to take leave equal to the amount of time that you are scheduled
to work in a 14-day period or the amount of time you actually work on average in a 14-
day period—whichever is greater.

You may use any public health emergency leave that is provided under this policy before
using any paid sick leave that you have accrued prior to the public health emergency.

Public health emergency leave expires four weeks after the official termination or
suspension of the public health emergency. During a public health emergency, you will
continue to accrue paid sick leave.

You must provide notice of your need for public health emergency leave as soon as

practical if your need for leave is foreseeableand-the-company-isnetclosed. If the need

for leave is unforeseeable, provide notice as soon as possible.
You will not be required to provide any documentation for public health emergency leave.

The District will not retaliate against employees who request or take leave in accordance
with this policy.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 12
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 89 of 170



3.6 Jury Duty

Per Colorado law, the District will pay regularly employed trial or grand jurors their regular
wages up to $50 each day, for their first three days of jury duty. "Regularly employed"
includes all full-time employees, as well as part-time, temporary and casual employees
whose hours may be determined by a schedule, custom or practice. Should you have to
serve more than three days on duty, you will receive the necessary time off unpaid.

All other employees summoned for jury duty are granted an unpaid leave in order to serve.

Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with
state and federal wage and hour laws.

Make arrangements with your supervisor as soon as you receive your summons.
We reserve the right to request proof of jury service issued by the Court upon return.

We expect you to return to your job if you are excused from jury duty during your regular
working hours.

3.7 Voting Leave

Our District believes that every employee should have the opportunity to vote in any state,
federal, or municipal election, general primary or special primary. Any employee whose
work schedule does not provide him/her three or more hours between the opening of the
polls and the close of the polls during which the employee is not required to be on the job
will be granted up to two paid hours of excused time to vote. We reserve the right to select
the hours you are excused to vote.

Notify your supervisor at least one day before Election Day of the need for voting leave.

3.8 Military Leave

Employees who are required to fulfill military obligations in any branch of the Armed
Forces of the United States or in state military service will be given the necessary time off
and reinstated in accordance with federal and state law.

The time off will be unpaid, except where state law dictates otherwise. Exempt employees
may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with state and federal wage
and hour laws.

Accrued vacation (if any) may be used for this leave if the employee chooses, but the
District will not require the employee to use vacation. Military orders should be presented
to your supervisor and arrangements for leave made as early as possible before
departure. Employees are required to give advance notice of their service obligations to
the District unless military necessity makes this impossible. You must notify your
supervisor of your intent to return to employment based on requirements of the law. Your
benefits may continue to accrue during the period of leave in accordance with state and
federal law.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 13
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 90 of 170



Additional information regarding military leaves may be obtained from your supervisor.

3.9  Volunteer Firefighter Leave

Employees who serve as volunteer firefighters may be eligible for unpaid leave to respond
to an emergency summons. Eligible employees are deemed by the employer not to be
essential to the operation of the employer's daily enterprise.

Employees must have previously provided the District with written documentation from
the fire chief of the employee's fire department notifying the employer of the employee's
status as a volunteer firefighter.

Employees who take leave must provide the District with a written statement from the
chief of the employee's fire department verifying the time, date, and duration of the
employee's response.

3.10 Emergency Civil Air Patrol Leave

Employees who serve as a member of the Civil Air Patrol, Colorado Wing and who are
called to duty for a civil air patrol mission are entitled to an unpaid leave of absence of up
to 15 days in any calendar year.

Upon return to work, the employee must provide the District with evidence of the
satisfactory completion of the civil air patrol service.

Employees taking qualified leave under this policy will be restored to the same or similar
position held prior to the leave of absence.

Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with
state and federal wage and hour laws.

3.11 Volunteer Civil Defense Worker Leave

Employees who serve as a member of a volunteer disaster organization that has entered
into a memorandum of understanding with a county sheriff, local government, local
emergency planning committee, or state agency to assist in providing services during
disasters are entitled to an unpaid leave of absence of up to 15 days in any calendar year.

To be eligible for leave, employees must be called to service through the volunteer
organization under the authority of the county sheriff, local government, local emergency
planning committee, or state agency.

The employee must provide the District with appropriate service verification during the
disaster and return to work as soon as is practicable afterward.

Essential employees whose absence would likely cause the District to suffer economic
injury, may be denied leave in accordance with state law.

Employees taking qualified leave under this policy will be restored to the same or similar
position held prior to the leave of absence.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 14
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 91 of 170



Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with
state and federal wage and hour laws.

3.12 W.itness Leave

Employees are given the necessary time off without pay to attend or participate in a court
proceeding in accordance with state law.

Employees are given the necessary time off without pay to attend, participate in, or
prepare for a court proceeding in accordance with state law.

We ask that you notify your supervisor of the need to take withess leave as far in advance
as is possible.

Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with
state and federal wage and hour laws.

3.13 Bereavement Leave

Full- t|me employees are eligible immediately upon h|re for three pald days for the death
a_spouses,
domestic partners parents brothers sisters, children, Chl|d¥-eF} of a domestic partners,
grandchildren, grandparents, parents-in-law and-or parents of a domestic partners.

Full-time employees are eligible immediately upon hire for three paid days to attend the
funeral of aunts, uncles, nieces and nephews.

Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with
state and federal wage and hour laws.

Requests for bereavement leave should be made to your supervisor as soon as possible.
Our District reserves the right to request written verification of an employee's familial
relationship to the deceased and his-er-her-the employee’s attendance at the funeral
service as a condition of the bereavement pay.

3.14 Victims of Crime Leave

The District will grant reasonable and necessary leave from work, without pay, to
employees who are victims of a crime to attend or participate in legal proceedings
pertaining to the crime. Affected employees must give the District reasonable notice that
leave under this policy is required.

Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with
state and federal wage and hour laws.

3.15 Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

The District offers all employees access to an Employee Assistance Program (EAP)
provider. Through this program, employees can access benefits such as counseling, legal

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 15
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 92 of 170



services, and financial advice. Employees should contact Human Resources for more
information.

3.16 Medical Insurance

Eligible full-time employees may enroll in an employee only, an employee plus children,
an employee plus spouse, or a family contract on the first of the month following thirty
days of employment. Eligibility may be defined by state law and/or by the insurance
contract.

To assist you with the cost of this insurance, our District pays a portion of an employee
only, an employee plus children, an employee plus spouse, or a family contract. You are
responsible for paying the balance through payroll deduction.

Participating employees are also covered under our medical insurance plan’s prescription
drug program.

Refer to the actual plan document and summary plan description if you have specific
guestions regarding your eligibility for coverage or other aspects of this benefit plan.
Those documents are controlling.

At the end of employment, you may be entitled to continuation or conversion of the group
medical insurance plan in accordance with the terms of the policy and/or applicable state
and federal law. For more information, contact Human Resources.

3.17 Dental Insurance

Eligible full-time employees may enroll in an employee only, an employee plus children,
an employee plus spouse or a family contract on the first of the month following thirty
days of employment.

To assist you with the cost of this insurance, our District pays a portion of an employee
only, an employee plus children, an employee plus spouse or a family contract. You are
responsible for paying the balance through payroll deduction.

Refer to the actual plan document and summary plan description if you have specific
guestions regarding this benefit plan. Those documents are controlling.

At the end of employment, you may be entitled to continuation or conversion of the group
dental insurance plan in accordance with the terms of the policy and/or applicable state
and federal law. For more information, contact Human Resources.

3.18 Life Insurance

Eligible full-time employees may enroll in this plan on the first of the month following thirty
days of employment.

You must complete an insurance form and designate your beneficiary.

The cost of this insurance is fully paid by the employee.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 16
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 93 of 170



Participating employees may also be covered under the plan’s Accidental Death and
Dismemberment rider. The District pays the full premium for $20,000 of life insurance for
each employee. Employees may elect to enroll in additional life insurance paid for entirely
by the employee.

You also have the option of purchasing additional insurance through our group plan.
Complete details of this plan may be obtained from Human Resources.

3.19 Section 125 Plans

Our District offers a pretax contribution option for employees. This employee benefit is
known as a Section 125 plan.

A Section 125 plan is a benefit plan that allows you to make contributions toward
premiums for medical insurance, dental insurance, vision care insurance and out-of-
pocket medical expenses or dependent care expenses on a “before tax”, rather than an
“after tax” basis. Your premium contributions and qualified expenses are deducted from
your gross pay before income taxes and Medicare is calculated.

To decline participation in this plan, complete an election form and return it to Human
Resources.

You cannot make any changes to your pretax contributions until the next open enrollment
period, unless your family status changes or you become eligible for a special enrollment
period due to a loss of coverage. Family status changes include marriage, divorce, death
of a spouse or child, birth or adoption of a child or discharge of employment of your
spouse. A change in election due to a change in family status is effective the next pay
period.

3.20 Short-Term Disability Insurance

You may be eligible for short-term disability insurance benefits if you are ill or injured and
unable to work.

All full-time employees are eligible for the short-term disability insurance program on the
first of the month after 30 consecutive days of employment. This insurance program is
designed to provide income for you when you are absent from work for more than seven
calendar days due to non-occupational illness, injury or pregnancy-related disability.

The benefits are calculated as a percentage of your salary for up to 180 days.
The cost of this insurance is covered by the District.

Please check with Human Resources for additional information concerning this benefit.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 17
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 94 of 170



3.21 Pregnancy Accommodation

The District will provide reasonable accommodations to employees for health conditions
related to pregnancy or the physical recovery from childbirth, to the extent the
accommodation can be made without imposing an undue hardship on the business.

When an employee requests a reasonable accommodation, the District will engage in a
timely and good-faith interactive process with the employee to determine effective,
reasonable accommodations for the employee, which may include, but are not limited to:

« allowing more frequent or longer break periods;

« allowing more frequent restroom, food, and water breaks;

« providing or modifying equipment or seating;

« placing limitations on lifting;

» temporary transfer to a less strenuous or less hazardous position;
* job restructuring;

» light duty work, if available;

+ assistance with manual labor; or

« modified work schedules.

The District will not require an employee to take leave to the extent that another
reasonable accommodation can be provided.

Prior to providing a reasonable accommodation, the District may require the employee to
provide certification from a licensed health care provider of the necessity for the
accommodation.

If leave is provided as a reasonable accommodation, such leave may run concurrently
with any other leave where permitted by state and federal law.

The District will not retaliate or take adverse action against an employee who requests or
uses a reasonable accommodation pursuant to this policy. Further, the District will not
require an employee to accept an accommodation which the employee has not requested
or which is unnecessary for the employee to perform the essential functions of his or her
job.

If leave is provided as a reasonable accommodation, such leave may run concurrently
with any other leave where permitted by state and federal law.

For more information, or if you require an accommodation, please contact your
supervisor.

Social Security

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 18
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 95 of 170



The District does not participate in Social Security; instead, it has adopted a Qualifying
alternative retirement program as outlined in Section 3.22.

3.22 Unemployment Insurance

Upon separation from employment, you may be entitled to state and federal
unemployment insurance benefits.

3.23 Workers’ Compensation

On the job injuries are covered by our Workers’ Compensation insurance policy. This
insurance is provided at no cost to you. If you are injured on the job, no matter how slightly,
report the incident to your supervisor as soon as reasonably possible. Consistent with
applicable state law, failure to report an injury within a reasonable period of time could
jeopardize your claim. We ask for your assistance in alerting management to any
condition that could lead to or contribute to an employee accident.

3.24 Retirement Plans

The District offers a mandatory defined contribution retirement savings plan that is a
Qualifying alternative plan to Social Security. The District may also offer eligible
employees the opportunity to participate in additional voluntary plan(s).

You can obtain a copy of the Summary Plan Description which contains the details of the
plan including eligibility and benefit provisions from Human Resources. In the event of
any conflict in the description of any plan, the official plan documents, which are available
for your review, shall govern. If you have any questions regarding this plan, see the plan
administrator.

3.25 Family and Medical Leave

In accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), the District
provides up to 12 or 26 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave in a 12-month period to
covered employees in certain circumstances.
Eligibility
To qualify for FMLA leave, you must:
1. Have worked for MSMD for at least 12 months, although it need not be
consecutive;

2. Worked at least 1,250 hours in the last 12 months; and
3. Be employed at a worksite that has 50 or more employees within 75 miles.

Leave Entitlement

You may take up to 12 weeks of unpaid FMLA leave in a 12-month period for any of the
following reasons:

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 19
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 96 of 170



. The birth of a child and in order to care for that child (leave must be completed
within one year of the child’s birth);

. The placement of a child with you for adoption or foster care and in order to care
for the newly placed child (leave must be completed within one year of the child’s
placement);

. To care for a spouse, child, or parent with a serious health condition;

. To care for your own serious health condition, which makes you unable to perform
any of the essential functions of your position; or

. A qualifying exigency of a spouse, child, or parent who is a military member on

covered active duty or called to covered active duty status (or has been notified of
an impending call or order to covered active duty).

The 12-month period is measured forward from the date FMLA begins.

You may take up to 26 weeks of unpaid FMLA leave in a single 12-month period,
beginning on the first day that you take FMLA leave to care for a spouse, child, or next of
kin who is a covered service member and who has a serious injury or illness related to
active duty service. This 26-week period is inclusive of any other FMLA leave (i.e.
employees do not receive 26 weeks of military based leave and 12 additional weeks of
non-military based leave in a 12 month period).

As used in the policy:

. Spouse means a husband or wife as recognized under state law for the purposes
of marriage in the state or other territory or country where the marriage took place.
. Child means a biological, adopted, or foster child, a stepchild, a legal ward, or a

child of a person standing in loco parentis, who is either under age 18 or age 18
or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability at the
time FMLA leave is to commence. A child for the purposes of military exigency or
military care leave can be of any age.

. Parent means a biological, adoptive, step, or foster parent or any other individual
who stood in loco parentis to you when you were a child.
. Next of kin for the purposes of military care leave is a blood relative other than a

spouse, parent, or child in the following order: brothers and sisters, grandparents,
aunts and uncles, and first cousins. If a military service member designates in
writing another blood relative as his or her caregiver, that individual will be the only
next of kin. In appropriate circumstances, you may be required to provide
documentation of next of kin status.

. Serious health condition means an iliness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental
condition that involves either inpatient care or continuing treatment by a health
care provider. Ordinarily, unless complications arise, cosmetic treatments and
minor conditions such as the cold, flu, ear aches, upset stomach, minor ulcers,
headaches (other than migraines), and routine dental problems are examples of
conditions that are not serious health conditions under this policy. If you have any

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 20
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 97 of 170



guestions about the types of conditions that may qualify, contact Human
Resources.

Health care provider means a medical doctor or doctor of osteopathy, physician
assistant, podiatrist, dentist, clinical psychologist, optometrist, nurse practitioner,
nurse-midwife, clinical social worker, or Christian Science practitioner licensed by
the First Church of Christ. Under limited circumstances, a chiropractor or other
provider recognized by our group health plan for the purposes of certifying a claim
for benefits may also be considered a health care provider.

Qualifying exigencies for military exigency leave include:

Short-notice call-ups/deployments of seven days or less (Note: Leave for
this exigency is available for up to seven days beginning the date of call-up
notice);

Attending official ceremonies, programs, or military events;

Special child care needs created by a military call-up including making
alternative child care arrangements, handling urgent and nonroutine child
care situations, arranging for school transfers, or attending school or
daycare meetings;

Making financial and legal arrangements;

Attending counseling sessions for yourself, the military service member, or
the military service members’ son or daughter who is under 18 years of age
or is 18 or older but incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical
disability;

Rest and recuperation (Note: Fifteen days of leave is available for this
exigency per event);

Post-deployment activities such as arrival ceremonies, re-integration
briefings, and other official ceremonies sponsored by the military (Note:
Leave for these events are available for 90 days following the termination
of active duty status). This type of leave may also be taken to address
circumstances arising from the death of a covered military member while on
active duty;

Parental care when the military family member is needed to care for a
parent who is incapable of self-care (such as arranging for alternative care
or transfer to a care facility); and

Other exigencies that arise that are agreed to by both the MSMD General
Manager and you.

A serious injury/illness incurred by a service member in the line of active
duty or that is exacerbated by active duty is any injury or illness that renders
the service member unfit to perform the duties of his or her office, grade,
rank, or rating.

Notice and Leave Request Process

If the need for leave is foreseeable because of an expected birth/adoption or planned
medical treatment, you must give at least 30 days’ notice. If 30 days’ notice is not possible,

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 21
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 98 of 170



give notice as soon as practicable (within one or two business days of learning of your
need for leave). Failure to provide appropriate notice may result in the delay or denial of
leave.

In addition, if you are seeking intermittent or reduced schedule leave that is foreseeable
due to planned medical treatment or a series of treatments for yourself, a family member,
or covered service member, you must consult with the MSMD General Manager first
regarding the dates of this treatment to work out a schedule that best suits your needs or
the needs of the covered military member, if applicable, and the MSMD General Manager.

If the need for leave is unforeseeable, provide notice as soon as possible. Normal call-in
procedures apply to all absences from work, including those for which leave under this
policy may be requested. Failure to provide appropriate notice may result in the delay or
denial of leave.

Leave request forms may be obtained from Human Resources.
Certification of Need for Leave

If you are requesting leave because of your own or a covered relative’s serious health
condition, you and the relevant health care provider must supply appropriate medical
certification. You may obtain Medical Certification forms from Human Resources. When
you request leave, Human Resources will notify you of the requirement for medical
certification and when it is due (at least 15 days after you request leave). If you provide
at least 30 days’ notice of medical leave, you should also provide the medical certification
before leave begins. Failure to provide requested medical certification in a timely manner
may result in denial of FMLA-covered leave until it is provided.

At our expense, the District may require an examination by a second health care provider
designated by us. If the second health care provider’s opinion conflicts with the original
medical certification, we, at our expense, may require a third, mutually agreeable, health
care provider to conduct an examination and provide a final and binding opinion.
Subsequent medical recertification may also be required. Failure to provide requested
certification within 15 days, when practicable, may result in delay of further leave until it
is provided.

The District also reserves the right to require certification from a covered military
member’s health care provider if you are requesting military caregiver leave and
certification in connection with military exigency leave.

Call-In Procedures

In all instances of absence, the call-in procedures and standards established for giving
notice of absence from work must be followed.

Intermittent Leave

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 22
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 99 of 170



If medically necessary, FMLA leave for a serious health condition may be taken
intermittently (in separate blocks of time due to a serious health condition) or on a reduced
leave schedule (reducing the usual number of hours you work per workweek or workday).
FMLA leave may also be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule for a
qualifying exigency relating to covered military service.

As FMLA leave is unpaid, the District will reduce your salary or wages based on the
amount of time actually worked. In addition, while you are on an intermittent or reduced
schedule leave that is foreseeable due to planned medical treatments, the District may
temporarily transfer you to an available alternative position that better accommodates
your leave schedule and has equivalent pay and benefits.

Parental Leave

Leave for the birth or placement of a child must be taken in a single block and cannot be
taken on an intermittent or reduced schedule basis. Parental leave must be completed
within 12 months of the birth or placement of the child; however, you may use parental
leave before the placement of an adopted or foster child to consult with attorneys, appear
in court, attend counseling sessions, etc.

Family Care, Personal Medical, Military Exigency, and Military Care Leave

Leave taken for these reasons may be taken in a block or blocks of time. In addition, if a
health care provider deems it necessary or if the nature of a qualifying exigency requires,
leave for these reasons can be taken on an intermittent or reduced-schedule basis.

Paid Leave Utilization During FMLA Leave

FMLA leave is unpaid. If you are taking personal medical, parental, family care, military
exigency, and/or military care leave, you must utilize accrued sick and/or vacation leave
during this leave. If you are receiving short- or long-term disability or workers’
compensation benefits during a personal medical leave, you will not be required to utilize
these benefits. However, you may elect to utilize accrued benefits to supplement these
benefits. You may not borrow against future accruals of paid time off in any form during
FMLA leave.

Fitness for Duty Requirements

If you take leave because of your own serious health condition (except if you are taking
intermittent leave), you are required, as are all employees returning from other types of
medical leave, to provide medical certification that you are fit to resume work. You will not
be permitted to resume work until it is provided.

Health Insurance

Your health insurance coverage will be maintained by the District during leave on the
same basis as if you were still working. You must continue to make timely payments of
your share of the premiums for such coverage. Failure to pay premiums within 30 days

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 23
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 100 of 170



due date may result in a lapse of coverage. If this occurs, you will be notified 15 days
before the date coverage will lapse that coverage will terminate unless payments are
promptly made.

Alternatively, at our option, the District may pay your share of the premiums during the
leave and recover the costs of this insurance upon your return to work. Coverage that
lapses due to nonpayment of premiums will be reinstated immediately upon return to work
without a waiting period. Under most circumstances, if you do not return to work at the
end of leave, the District may require reimbursement for the health insurance premiums
paid during the leave.

Reinstatement

Upon returning to work at the end of leave, you will be reinstated to your original job or
an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits, and other terms and conditions of
employment. You will not lose any benefits that accrued before leave was taken.
Exceptions to this provision may apply if business circumstances have changed (for
example, the position is no longer available due to job elimination). Reinstatement to the
same or equivalent position is contingent upon the employee’s ability to perform all of the
essential functions of the job.

Spouse Aggregation

If you and your spouse are both employed by the District, the total number of weeks to
which you are both entitled in the aggregate because of the birth or placement of a child
or to care for a parent with a serious health condition will be limited to 12 weeks per leave
year. Similarly, spouses employed by the District will be limited to a combined total of 26
weeks of leave to care for a military service member. This 26-week leave period will be
reduced, however, by the amount of leave taken for other qualifying FMLA events. This
type of leave aggregation does not apply to leave needed for your own serious health
condition, to care for a spouse or child with a serious health condition, or because of a
qualifying exigency.

Failure to Return

If you fail to return to work or fail to make a request for an extension of leave prior to the
expiration of the leave, you will be deemed to have voluntarily terminated your
employment. The District is not required to grant requests for open-ended leaves with no
reasonable return date under these policies or as disability accommodations.

Alternative Employment

While on leave of absence, you may not work or be gainfully employed either for yourself
or others unless express, written permission to perform such outside work has been
granted by the District. If you are on a leave of absence and are found to be working
elsewhere without permission, you will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 24
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 101 of 170



Leave Restrictions

While on an approved leave of absence, including FMLA leave, notify your supervisor
before traveling more than 75 miles away from the vicinity where the leave is to take
place. This requirement ensures that the travel is for reasons consistent with the need for
leave, such as medical treatment needed at a facility outside the 75-mile radius.

While you are on an approved leave of absence, including FMLA leave, notify and obtain
approval from your supervisor before participating in educational coursework (whether in
person or online). This requirement ensures that the coursework is not inconsistent with
the stated need for leave.

Interaction with State and Local Laws

Where state or local family and medical leave laws offer more protections or benefits to
employees, the protections or benefits that are more favorable to the employee, as
provided by these laws, will apply.

Abuse of Leave

If you are found to have provided a false reason for a leave, you will be subject to
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Designation of Leave

If the District becomes aware of any qualifying reason for FMLA leave, the District will
designate it as such. An employee may not refuse FMLA designation under this policy.

Retaliation

The District will not retaliate against an employee who requests or takes leave in
accordance with this policy.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 25
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 102 of 170



40 OnthedJob

4.1 \Wage Disclosure Protection

The District, consistent with Colorado law, does not prohibit an employee from inquiring
about, disclosing, comparing or otherwise discussing his or her wages. Further, the
District does not require nondisclosure of an employee's wages as a condition of
employment, and will not require an employee to sign any waiver or document contrary
to this policy.

Nothing in this policy shall be construed to permit an employee with regular access to
wage information in the course of the employee's work from disclosing wage information,
unless the person is under a legal obligation to furnish the information. Additionally,
nothing in this policy requires an employer or an employee to disclose wages in response
to an inquiry by another employee unless under legal obligation.

4.2  Attendance and Punctuality

Attendance and punctuality are important factors for your success within our District. We
work as a team and this requires that each person be in the right place at the right time.

If you are going to be late for work or absent, notify your supervisor as far in advance as
is feasible under the circumstances, but before the start of your workday.

Personal issues requiring time away from your work, such as doctor’s appointments or
other matters, should be scheduled during your nonworking hours if possible.

If you are absent for three days without notifying the District, it is assumed that you have
voluntarily abandoned your position with the District, and you will be removed from the
payroll.

4.3 Meal Time

A 30-minute, unpaid meal break should be taken each day. Approving the scheduling of
this time is the responsibility of your supervisor. Supervisors may also approve of a 60
minute unpaid meal break.

4.4 Breaks

Employees will receive one 10-minute paid break for every four hours worked. This time
must be approved by your supervisor each day.

4.5 Lactation Breaks

The District will provide a reasonable amount of break time to accommodate an
employee's need to express breast milk for the employee's infant child. In Colorado,
lactation breaks will be provided for up to two years after the child’s birth. The break time
should, if possible, be taken concurrently with other break periods already provided. Non-
exempt employees should clock out for any time taken that does not run concurrently with
normally scheduled rest periods, and such time generally will be unpaid, in accordance

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 26
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 103 of 170



with state law. The District will also make a reasonable effort to provide the employee
with the use of a room or other location in close proximity to the employee's work area,
for the employee to express milk in private.

Notify your supervisor to request time to express breast milk under this policy. The District
reserves the right to deny an employee's request for a lactation break if the additional
break time will seriously disrupt operations and in accordance with applicable law.

No provision of this policy applies or is enforced if it conflicts with or is superseded by any
requirement or prohibition contained in a federal, state, or local law or regulation. If you
have knowledge of such a conflict or a potential conflict you should contact Human
Resources.

4.6 Standards of Conduct

Each employee has an obligation to observe and follow the District's policies and to
maintain proper standards of conduct at all times. Failure to adhere to the District's
policies will result in corrective disciplinary measures.

Disciplinary action may include a verbal warning, written warning, suspension with or
without pay, and/or discharge. The appropriate disciplinary action imposed will be
determined by the District. The District does not guarantee that one form of action will
necessarily precede another.

Among other things, the following may result in disciplinary action, up to and including
discharge: violation of the District's policies or safety rules; failing to work in a cooperative
manner with management, co-workers, customers and others who do business with the
District; unauthorized or illegal possession, use or sale of alcohol or controlled substances
on work premises or during working hours, while engaged in District activities or in District
vehicles; unauthorized possession, use or sale of weapons, firearms or explosives on
work premises; theft or dishonesty; inappropriate or violent physical contact; harassment;
discrimination or retaliation in violation of the District's EEO and No Harassment policies;
performing outside work or use of District property, equipment or facilities in connection
with outside work while on District time; poor attendance or poor performance. These
examples are not all inclusive. We emphasize that discharge decisions will be based on
an assessment of all relevant factors.

Nothing in this policy is designed to limit an employee's rights under Section 7 of the
National Labor Relations Act.

Nothing in this policy is designed to modify our employment-at-will policy.

4.7 Access to Personnel Files

Upon request, current employees may inspect their own personnel records at a mutually
agreeable time, on District premises and in the presence of a District official. Employees
will be permitted to inspect and obtain a copy of their personnel records. Inspection
includes documents or records regarding the employee's qualification for employment,

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 27
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 104 of 170



promotion, additional compensation, termination, or other disciplinary actions. Inspection
does not include documents or records: (1) required to be placed or maintained in a
separate file from the regular personnel file by federal or state law; (2) pertaining to
confidential reports from previous employers; (3) an active criminal investigation or
disciplinary investigation by the District; (4) an active investigation by a regulatory agency;
or (5) identifying any person who, in the sole discretion of the District, made a confidential
accusation against the employee.

Similarly, upon request, former employees may make one inspection of their personnel
file following termination of employment unless otherwise required by law.

4.8 Customer and Public Relations

Our District's reputation is built on excellent service and quality work. To maintain this
reputation requires the active participation of every employee.

The opinions and attitudes that customers have toward our District may be determined
for a long period of time by the actions of one employee.

Each employee must be sensitive to the importance of providing courteous treatment in
all working relationships.

4.9 Non-Solicitation

The District believes employees should have a work environment free from interruptions
of a non-work related nature, as work time is for work. When you are to be working you
should focus on your duties and not engage in activities that would interfere with your
own work or the work of others. For the purpose of this policy, solicitation includes, but is
not limited to, for collection of any debt or obligation, for raffles of any kind or chance
taking, or for the sale of merchandise or business services, the attempt to sell any product
or service (e.g. selling or collecting for Tupperware®, Avon® products, churches, schools,
Girl Scout cookies, etc.). Such interruptions can be both detrimental to the quality of work
and efficiency, and may not be respectful of others job responsibilities and right not to be
interrupted.

Employees may not engage in solicitation for any purpose during his/her work time, which
includes the working time of the employee who seeks to solicit and the employee who is
being solicited. Although solicitation is not encouraged, it is permitted as long as it is
limited to the employee's break and lunch time and kept out of active working areas.
Nothing in this policy is intended to restrict an employee's statutory rights, including
discussing terms and conditions of employment.

4.10 Distribution

Distribution by employees of any type (materials, goods, paper) is prohibited in work
areas at any time, whether or not the employees are on working time. Electronic
distribution is subject to the District's Acceptable Use of Electronic Communications
policy, and may not occur during the employee's working time. Non-employees are

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 28
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 105 of 170



prohibited from distributing materials to employees on District premises at any time.
Literature that violates the District's EEO and No Harassment policies, includes threats of
violence, or is knowingly and recklessly false is never permitted. Nothing in this policy is
intended to restrict an employee's statutory rights, including discussing terms and
conditions of employment.

4.11 Changes in Personal Data

To aid you and/or your family in matters of personal emergency, we need to maintain up
to date information.

Changes in name, address, telephone number, marital status, number of dependents or
changes in next of kin and/or beneficiaries should be given to Human Resources

promptly.
4.12 Care of Equipment

You are expected to demonstrate proper care when using the District's property and
equipment. No property may be removed from the premises without the proper
authorization of management. If you lose, break or damage any property, report it to your
supervisor at once.

4.13 District Vehicles

Operators of District vehicles are responsible for the safe operation and cleanliness of the
vehicle.

Accidents involving a District vehicle must be reported to your supervisor immediately.

Employees are responsible for any moving and parking violations and fines that may
result when operating a District vehicle.

District vehicles should be operated by the employee only.
Smoking, including use of e-cigarettes, is prohibited in District vehicles.
The use of seat belts is mandatory for operators and passengers of District vehicles.

Employees are encouraged to take appropriate safety precautions when using their
cellular telephone. The use of handheld cellular telephones, including texting, while
driving is prohibited. Employees are expected to comply with applicable state laws,
including the use of cellular telephones.

4.14 Employment of Relatives

A supervisor may not hire or supervise an individual if that individual and the supervisor
have an on-going romantic relationship, including but not limited to, marriage, or if that
|nd|V|dua| |S Rempbe a a¥al -9-‘ a ’ nn.-A= - n- alal Qrm nnnn-= a .nn "

the supervisor’'s refers-to-parents, children, sisters, brothers, nieces, nephews or other
family members residing in the same household.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 29
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 106 of 170



In the case of marriage of persons within the same department, an effort will be made to
assign comparable job duties so as to minimize problems of supervision, safety, security
and morale.

4.15 Travel/[Expense Accounts

The District will reimburse employees for reasonable expenses incurred through pre-
approved business travel or entertainment. All cash advances must be accounted for and
expense receipts are required.

The following business expenses will be reimbursed when pre-approved:
e Travel Expense
e Automobile/Mileage
e Lodging
e Tips
e Business Meals, not including alcohol
e Registration fees for conferences and training

This list is not all-inclusive. See Human Resources regarding additional reimbursable
business expenses.

4.16 Personal Property

The District is not responsible for loss or damage to personal property. Valuable personal
items, such as purses and all other valuables should not be left in areas where theft might
occur.

4.17 Identification Badges

You may be issued an identification badge customize. If required by your supervisor, it
must be worn where it can be seen at all times when you are working.

4.18 Severe Weather

Severe weather is to be expected during certain months of the year. Although driving may
at times be difficult, when caution is exercised the roads are normally passable. Except
in cases of severe storms, we are all expected to work our regular hours. If you choose
to Fime-taken-take time off from work due to poor weather conditions while the business
District remains open, you must use accrued -is-te-be-used-as-vacation, a-sick dayleave,
or is-unpaid_time, in that order. Unpaid time may only be awarded if accrued leave has
been exhausted.

Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with
state and federal wage and hour laws.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 30
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 107 of 170



In rare cases, and only with the permission of the General Manager, select employees
may be allowed to work from home or other remote location with pay for a partial or whole
work day during severe weather conditions.

If extreme-severe weather conditions require closing of District Facilities, you will be
notified by your supervisor. Full-time employees whose District workplace is closed or
otherwise unavailable during severe weather will be paid their normal rate for the duration
of the closure. Part-time employees whose work is cancelled due to a closure may not be
paid for the hours they would otherwise have worked.

4.19 Personal Telephone Calls

It is important to keep our telephone lines free for customer calls. Although the occasional
use of the District's telephones for a personal emergency may be necessary, routine
personal calls should be kept to a minimum.

4.20 Acceptable Use of Electronic Communications

This policy contains guidelines for electronic communications created, sent, received,
used, transmitted, or stored using the District's communication systems or equipment and
employee provided systems or equipment used either in the workplace, during working
time or to accomplish work tasks. “Electronic communications” include, among other
things, messages, images, text data or any other information used in e-mail, instant
messages, text messages, voice mail, fax machines, computers, personal digital
assistants (including Blackberry, iPhone, iPad or similar devices), pagers, telephones,
cellular and mobile phones including those with cameras, Intranet, Internet, back-up
storage, information on a memory or flash key or card, jump or zip drive or any other type
of internal or external removable storage drives. In the remainder of this policy, all of these
communication devices are collectively referred to as “systems.”

Acceptable Uses of Our Systems: Employees may use our systems to communicate
internally with co-workers or externally with customers and other business acquaintances
for business purposes.

District Control of Systems and Electronic Communications: All electronic
communications contained in District systems are District records and/or property.
Although an employee may have an individual password to access our systems, the
systems and communications belong to the District. The systems and electronic
communications are accessible to the District at all times including periodic unannounced
inspections. Our systems and electronic communications are subject to use, access,
monitoring, review, recording and disclosure without further notice. Employee
communications on our system are not confidential or private.

The District's right to use, access, monitor, record and disclose electronic
communications without further notice applies equally to employee-provided systems or
equipment used in the workplace, during working time, or to accomplish work tasks.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 31
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 108 of 170



Personal Use of Our Systems: Personal communications in our systems are treated the
same as all other electronic communications and will be used, accessed, recorded,
monitored, and disclosed by the District at any time without further notice. Since all
electronic communications and systems can be accessed without advance notice,
employees should not use our systems for communication or information that employees
would not want revealed to third parties. Personal use of our system should be limited to
non-working time. Personal use of our system must be conducted in such a manner that
it does not affect smooth system operation or use a disproportional amount of the
system’s functional capacity.

Proprietary Business Information: Proprietary business information means confidential
and proprietary information related to the District's drawings, designs, blue prints,
manufacturing processes, customer lists, vendor agreements, contracts, non-public
financial performance information and other information that derives economic value by
being protected from public consumption or competitors may only be used on District
systems. Proprietary business information may not be downloaded, saved, or sent to a
personal laptop, personal storage device, or personal email account under any
circumstances without advance written approval from a member of management.
Proprietary business information does not restrict employee rights to discuss their wages,
hours or other terms of employment.

Prohibited Uses of Our Systems: Employees may not use District systems in a manner
that is unlawful, wasteful of District resources, or unreasonably compromises employee
productivity or the overall integrity or stability of the District's systems. These tools are
provided to assist employees with the execution of their job duties and should not be
abused. Examples of prohibited uses include, among other things, sexually explicit
messages, images, cartoons, or jokes; propositions or love letters; ethnic or racial slurs;
or any other message or image that may be in violation of District policies.

In addition, employees may not use our District systems:

. To download, save, send or access any discriminatory, obscene, or malicious
or knowingly false material;

. To download, save, send or access any music, audio or video file unless
business related;

. To download anything from the internet (including shareware or free software)
without the advance written permission of your supervisor;

. To download, save, send or access any site or content that the District might
deem “adult entertainment;”

. To attempt or to gain unauthorized or unlawful access to computers,
equipment, networks, or systems of the District or any other person or entity;

. In connection with any infringement of intellectual property rights, including but
not limited to copyrights;

. In connection with the violation or attempted violation of any law; and

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 32

DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 109 of 170



. To transmit proprietary business information or client material such as pricing
information or trade secrets.

Electronic Forgery: An employee may not misrepresent, disguise, or conceal his or her
identity or another’s identity in any way while using electronic communications; make
changes to electronic communications without clearly indicating such changes; or use
another person’s account, mail box, password, etc. without prior written approval of the
account owner and without identifying the actual author.

Intellectual Property Rights: Employees must always respect intellectual property rights
such as copyrights and trademarks.

System Integrity, Security, and Encryption: All systems passwords and encryption keys
must be available and known to the District. You may not install password or encryption
programs without the written permission of your supervisor. Employees may not use the
passwords and encryption keys belonging to others.

Applicable Laws: Numerous state and federal laws apply to electronic communications.
The District complies with applicable laws. Employees also must comply with applicable
laws and should recognize that an employee could be personally liable and/or subject to
fine and imprisonment for violation of applicable laws.

Consequences of Policy Violations: Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary
action up to and including immediate termination of an employee's employment as well
as possible civil liabilities or criminal prosecution. Where appropriate, the District may
advise legal officials or appropriate third parties of policy violations and cooperate with
official investigations. We will not, of course, retaliate against anyone who reports
possible policy violations or assists with investigations.

If you have questions about the acceptable use of our systems or the content of electronic
communications, ask your supervisor for advance clarification.

4.21 E-mail (added by MSMD Resolution 19-2)

District management may monitor electronic mail communications at any time, with or
without cause, and further states that correspondence of any employee in the form of
electronic mail may be a public record under the public records law and may be subject
to public inspection under Section 24-72-203, C.R.S., Colorado’s Open Records law.

All employees of the District may have access to the District's electronic mail
communications system, which access may include utilization of a District-assigned email
address for use in both internal and external email communications. Employees cannot
expect a right of privacy in their use of the District’s electronic communications system.
Employees understand, acknowledge and agree that all communications in the form of
electronic mail may be considered a public record pursuant to CORA and may be subject
to public inspection pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-72-203. The District reserves the right
to monitor an employee’s electronic mail communication(s) including, but not limited to,

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 33
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 110 of 170



circumstances where the District, in its sole discretion, reasonably believes that such
communication(s) may be considered a public record pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-203.

4.22 Social Media

“Social media” includes all means of communicating or posting information or content of
any sort on the Internet, including to your own or someone else’s web log or blog, journal
or diary, personal web site, social networking or affinity web site, web bulletin board or a
chat room, whether or not associated or affiliated with the District.

You are more likely to resolve work related complaints by speaking directly with your co-
workers or by utilizing our problem solving procedure than by posting complaints to a
social media outlet. Nevertheless, if you decide to post complaints or criticism, avoid using
statements, photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as maliciously
false, obscene, threatening or intimidating, that defames customers, competitors, vendors
or employees or that might constitute harassment or bullying. Examples of such conduct
might include posts meant to put someone in fear for their physical safety or psychological
well-being; posts designed to cast someone in a false light to the public; posts that invade
a person’s reasonable expectation of privacy; or posts that could contribute to a hostile
work environment on the basis of race, age, gender, national origin, color, disability,
religion or other status protected by federal, state or local law.

Make sure you are always truthful and accurate when posting information or news. If you
make a mistake, correct it quickly. Be open about any previous posts you have altered.
Use privacy settings when appropriate. Remember that the Internet archives almost
everything; therefore, even deleted postings can be searched. The Internet is immediate;
nothing that is posted ever truly “expires.” Never post any information or rumors that you
know to be false about the District, fellow employees, customers, and people working on
behalf of the District or competitors.

Do not create a link from your blog, website or other social networking site to the District's
website without identifying yourself as a District employee. Express only your personal
opinions. Never represent yourself as a spokesperson for the District or make knowingly
false representations about your credentials or your work. If the District is a subject of the
content you are creating, be clear and open about the fact that you are an employee and
make it clear that your views do not represent those of the District. It is best to include a
statement such as “The postings on this site are my own and do not necessarily reflect
the views of the District.” You must refrain from using social media while on working time,
unless authorized by the District.

Employees are encouraged to report violations of this policy. The District prohibits
retaliation against any employee for reporting a possible deviation from this policy or for
cooperating in an investigation.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 34
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 111 of 170



Where applicable, the District complies with state laws concerning access to an
employee's personal social networking account, including restrictions concerning
employer requests for an employee's username and/or password.

Nothing in this policy is designed to limit an employee's right under Section 7 of the
National Labor Relations Act, including discussing wages or other terms of employment.

If you have questions or need further guidance, please discuss with your supervisor.

4.23 Bring Your Own Device

Employees may use their personal electronic devices for work purposes when agreed to
in writing, in advance, by the employee and management. Personal electronic devices
include but are not limited to personally owned cell/smart phones, tablets, laptops and
computers.

Employees must physically secure their device against theft, loss or unauthorized use,
and this includes password protection. If the device is lost or stolen, you must immediately
notify your supervisor. If the District permits the employee to store or access trade secrets
or proprietary business and confidential information on a personal electronic device, time
is of the essence in reporting a lost or stolen item so that the District may take the steps
necessary to protect this information. The District will not be responsible for replacing lost
or stolen personal electronic devices.

Non-exempt employees may not use their personal devices for work purposes outside of
their normal work schedule without authorization in advance from management. This
includes but is not limited to reviewing, sending and responding to e-mails or text
messages, and responding to or making calls. Time spent by non-exempt employees
using their own devices to perform work outside of regular working hours must be included
in the District's time tracking system.

Employees are expected to exercise the same discretion in using their personal devices
while working as is required for using District owned devices. This includes, but is not
limited to, compliance with District policies pertaining to harassment, discrimination,
retaliation, trade secrets, proprietary business and confidential information, electronic
communications and ethics. Employees must also comply with all applicable state, federal
and local laws governing the use of such electronic devices. Failure to follow policies,
procedures and/or the law may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination
of employment.

4.24 Security of Electronic Devices

Each employee provided with a laptop computer, iPad, iPhone, smart phone, tablet or
similar device is responsible for the physical security of that device. All devices acquired
for or on behalf of the District are District property. The device must be locked up and
stored in a secure location when it is not in the immediate possession of the authorized
user. In addition, the user must return the device immediately upon request of the District.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 35
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 112 of 170



You must notify your supervisor immediately if the device is lost, stolen, misplaced, or
damaged. All work created or performed on the device is District property. The device is
subject to inspection by the District at any time without further advance notice. The device
must be used in a manner that complies with all District policies including the Acceptable
Use of Electronic Communications, Equal Employment Opportunity, No Harassment, and
Protecting District Information.

Violations of this policy may be grounds for disciplinary action up to and including
discharge.

4.25 Dress Policy

Maintaining a professional, business-like appearance is very important to the success of
the District. Part of the impression you make on others depends on your choice of dress,
personal hygiene and courteous behavior. A daily regimen of good grooming and hygiene
is expected of everyone. Please ensure that you maintain good personal hygiene habits.
While at work, you are required to be clean, dressed appropriately and well groomed.

Hair should be clean and neat. Sideburns, moustaches, and beards should be neatly
trimmed.

Employees are expected to maintain the highest standards of personal cleanliness and
present a neat, professional appearance at all times.

The District maintains a business casual environment. All employees should use
discretion in wearing attire that is appropriate for the office and customer interaction.

Clothing with inappropriate/derogatory symbols, language or words are not allowed, and
clothing may not convey messages that express hate, racial slurs, or sexual harassment.

4.26 Reference Checks

The District will not honor any oral requests for references. All requests must be in writing
and on District letterhead. Generally, we will only confirm our employees' dates of
employment, salary history, and job title.

Under no circumstances should an employee provide another individual with information
regarding current or former employees of our District. If you receive a request for
reference information, please forward it to Human Resources.

4.27 Protecting District Information

Protecting the District's information is the responsibility of every employee. Do not discuss
the District's confidential business or proprietary business matters, or share confidential,
personal employee information (such as social security numbers, personal banking or
medical information) with anyone who does not work for us such as friends, family
members, members of the media, or other business entities.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 36
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 113 of 170



Confidential information does not include information pertaining to the terms and
conditions of an employee's employment, including wages. Nothing in this policy is
designed to limit an employee's rights under Section 7 of the National Labor Relations
Act.

All telephone calls regarding a current or former employee's position/compensation with
our District must be forwarded to Human Resources.

The District's address shall not be used for the receipt of personal mail.

4.28 Releasing Information (as adopted by MSMD Resolution 18-1)

The District is a “public entity” and as such has a responsibility to provide certain
information to the public under Colorado’s Open Records Act (“CORA”). Because there
are many situations where the definition of what is “public record” and what is exempt
from CORA and therefore not available to the public is not clear, we need to be careful
about releasing specific information. The Board of the District has adopted a specific
policy for how requests under CORA are to be handled. Employees should contact their
supervisor and/or the General Manager before releasing any information that might be
deemed confidential or sensitive, and all requests from members of the public, the press
or any third party for records of the District should be directed to the General Manager to
ensure compliance with the District's policy regarding CORA requests. The General
Manager and the District Board have the sole authority to decide when to provide
information of a confidential or sensitive nature, including but not limited to information
regarding conflicts or potential conflicts of interest, litigation, negotiations or emergencies.

Each employee of the District is advised that any District information that they obtain and
possess, including information that may be stored on a personal computer, laptop, tablet,
smartphone or other device may be subject to inspection and production pursuant to an
applicable and valid Open Records Act request.

The official personnel file for each employee is maintained by the General Manager. No
person may have access to personnel files other than those persons with a bona fide
reason as determined by the General Manager. A person, other than the General
Manager, having access to a personnel file may be required to sign a log included in each
individual file giving name, date and purpose of access. Employees are entitled to view
all materials and documents in their personnel files upon request. Employees may, upon
request, add relevant job-related materials to their files, request copies of file contents
and respond to any materials in their files.

4.29 Conflict of Interest/Code of Ethics

A District's reputation for integrity is its most valuable asset and is directly related to the
conduct of its officers and other employees. Therefore, employees must never use their
positions with the District, or any of its customers, for private financial gain, to advance
personal financial interests, to obtain favors or benefits for themselves, members of their
families or any other individuals, corporations or business entities, or engage in activities,

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 37
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 114 of 170



investments or associations that compete with the District, interferes with an employee's
business judgment concerning the District's best interests, or exploits an employee's
position with the District for personal gain.

The District adheres to the highest legal and ethical standards applicable in our business.
The District's business is conducted in strict observance of both the letter and spirit of all
applicable laws and the integrity of each employee is of utmost importance.

Employees of the District shall conduct their personal affairs such that their duties and
responsibilities to the District are not jeopardized and/or legal questions do not arise with
respect to their association or work with the District.

This policy will not be enforced to prevent employees from discussing their wages or other
terms of employment.

4.30 Contact with the Media

All media inquiries regarding the District and its operations must be referred to the
General Manager. The authorization to make or approve public statements on behalf of
the District rests solely with the General Manager. No employees, unless specifically
designated by the General Manager, are authorized to make statements on behalf of or
as a representative of the District.

4.31 If You Must Leave Us

Should you decide to leave your employment with us, we ask that you provide your
supervisor with as much advance written notice as possible.

The District does not provide a "letter of reference” to former employees. Generally, we
will confirm upon request our employees' dates of employment, salary history, and job
title.

Additionally, all resigning employees should complete a brief exit interview prior to
leaving. All District property must be returned at the end of employment. Otherwise, the
District may take action to recoup any replacement costs and/or seek the return of District
property through appropriate legal recourse.

You should notify the District if your address changes during the calendar year in which
discharge occurs so that your tax information will be sent to the proper address.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 38
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 115 of 170



5.0 Safety in the Workplace

5.1 Each Employee's Responsibility

Safety can only be achieved through teamwork at our District. Each employee, supervisor
and manager must practice safety awareness by thinking defensively, anticipating unsafe
situations and reporting unsafe conditions immediately.

Please observe the following precautions:

1. Notify your supervisor of any emergency situation. If you are injured or become
sick at work, no matter how slightly, you must inform your supervisor
immediately.

2. Report all workplace injuries as soon as reasonably possible to your supervisor

even if no medical treatment is required. It is our sincere hope that you or your
coworkers are never injured.

3. The use of alcoholic beverages or illegal substances during working hours will
not be tolerated. The possession of alcoholic beverages or illegal substances
on the District's property is forbidden.

4. Use, adjust and repair machines and equipment only if you are trained and
qualified.

5. Know the proper lifting procedures. Get help when lifting or pushing heavy
objects.

6. Understand your job fully and follow instructions. If you are not sure of the safe
procedure, don't guess; just ask your supervisor.

7. Know the locations, contents and use of first aid and fire-fighting equipment.

8. Wear personal protective equipment in accordance with the job you are
performing.

0. Comply with OSHA standards and/or applicable state job safety and health
standards as written in our safety procedures manual.

A violation of a safety precaution is in itself an unsafe act. A violation may lead to
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

5.2  Workplace Violence

Violence by an employee or anyone else against an employee, supervisor or member of
management will not be tolerated. The purpose of this policy is to minimize the potential
risk of personal injuries to employees at work and to reduce the possibility of damage to
District property in the event someone, for whatever reason, may be unhappy with a
District decision or action by an employee or member of management.

If you receive or overhear any threatening communications from an employee or outside
third party, report it to your supervisor at once. Do not engage in either physical or verbal
confrontation with a potentially violent individual. If you encounter an individual who is
threatening immediate harm to an employee or visitor to our premises, contact an
emergency agency (such as 911) immediately.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 39
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 116 of 170



All reports of work-related threats will be kept confidential to the extent possible,
investigated and documented. Employees are expected to report and participate in an
investigation of any suspected or actual cases of workplace violence and will not be
subjected to disciplinary consequences for such reports or cooperation.

Violations of this policy, including your failure to report or fully cooperate in the District's
investigation, may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

5.3  Workplace Searches

To protect the property and to ensure the safety of all employees, customers and the
District, the District reserves the right to conduct personal searches consistent with state
law, and to inspect any packages, parcels, purses, handbags, brief cases, lunch boxes
or any other possessions or articles carried to and from the District's property. In addition,
the District reserves the right to search any employee's office, desk, files, locker,
equipment or any other area or article on our premises. In this regard, it should be noted
that all offices, desks, files, lockers, equipment, etc. are the property of the District, and
are issued for the use of employees only during their employment. Inspection may be
conducted at any time at the discretion of the District.

Persons entering the premises who refuse to cooperate in an inspection conducted
pursuant to this policy may not be permitted to enter the premises. Employees working
on or entering or leaving the premises who refuse to cooperate in an inspection, as well
as employees who after the inspection are believed to be in possession of stolen property
or illegal substances, will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge,
if upon investigation they are found to be in violation of the District's security procedures
or any other District rules and regulations.

5.4 Hazard Communication

The District may use some chemicals (e.g., cleaning compounds, inks, etc.) in some of
its operations. You should receive training and be familiar with the handling, use, storage
and control measures relating to these substances if you will use or likely be exposed to
them. Safety Data Sheets (SDS) are available for inspections in your work area. You must
follow all labeling requirements.

Please consult with your supervisor prior to purchasing chemicals for the District or
bringing them on to our premises. For additional information, please refer to the District's
written Hazard Communication Program. If you have any questions, ask your supervisor
or the safety coordinator.

5.5 Good Housekeeping

Good work habits and a neat place to work are essential for job safety and efficiency. You
are expected to keep your place of work organized and materials in good order at all
times. Report anything that needs repair or replacement to your supervisor.

5.6 No Weapons in the Workplace

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 40
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 117 of 170



Possession, use or sale of weapons, firearms or explosives on work premises, while
operating District machinery, equipment or vehicles for work-related purposes or while
engaged in District business off premises is forbidden except where expressly authorized
by the District and permitted by state and local laws. This policy applies to all employees,
including but not limited to, those who have a valid permit to carry a firearm.

If you are aware of violations or threats of violations of this policy, you are required to
report such violations or threats of violations to your supervisor immediately.

Violations of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

5.7 Environmental Compliance

Our District adheres to all state and federal environmental protection laws. Your
supervisor will inform you of the laws impacting your specific job and you will receive
instruction on compliance procedures.

5.8 Political Activity (as adopted by MSMD Resolution 18-1)

Your political beliefs, activities, and party affiliation are private. You should not be asked
about your political beliefs or requested to participate or contribute to political parties or
groups as a requirement for employment. You may not engage in political activities during
your working hours, nor may you campaign while using District property. Any person
employed with the District who seeks election to partisan public office should request
accrued vacation leave or request leave without pay if the employee’s campaign will
interfere with the employee’s job performance or work hours. The granting of leave
without pay will be at the discretion of the General Manager.

5.9 Alcohol and Druqg Policy (as adopted by MSMD Resolution 18-1)

The District has established an alcohol and drug free workplace. The possession, use,
manufacture, distribution or dispensing of alcohol or illegal drugs in the workplace is
prohibited. The District may in its discretion require the collection and testing of samples
for any job-related purposes, including:

. The testing of all new employees upon hire and as a condition of employment;

. Investigation of accidents in the workplace;

. Maintenance of safety for employees and the public at large which will involve
random testing of employees who are in safety sensitive positions;

. Reasonable suspicion that an employee may be affected by the use of alcohol

and drugs and that the use may adversely affect the job performance or the
work environment. This includes the investigation of accidents.

A failure to immediately report an accident or to timely submit to alcohol and drug testing
may result in disciplinary action at the sole discretion of the District, up to and including
termination of employment.

Alcohol and lllegal Drugs

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 41
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 118 of 170



Any employee, who unlawfully possesses, uses, manufactures, distributes or dispenses
alcohol or drugs, or who is determined to be in the workplace while under the influence
of alcohol or drugs, which are not prescribed by a physician, shall be subject to
disciplinary action, at the sole discretion of the District, up to and including dismissal. For
purposes of this policy, marijuana shall be treated as an illegal drug in accordance with
Federal law, despite its legality under Colorado law. As such, employees are NOT
allowed to possess, use or be under the influence of marijuana, even for medicinal
purposes, while in the workplace, and a positive test for marijuana in any test
administered by the District as set forth above shall be deemed a violation of the policy
just as it would for any other illegal substance as defined under Federal law.

Conviction of Alcohol/Drug-Related Crime

Any employee who is convicted of an alcohol/drug statute violation or alcohol/drug related
crime shall notify the General Manager no later than five (5) business days after the entry
of the conviction. Any employee whose position involves driving a District vehicle or
privately owned vehicles on District business or other work of the District will report any
conviction involving alcohol or drugs and the operation of a motor vehicle and any drug
statute violation or drug-related crime no later than five (5) business days after the entry
of the conviction.

Prescription Medication

Employees who report to work impaired by prescription medication will not be allowed to
work. Before returning to work, any employee who has not been allowed to work because
of his/her use of prescription medication must have a written release from his/her
physician.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 42
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021

Page 119 of 170



Receipt of Employee Handbook and Employment-At-Will Statement

This is to acknowledge that | have received a copy of the Meridian Service Metropolitan
District Employee Handbook and | understand that it contains information about the
employment policies and practices of the District. | agree to read and comply with this
Employee Handbook. | understand that the policies outlined in this Employee Handbook
are management guidelines only, which in a developing business will require changes
from time to time. | understand that the District retains the right to make decisions
involving employment as needed in order to conduct its work in a manner that is beneficial
to the employees and the District. | understand that this Employee Handbook supersedes
and replaces any and all prior Employee Handbooks and any inconsistent verbal or
written policy statements.

| understand that except for the policy of at-will employment, the District reserves the right
to revise, delete and add to the provisions of this Employee Handbook at any time without
further notice. All such revisions, deletions or additions to the Employee Handbook will
be in writing and will be signed by the General Manager of the District. | understand that
no oral statements or representations can change the provisions of this Employee
Handbook.

| understand that this Employee Handbook is not intended to create contractual
obligations with respect to any matters it covers and that the Employee Handbook does
not create a contract guaranteeing that | will be employed for any specific time period.

THIS DISTRICT IS AN AT-WILL EMPLOYER. THIS MEANS THAT REGARDLESS OF
ANY PROVISION IN THIS EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK, THE DISTRICT OR | MAY
TERMINATE THE EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP AT ANY TIME, FOR ANY REASON,
WITH OR WITHOUT CAUSE OR NOTICE. NOTHING IN THIS EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK
OR IN ANY DOCUMENT OR STATEMENT, WRITTEN OR ORAL, SHALL LIMIT THE
RIGHT TO TERMINATE EMPLOYMENT AT-WILL. NO OFFICER, EMPLOYEE OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DISTRICT IS AUTHORIZED TO ENTER INTO AN
AGREEMENT—EXPRESS OR IMPLIED—WITH ME OR ANY EMPLOYEE FOR
EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIED PERIOD OF TIME. ANY AGREEMENT TO
EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIED PERIOD OF TIME WILL BE PUT INTO WRITING
AND SIGNED BY THE GENERAL MANAGEROF THE DISTRICT.

| understand that this Employee Handbook refers to current benefit plans maintained by
the District and that | must refer to the actual plan documents and summary plan
descriptions as these documents are controlling.

| have read and understand the Vacation Policy in this Employee Handbook.
Initials Date

| also understand that if a written contract is inconsistent with the Employee Handbook,
the written contract is controlling.

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 43
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 120 of 170



If I have questions regarding the content or interpretation of this Employee Handbook, |
will ask my supervisor or the General Manager.

NAME
DATE
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE

Meridian Service Metro District Employee Handbook 44
DRAFT Proposed 2022 Revisions 11032021
Page 121 of 170



AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made and
effective the 3™ day of November, by and between MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state of Colorado
(“District”), and Thomas General Contractors (“Contractor”) (the parties are referred to herein
individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties”), to set forth the Parties’ mutual
understandings and agreements.

WHEREAS, District desires to engage the services of Contractor in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is specially trained and possesses certain skills, experience, and
competency to perform those services as hereinafter set forth, and Contractor is able and willing
to provide such services under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the compensation to be paid hereunder and the
mutual agreements set forth herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1. PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES

District does hereby engage the Contractor to perform and provide the services hereinafter set
forth, and Contractor does hereby agree to perform such services in accordance with the terms and
conditions hereof. Contractor shall provide at its sole cost and expense all materials, equipment
and personnel required to perform its services under and pursuant to this Agreement.

2, EXHIBITS TO AGREEMENT

The following exhibits are attached to and incorporated into this Agreement:
Exhibit A: Plans, Addendum No. 1, Bid from Thomas General Contractors

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Contractor shall provide those services described and set forth in the Specifications and Estimates
section of Exhibit A in the manner and to the extent described in Exhibit A and this Agreement
(the “Work™).

4. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the effective date of this Agreement first set forth above
and shall terminate on the earlier of the completion of the Work and the final payment therefore
or June 30, 2022.

Agreement for Construction Services
Recreation Center Lobby Remodel
Page 1
11/4/2021

Page 122 of 170



5 COMPENSATION; COMPLETION OF WORK

As compensation for the services to be performed by Contractor hereunder, District agrees to pay
Contractor a total price of $ 120,602,.88 Base Bid plus Alternative No. 1 and No. 2 upon
completion of the Work. Contractor shall submit an invoice for the services rendered and such
invoice will be paid by the District within 30 days of its receipt. Contractor acknowledges that
time is of the essence for the completion of the Work and the expected date of completion of the
Work is March 3, 2022 (“Target Date”).

6. COORDINATION WITH DISTRICT

District and Contractor shall each identify an individual who shall act as liaison with the other.
Each such liaison shall be identified herein in writing, and each liaison shall have authority to
receive information from the other Party, to make project- or Agreement-related decisions which
do not require approval from the directors of the respective Parties and negotiate issues requiring
immediate resolution.

Contractor: Thomas General Contractors

Name: Ray Thomas

Cell Number: 719-632-9235

Email: rthomas@thomasgc.com

District: Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Name: Jim Nikkel, General Manager

Cell Number: (719) 495-6567

Email: j.nikkel@meridianservice.org

7. LIABILITY; INSURANCE

Contractor hereby assumes the entire responsibility and liability for any and all damage and injury
of any kind or nature whatsoever to all persons, whether employees or otherwise, and to all
property growing out of or resulting from the labor or material or both or occurring in connection
with the performance of this Agreement and agrees to fully defend and indemnify the District and
its directors, officers and employees against all claims made based upon any and all loss, expense
(including legal fees and disbursements), damage, or injury growing out of, resulting from, or
occurring in connection with Contractor’s performance of the Agreement.

Contractor shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry and maintain in full force at
Contractor’s expense insurance that meets or exceeds the insurance coverages shown below:

A. Workers” Compensation Insurance as required by State of Colorado law.

B. Comprehensive Commercial General Liability Insurance, with minimum coverage
limits of liability of $1,000,000 general aggregate and $1,000,000 each occurrence

Agreement for Construction Services
Page 2

11/4/2021
DN 4264110.1

Page 123 of 170



C. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance.

The District shall be added as an Additional Insured on the Contractor’s Comprehensive
Commercial General Liability policy. The Contractor’s policy shall be primary to any other
insurance policies held by the District or any other additional insured, and no other insurance of
the District will be called on to contribute to a loss.

In the event any work is performed by a subcontractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for any
liability directly or indirectly arising out of the work performed under this Agreement by the
subcontractor, which liability is not covered by the subcontractor’s insurance.

Contractor shall, prior to commencement of Work, provide the District with certificates of
insurance evidencing the policies listed above, which certificates shall state that the District is
named as an additional insured for all general liability insurance and shall contain a statement that
the policies certified shall not be cancelled nor materially modified without 10 days’ prior written
notice to the District.

8. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE; WARRANTY

Contractor shall perform the Work in a good and workmanlike manner, consistent with or in excess
of industry standards and in full compliance with all applicable laws and/or regulations, whether
federal, state or local. Contractor shall not perform any Work hereunder unless all applicable
regulations are met. Contractor shall keep the work premises and adjoining ways free of waste
materials and rubbish caused by the work and remove such waste on termination of the Work.

Contractor guarantees the Work for a period of one year from the date of payment for the work
performed. Neither the District’s acceptance of the Work nor final payment shall relieve
Contractor of responsibility for faulty materials or fault in the manner in which the work is
performed, and, unless otherwise specified, Contractor shall remedy any defects due thereto, and
pay for any damages resulting therefrom, which shall appear within a period of twelve (12) months
from the date of final payment. These warranty commitments to remedy defective work shall not
in any way preclude District from asserting claims against Contractor for work not completed in
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and discovered after conclusion of such
twelve (12) month period.

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Contractor, for all purposes arising out of this Agreement, is an independent contractor and shall
not be deemed an employee of District.

10. TERMINATION

District may, upon three days’ notice, terminate this Agreement for the convenience of the District.
If such termination occurs, Contractor shall be entitled to be compensated for all Work performed

Agreement for Construction Services
Page 3

Page 1246170

11/4/2021



to the date of termination as well as for all materials acquired by Contractor and for which
Contractor is legally and financially liable.

District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement after giving five (5) days written notice to
Contractor in the event of any default by Contractor. In the event of such termination, District
may take possession of any and all materials provided already for the Work and for which it has
or will pay for, and may finish the Work by whatever method and means it may select.

It shall be considered a default by Contractor whenever Contractor shall:

a. disregard or violate important provisions of the Agreement or instructions of the
District’s liaison, or fail to prosecute the Work according to the agreed-upon schedule of
completion, including extensions thereof; and/or

b. fail to provide a qualified representative, competent workmen or subcontractors, or
proper materials for the Work, or fail to make prompt payment therefore.

Upon termination of this Agreement by District for default by Contractor, no further payments
shall be due to Contractor.

11. NOTICE

Any notice or notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement may be
personally served on the other Party by the Party giving such notice or may be served by certified
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the following addresses:

Contractor: Thomas General Contractors
Name: Ray Thomas
Address: 104 S. Weber St., #200

Colorado Springs, CO 80903

District: Meridian Service Metropolitan District
Address: c/o Jim Nikkel, General Manager
11886 Stapleton Drive
Falcon, CO 80831

12. WAIVER

The waiver of any breach, or alleged breach, of this Agreement by either Party hereto shall not
constitute a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach by said Party of the same or any other
provision of this Agreement.

13. ILLEGAL ALIENS

Agreement for Construction Services
Page 4

11/4/2021
DN 4264110.1

Page 125 of 170



The Contractor shall comply with any and all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations
regarding the hiring of employees and retention of subcontractors, including without limitation
Section 8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S. The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an
illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement or contract with a sub-contractor who (a)
knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement, or (b)
fails to certify to the Contractor that the subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with
an illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement.

The Contractor hereby certifies that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien.
The Contractor shall participate in either the E-Verify Employment Verification Program
administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security (“E-Verify Program™) or the
State’s Department Program established pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5)(c) to confirm the
employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work
under the Agreement. The Contractor shall not utilize the E-Verify Program or the Department
Program procedures to independently undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants.

The Contractor shall require each subcontractor to certify that subcontractor will not knowingly
employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under the Agreement. If Contractor
obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under the Agreement knowingly
employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Contractor shall be required to: (a) notify the
subcontractor and the District within three (3) days that Contractor has actual knowledge that the
subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and (b) terminate the subcontract
with the subcontractor if within three (3) days of receiving notice from Contractor the
subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that Contractor
shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the
subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed
or contracted with an illegal alien. Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the
Colorado Department of Labor and Employment (“Department”) made in the course of an
investigation by the Department pursuant to Section 8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S.

In addition to any other legal or equitable remedy the District may be entitled to for a breach of
this Agreement, if the District terminates this Agreement, in whole or in part, due to the
Contractor’s breach of any of this Section, the Contractor shall be liable for actual and
consequential damages of the District resulting from such termination, and the District shall report
such violation by the Contractor to the Colorado Secretary of State as required by law.

14. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither Party shall be liable to the other for, or be considered to be in breach of or default under
this Agreement because of, any delay or failure in performance by such Party under this Agreement
to the extent such delay or failure is due to any cause or condition beyond such Party’s reasonable
control, including, but not limited to, failure or threat of failure of facilities or equipment; fire,
lightning, flood, earthquake, volcanic activity, wind, drought, storm and other acts of the elements;
court order and act, or failure to act, of civil, military or governmental authority; strike, lockout
and other labor dispute; epidemic, riot, insurrection, sabotage, war and other civil disturbance or

Agreement for Construction Services
Page 5

Page 128 6f'170

11/4/2021



disobedience; labor or material shortage; and act or omission of any person or entity (other than
such Party, its contractors or suppliers of any tier or anyone acting on behalf of such Party). Each
Party shall exercise reasonable diligence to overcome the cause of such delay; provided, however,
that to the extent the cause of such delay arises from any breach of, or failure by the other Party to
perform any of its obligations under this Agreement, the costs and expenses incurred by the Party
that has delayed or failed in its performance under this Agreement to overcome the cause of such
delay shall be for the account of such other Party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
construed to require either Party to prevent or settle any strike, lockout or other labor dispute in
which it may be involved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this paragraph shall apply to
any delay or failure by either Party to pay any amounts due and owing to the other Party pursuant
to this Agreement.

15.  ASSIGNMENTS

Contractor agrees that it shall not assign this Agreement, or any of the amounts due it, or to become
due hereunder, nor sublet any portion of the Work without first obtaining written consent of the
District. Any such assignment or sublet without the District’s consent shall be void ab initio.

16. PROTECTION FROM LIENS

The District is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and no lien rights against the
District’s property are permitted. Contractor shall keep the District’s premises free from claims
by any person, partnership, association of persons, company, or corporation that has furnished
labor, materials, team hire, sustenance, provisions, provender, or other supplies used or consumed
by Contractor or any subcontractor in or about the performance of the Work and shall furnish any
documents requested by District evidencing compliance with this paragraph.

17.  CONTRACTOR’S OBLIGATIONS

Contractor shall pay, at no expense to the District, all contributions, taxes or premiums which may
be payable under Federal or State Unemployment Insurance Law or the Federal Social Security
Act. The District is exempt from Sales and Use Taxes. It is Contractor's responsibility to obtain
and use the sales tax exemption number of District. District shall not reimburse Contractor for
sales or use taxes erroneously paid.

18.  SAFETY

Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions
and programs in connection with any Work performed hereunder and shall comply with all
applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and orders of any public body having
jurisdiction for the safety or persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss,
and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection.

19. INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS

Agreement for Construction Services
Page 6

11/4/2021
4264110.1

DN
Page 127 of 17



Contractor shall hold harmless and indemnify the District from and against any damages awarded
against the District, or incurred by the District in defense of any claim (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs or expert witness fees), related to the negligent or intentional wrongful
conduct of Contractor or its officers, employees, agents and any sub-contractors.

20. BUDGET/APPROPRIATIONS/GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY

As the District is a public entity under Colorado law, any and all financial obligations hereunder
are subject to annual budget and appropriation requirements. The District has appropriated the
funds necessary for payment of the amount set forth in paragraph 5 above. No term or condition
of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver by the District, express or implied,
of any of the notice requirements, immunities, limitations to liability, rights, benefits, protections,
or other provisions under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq.,
or under any other law.

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, AMENDMENT AND BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties regarding the Work, and
supersedes and replaces any and all prior and contemporaneous written and oral agreements,
promises, representations, or conditions with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be altered,
changed or amended, except by instrument in writing signed by both Parties hereto. The terms and
conditions contained in this Agreement shall apply to, inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon
the Parties hereto, and upon their respective successors in interest and legal representatives, except
as otherwise herein expressly provided.

22. ATTORNEY FEES

If any Party breaches this Agreement, the breaching Party shall pay all of the non-breaching Party’s
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in enforcing this Agreement whether or not legal proceedings
are instituted.

23. GOVERNING LAW

The Parties agree that Colorado law shall apply to this agreement and that any dispute shall be
tried and heard in the County of El Paso, State of Colorado.

24. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, which when taken together, shall
constitute one and the same original. Facsimile or electronic mail transmittals of this Agreement
with the Parties’ signature(s) shall be binding instruments, the same as originals.

25. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Agreement for Construction Services
Page 7

Page 1280170

11/4/2021



Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon
or to give to any person or entity other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or
claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any covenants, terms, conditions, or provisions
hereof, and all the covenants, terms, conditions, and provisions in this Agreement by and on behalf
of the District and the Contractor shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the District or the
Contractor. It is the express intention of the Parties that any person other than the Parties shall be
deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only.

26. HEADINGS

The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the
meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the
date first set forth above.

CONTRACTOR:

Signature:

Name:

Its:

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

Signature:
Name: Milton B. Gabrielski
Its: President, Board of Directors

Agreement for Construction Services
Page 8

11/4/2021
DN 4264110.1

Page 129 of 170



EXHIBIT A

Page 130'gf'L70



bl

Viva 153r08d

goom  aw
FULNOLISOINOD ANA LA
HINNVBHOAYA A v
TSN MOTION
TOAL AL
wa31s 3enL 'S1 HOLOVHLNGD TVINZD
40w o1 300v0

SNOUVOD3dS  D3ds
WS s

ONINIJOHONOM QU
OlM3s3 3

NWVHOJOOH oM
35ve u3g8NY £
avy

sniava
ONY NOLLYINSNI HORIZLY
oNILSIG
Mvd 4
INIOF T3NVd 1S¥D34d rd FETELVA]
SNNIN ¥ S17d -
T OINVEID
NVIOMOLNIAD 00 LIN ABNOSYH 313HONGD
¥NDNO 20 N WAND
1NIOf TOUINGD
IVOSOLION SN
IO ON JonoLioa
LOVHINGONILION N
Erod
ONNIJO ANNOSYH  ON Q3200NY
WORNIA N AN TY
WONDYN XYW HOO4 HSINI 3NORY

FULONNIZO WOILSNOTY

oull  1avevo vausinomxa 3wy
' 10N NOISIATY

HITNOW 13315
MIBMON NOUYAT T3/ NOILD3S

TN WIINNN L3S
) ¥3onmn3onauasu iz
ETCI )

HITNON ONY INVN HOOH

T

et

— ?_L

o
? méu.m @w :

Page 131 of 17




Meridian Ranch Recreation Center Reception Desk and Locker Room Lighting

ADDENDUM NUMBER ONE
TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
October 6", 2021

Bidders are hereby instructed that the drawings, specifications, and other contract documents are modified,
corrected, supplemented and/or superseded for the above mentioned project as hereinafter described in the
attached:

This ADDENDUM shall be attached to and become a part of the Contract Documents.

The CONTRACTOR shall ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT of this addendum, in the Contractor’s Bid
Proposal. The Bid Date remains unchanged

DESCRIPTION OF ADDENDUM ITEMS:
Responses to Contractor Questions:

1. Remove and replace tiles in existing toilet rooms 225, 226

2. The entire floor area in the lobby that will receive LVT should be floated to receive the new LVT.
Please include this in the bid

3. Replace corner trim at existing storefront with new trim to match clear aluminum storefront

4. As aclarification item- ceiling tiles maybe be affected by new lighting in locker rooms. Replace as
needed to match existing. No specifications were available on the existing tile.

5. See revised detail for the cubbies on Sheet A1.2. The partial height wall was raised to 4ft to allow
for 3 new receptables (USB/Power) for cell phone charging. Connect to existing circuit in the
existing wall from outlets that are being removed.

Attachments:

D.1,Al.1,A1.2,Al3

End of Addendum 1

Page 132 of 170



I 1d - 4 8 b s
VUV NOILd3D3Y 40 NV1d NOILITOW3a ! ATNO FINFHYI43" HO4 LNOAVT IFTIL DNILSIXI c

~~~~~

>>>>>>

0Qv¥010D ‘NOD W4

SNILHOIT WOOY ¥3aXJ01
ANY ¥3LNNOD NOLLJIDIA

HONVYH NVIAITHHIA

2

S wseey

IIIIIII

CO £ ] P D0 Y (L B ©

SRR

150 I

EJ“TTTI' i ES)
U
U

|||||||

|||||||

|||||||

lllllll

|||||||

d

Page 133 of 170




g (@0 % WS
dad V3Y¥V NOILd3D3d 40 Z«Jmﬂﬁv @

A33HS
T
. NOILDI5\’
—_—
SR =
i

—O
O
e 134 of 170

ke (& wnaval
1=l MUV NIVLS - HIRIG ALIFT 3AVED NIVLIS e Klv- LAk K]

NS OIS AU NTDES LNVNOS T MSING AR oMl N kR e peemelEreCi | B _ewamiww | |y g p

[ W

A-IDOINT NSNS JedN WYILIVAIN 41349 1y 00T

AUYNLYT DUSY W | 'z NLYIRL R d

1-100OTN INRIAOOM OOV WYILVAIN
S e | v N ]
VA2V SRVOD-NOUDTTIOD ZINVTD NYRIOS h o
2 =OLNIINGD 2oVl Q108 | 1-99 ® dav v 1y SODRINOD
a %8) Zovars OICe
e
g ANZDIT HSINI )

8

5 @t s (o @1 = 4 sws
<]
=}

NOILD3S

xva
_u| LE-C )

ONILHOIT WOOY ¥3XJ01
ANV ¥3LNNOD NOILdIDIA

@ * L% TS W@ 0 % TS 9 @m0 S TS

NOLLVAT 13 Jis3aa\’ NOLLVAT 13 3is3d NOLLVAT 13 Ms3a\s

snaval
WO Nyl 132l BBAT 3
\\ a3xid YIRS 3UN
T

h__i__g A

.Vl
— > 8|

= \

/1

1v201 91 2.
© - - || R
v (1-al)
VA FN BT -ay
- Aoy suvoiaN rolvr

v v 1-l)
BAACE OV IR0 LUV DUSY W

It

HONVY NVIATYAIN
i)
i bih
E
5

«2-0 ® & TS b 2@-l " % TS

NOILVA3T3 XS3a NOILVA3T3 MS3a

€ @0 % % TS

NOLLVAZ 13 ss3a\’

N
g

1R LAY R —— =y
B o R e SSINLH
M ‘ s A | o N3dO (3)
- L) —— ) e =3 t e
—ru—] s g2 : T~k
A R , X n
rum Tvn-aIo o 1€ g Al - - ey
v @ s e e SRR S S L
T =
WL




B SIS WOINALID ONY WADKLM WGX301 V) Y
Awwveren gor 1303 40 Yo YRGS 01 IOV

3an0oud 30VHD MDY IAMOI TI0NA T
AT BU LONETE IU HOW N0 RUNM TAWH BW LN D TEVAGevH ARG TIA “GALY NI SONG LY MIVLLY “STINYA OAG GIMSIN €
amassy AT S0 US4 @5 1 QLSS GININGD WK KOVLY TR NTI'T
o
P T
AZHs) HOW SYDOA XUSYM LIAUOW NOLUIGND) LT NY NI QLS DNININ TYNDINO SNNLNAWYH NI YN0 JUSTM SN M i iy -
VAT HoLLPYaD M V8 LS vt O0r GROTRG  SATITH B4 LY LU B4 G AEN LV VT 131 03 ¥ D e e e e B B v
DMTINYH ONY “ZOVNOLS “AN3ANIT » 0T o4 BLIVR SANRLLV UM CSUNICT NIV LML WHQY 0L EMLZI0L SEEAT ONY SHITIH WIML 40 SWOLLTRNNG) GIS0dd LM SINOTSIN
S3smes G SSLiva W1
=nvom T @auDosT oMo i Snivvenss s B ——
swis SN0 ! 108 YA INUT = 24101205 o i St o) T L S o) AT IORs Oy ot O S0k ST CL
NOLLYWNOINI 133HS 'ADHGIY IHLLSIL 3 WYY 40 SONDNIYM AVTHION &Y HLLM SLINCW ALLIDAL “ANEDY ONLISIL ¥ ‘dAL SUINO .E::.Bu !n:d.i "ﬁ.e.a embs EEErﬂ.xH-H_H_v:EBH Lypmoged GJUB.:%..EER 01 D000 WINIM 1584 NOLLIS T 0
1 30A0M4 (313°Tv8 NHOWTIR
@D ¥ A8 98 3 WIS L AW SIonoNd TN ML 13 GRS LSALIMO MM TVAT 3 Ivsnav 2 30n0m (3137w . s o Ry B0 IoM Akt
stz S voou st
400538 T s d01v3 03 MY
U G 2 SN Wi, o WY, 46 SR Wik . et im0 2 30IA0Na T SN GV T 33w NS G AN G ST I S 5 KON LU 4 GO DAL s 438 O K VIS M
woviso 2 AL o “manw s o 5
s vorum -
£ K Y WO ST 40 NOUYTITA 34 M TN KTV KT CIMTIGEE WY BICLYSUID SIS 8 i 2
2170 0 O VoKW SAYT 1ML ST LW L3N0 NOLIALLISHS L34
s sy 50300
1202-90-01- T WNONIAQY T s0.15T1 € WOTO4 SV I 3nivo33a R 2 ¢ Ly 1
aiansst GRS IN00N 40 LRINOSIOY VA 40 SIANE T Ny NN Y
“sunauntn
195 Q3A0Y¥ddY WM IOMTIHOD ONLIYJIANT ANZDY ONUSIL LAGONMAGH GIUIHND WOW YiYD LS TMIGMN Wivd 1030% T “iowd 3
Suaaunt a0
s o0 sz o2 e e i g S A S L s e D)
= T WG 300 Tvanaeg Sk 4] 1 WLk VAL SIL AL GLLST En LV AR LTI KL ¥ oL S300 S S St Y \
o e i i Ho)
[ oviow] [——————— ronsam s " e a
“ 3 YRrou. mauM “RaN; uoE LNCHLIM NOLLYTELSHOD GITUM TIV JCIAONI “ATR4ZSSY XOU
OV DS 20 TS “Aren 3 TveHoe T e ey es TS ora ag TN o ST TR VLT T P KA XIS L1305 TS ¥ o KB D
oo 4 TARLXHL M IS 01 €3 07 PN MM NG O1 3 E1315 334 ALY A15Y1d
- - 048 30 w34 [ L
il B o e
c0Om ARHID QL SUNGHHIYLLY QWY "STIVIX] 'SIOLIS ‘DIOUYATE NYM ¥OOH ‘NOISHIWIA NEI301 THEIAD J0MTII SRIMYED 405 ¥ Nenca wme 20 [ —— oy Lusva
8an e ) 2wt ey v s e oo G )
Zxm S —— b RS (OMAING SHGTIZN Y144 3LV 2L V1 34 3 L G w0 s T T o
% QIS04X3 IV 4330 21| $IATINE TIvm 30IA0KS 'S LINTYD OF “AQOR NAXK) INDOLYM HSINLS ONY BTV0D MLLM -u!»xv._s alﬂn T
am™ Wi ot SaOSON 4
oxmo wsovawvis
2 (ovean) Sarns v AT v STDID TS T X LR MW LTABOWY 8 LS 57 W03
m o O resa: i swenGHY ‘Grvon ¥ manamow <11 PR
g0z B0 T 8 ST O 03182345 ST 0
ool aa T
-
°Qn Bum Fep—— erem il
20 2 s LI TS SIS w rvas - e ViSY T 2awaavmel v auer SUisvuzol DAL >
e i) oGNS . o uamy
m = wovcn it et
Jowt ¢ bion " poTaE
= b srh ot b SAOINIINNOD SIVNIVTALSY M+
Im e saut
= S1mmases 91 Nswa Siarva v Al P
— ~ 'DNMOTIOH 3HL SI0NON MOILIAS STHL
Sk e woLv ey 4 ‘Goou s Naswa ATXONT ATV LT0M IS0 405 ¥
R 3 sano1e 1ot
0=z OMLSI HIIYI 34AL ¥IINAA TNV a en el
o o i.:zE:..su:SE; oniienas asanom
FE S ———— s sipsion
34 SIMISNAM 1A N3 v STVLINSAOMVITIEIN - .§.E a0 Ty 20
v YD Wk T T g w
SO LY SHERISOI 0N "AQTN WIXICT DNIND LYW HEIKES OHY WOTICD MM “JODAL MK LT (STINWE 00 1
swooa comHEn €1 Aosm- NS

154 ooy wwowoive

1
ISV 340 (4K (1) KW U1 35304 TOMTS ¥ b0 ALONAYS 59000 D

oL vusoLan0

MSINL MLGOMS WLLM XAV 4GH XD (4 O1) KONT W/ *SIATINS WY 'SIOQIAKI ‘SHOLLON 'S40L 5305 3
sl 340 AN T

Jout 1 3w '€
Jowa o ot
HOML 9 TTHON "I T
SworsEaa o 3

i ows HoLweLSRIWDON 3
s voim wes ¥ AL reNm GBS0 i0um SIWO T ¥DOTONTI ATTaTes {Lnaow leTREOTE ¥

HOON MAYINIE SRVITIM NMMIHS VIUNLIVATHM ¥
mve v

1m3zen STOG SSVU CevONIS 0T
AR (104 90 40 81 HONE HCE AR VT MOMDN SHGONY IMNOSTM DWHI-GITING
TOVIOLCANY 40S 04 GTANDII LTS Y AL TN Y
X008 K421 0N SNQLTHSOI TN '8
sy
YOI 'Y ¥ WISY 336 TS SIS €

]
auvos A T4l T ¥
nusv qomeTmMeao e

SRTARLSVANI V34 THHONLS 40 MO T L NPD T VL MU TAE TV T Aot ATUALLITDS DALIET CNUOTH YATHOP LSS N0 WMIEHOI T LKAIGA 001 a0 ITULLING! ALISGA HOM T

S3HSIN 6 NOIEW

st 3
TT¥ 423014 311 20 GN3 IL 1Y INAVINTSINATH S IO 0L S301 TIV KGA SATH 40 135 AL ) 30UAONA SNUSNBISH DHAIY

) s v
TS T IIA RR ecseecriom)
NOLIPO> ATXIVE 40 S13000 UG ‘SLIHGNIDA HLM IHTTUNGD 01 L5TWIS GULVIU HASIOHOSTVE Y

S yo
=™ "L L9 WA E v

o13vums

owInRo3

SNOLLYDIHID3dS 103r0dd

HONVY NVIATIAIA

< azo8
L amnaaiyoo T

@t »ﬂﬂm@ (@0 o TS
st uooa e wisas | Y190 AAANATII0 TN NOILLVAITI AGEND/43XMD0T
dNOYD FUYMAHVYH S3dAL INVAL S3dAL ¥OOoa e

1Nve -
WOY Qiinied ANOITVA SUOOT TNLEXE J— I Cl 4
000 NORAIN 1OLyL oL Mooa souraoLn i S
NOd Bwvaid Ty 13 COOM AN o5 ey “ vve aaeew 3418 1OV3-2oves IEOVraY
MOTION v % =00 aros —
ONUSIXE FOLVH 01 RIVIGNYH TV LWH Yam H ONLOIXA FOLYL- 29Vl
=018 TTvm | 1
v SOni A X 9% T ! n
1395001 204D | —— —
Saonn Lima & - booooa -1 I
1 dNOYD R U orau ™3 oa ~d >~ ' h
e rovisvwva o [ -] L~ <1< s
| amooveness g 3anced |k 3 e E
n L+ 1 _— /ﬁ 1 el Vo
|
wols wizy N |l|1~1|“ i =
HUm g5v 701 U NOrR NTOMS gv- avva #0a3
-l n woca S un RUDOOT AV Gl 9219ENO DIV I [ by A
| s AL oo wali-C e D) smeao
s o L ¢ 2<0L Hiai3a
>T WDlelld 913 UMD T2l L
60 OV W0
€ BAGNA
= 8 ¥ %) o \ ) UVY13A NI




eV

13345

SNOIYOLIDTdS
OGNV NYId HSINI
NOLLVHYOSNI 133HS

1202-90-01- T WNANIOAY
aansst

|

55 QINOBedY.
_
Gw ﬂﬁw:u

155
[wrem

0avy0102 ‘NODTVA

ONILHOIT WOOY ¥3X201
ANV ¥3LNNOD NOLLd3DO3Y

HONVY NVIATIHAIA

W@t LY TS
V34V NOILd3D3y 40 NV1d Iﬂ%@ @

L3% ONINEOAU34 TivisN ML v v moTv

1300 rBHL AB MOOH 3HL OL 3UNLNYN ONY SIHVIIAAY NYNLIY
'NOUYTIVASNI HLLAY SHNOH T Y04 1NSNIOV1d JUNLINUN HO ‘SYOT SNITION ‘DU4VEiL AAV3H LOMISIY

(SMIMOHS ONY ‘S13V0L 'SEAL TS TS
30V4¥NS OL G350 30 AVM L¥HL SVIHY TIV TV3S 0L SNDINYD INOINUS 35N SONITON SVE IHL TIVASNI

Juvuissns A AuvssIOM
38 AV 3N TNOLLIOGY ‘SHNOH M TIN4 ¥ 1SVAT IV NANININ ¥ 4O Dl44val LOOSDIIAVAL INON BL 1MIETY

WIACD OL CRrD R
SV O yany daave N

Sumds 38

TIV AVHL 3UNSNA T 40 £ Tvism

'ALIGINNH GNY THNIVIGANGL JLVHLSENS 'SNOLLIGNOD BOT NO O3SVE AMYA SINLL N3O GNY ONIXNOM JAISIHOY

‘350010
MILY NOLYTIVASHI W3L4Y ONY DNINNG 'O1 HONd
SunoM £ vos 135 0NV
a3sn
NSIHOV GIIXA LON ©1 SLINSIY IHL LYHL 3Av B153 1vHL3unsia
3sn

SNOLINWLENI TVAIGD

NOUOZLON ¥ NOUYTIVLSHI LINO0US

GIING ¥O L3N ONY LNINED)
VNIRTY HOM O ONY- BAITES 0350

1531 3H1 40 IALL IHL 1Y ATNG SNOLLIOHOD 3H1 S3LVOIONI 11 ‘OLUNCHED
ETCN HOIHd T1BVL3I0V JUV 5LINS3Y ML LYML
3630 ¥OO LS L

don arva

NSIHOY 0L 4334 a3SN 435 0001 YNOILIAGY.
HOY3 04 G3UNO3U S1 L3 TWNOLLIOOY 3NO GNY 45 000} OL dN SY3NY HO4 03LINONOS 38 GINOHS S1SIL T3UHL
(U531 ALOWNH JALLYI3H VNI LN i - 0212 I MISY 40 NOLLIR 1531V IHL 3 GINUO4¥34 38 1SN S1S3L

100 ALOmAN ALY IZY

s3nsst
ONINAVYD3 TaL INIAIHA OL 05 T45L 44 INTVA HIHOIH ¥ 3UINOIY AV ONINOOT4 LKGINSIH ASSOID HLOONS.

vans3y 30 AvH 2 V4% TIVI3A0 WALSAS IBRNNS

WIZL Mt ) 21
40 INFTVAINOS

SHL NIHLM OHY 1334 01 NI (V6 D) 9UT 50 e

S 3

T
1BV IVAY ONINOOT o1z arsY
o 152

SLUVULFENE AUINNOD

'HOOT4 NOY4 D13 HYLUORVOLLSVIY
SOOHLIM Funve 350 WML
PR lonea

1om 1YL AIHL0 ONY M3
‘G10M 3NV ASSING 'SLIVS NV O ONIN3ONYH ‘ONITV3S.
‘ONIYND ‘SHIAOA3Y NSIHOY ASIHAY NOISTH "ISVAHD 10 XYM LNIVd 'INIAIOS ‘1SN0 40 33M4 38 TS
A3HL ONNOS ATVHNLONYLS GNY 'HLOONS 'NYITD 'AG 38 TIVHS ONINOOTS LNGITIS3H JATI3Y O1 SLUVHISENS TV

SNOLLIONGD SUNLSION HO ININIVI YL M3d0Ud 3HL LNOHLW GLVLLN 38 1ONNYD NOUVTIVASNI LVHL MBNOLSNS

SNSIHOY IHL 30 ILL ONDIHOM 3HI NIMLM G TIVLSHI 38 Nvo

¥O ANDVL 3AON3Y OL TOHOD W GIHNLYNI] HO TOHOITV DNIBENY 35N DSTY AVIT NOA HILYM ¥ HIM CININVT g L Tivisw1onc9
HIO™ UMM NYITO ¥ ONIS OHINOOT 3L 4O 30¥4UNS IHL WO INSIHOY 5530XE ANV IAON3Y AT3LMIAINNI 3UNISION ¥O4 C31531 38 sauvuisens ™
NOUVTIVASNI MALIY onusaL
onnsM 0440 -

E 4 oy "ANNOH00L B0 LV Tk aals 40535VHd 38 01N0HS DNINOOTY 3ABIIY 0L SVANY

GILTIANOD §1 VAUV NN 4315 ONY | 3LE 133N T LS %59 MOT30.36 GINOHS ALGMNH

vawvanL ETe s90L

LGN 3HL 0L AUMOIL DALY
4.59 L
$13031d Ov3 3 o 3VS 3M1 N ONUMIOY TIv IS 2 dBs 400NV T LLE

HOJINN Y 1¥ 135 DVAH LNGMVIAIA FHL HLM ‘G3SOTONI ATINZ NY31D 38 TIVHS ONINOOT4 IAGI3H OL SY3RY

Page 136 of 170

aa131an00 3w
11D TUL L3V MOLVSl 1ON00Yd LYHL "3NSIHOY 40 3L 10N 80 MU $3QVHL YIHLO TV TUNA NIDIE L1ON OO 14 INISIY LML siu
138V NSIHAY NO SNOILOIYIA MOTIOS (ITBVINAdY 1) YIMOUL OICNINNOITY 3H1 HIM INSIHOY AlddY 'h daLE
13mhz8 v 1ona@InoNs Lvames
SINIOF NOISNYX3 ¥3A0 TIVLSMI LON GG 3N XIVHO ¥ dvNS 'LHONHLS LI P o
SAVMTV LON 3UY STIVM 3OS TIVAY ONOY MOH HNOA LYVS OS TV AYA NOA " sunoH o ot 92v 38 15w
19104 31133 3M1 Ly NoSIN Uy onpavm
“WND3 OLNI HOOY 3HL 30O WOOH 3HL NI ANIOd HLNID 3HL NI SLNIOF INSNAYTMIONN ONY ¥OO014ENS WOMS SOOI AL Bop:
AVMY (1D 51)SIHONI § 1SV LV TIV4 ELNIOF JNL ¥MYd 0S LNOAYY SHL NY'Id VN1V 3HL DNITIVISNI 340438
40d 091N LISW ¥1vO TYOINHIAL HO4
= 2 GHY SNV NOLYTIVLSNI 4O LN VIS
=] e
14335 34V SNOUION3 3UIS ‘G HYLS 51 NOLLYVTVLSMI IHL 3O
A3d0ud
ANY SY T13M SV 'WOOY 3L 7IN4 3HL ONNOHY Wi LVHL 3WNSNG RN Y BOVUOLEDUAREN TYERL Y
I QIL1mE3d ShoLNUISENS
§ » SIS A8 IS OITIWISM ON ‘GINOIHS TIM IAY ‘G3sn 38 0L NS 338
......... AN i 10N ¥V SUTBAN NOY 1NN HII0 LYWL ©F 11O GVT 3HL@EsN 39 0161 won i iandova
(/AN E HoNd. N HoO NS ONIHOO LAGIS3Y - 6 NOISIAXD
SNOILVDI4ID3dS 1D3(0Ud
—
2z snoisNamI o961 xea6 snossama
00N ML HO w0100 LHOISONH 651k w10
a3HSNOdNN s T 134800 s

ANFONY. I
INiAssow AN

241-0M3a3HOASd I m
ovaEN 0N

ONN HSWIA§ TITIHIOONS OL STVMGR AADMAN TV IVaINd. 3711 90014 1-1dD
SowsWILONYOOY ¥ soxsx o —
tre-s10Mm w0
NOLVTIVLSNI O1 NOM AOH44Y HO4 NaNOIS3 OL GILLINGNS 38 OLSHENATY £ aras A Tuis
a2 ]
SHOLLONMLSNI SHIMLOVNA K34 GITIVISNI SR OLSIHSINA T 9 et o
TIVM IN3DVIOY HOLYIN OL G31NIVd 38 O1 S3WYN4 HOOQ TYIIN TIV s
HSINIJ ONY 3DVHIA0O M¥OINN AIHIY OL GIMINOIY
s hamrm LM ST v v sexse swosNama sex snoisnama
Hom. swosana | ea-auvioan w0 sse-ximay w0100
T ST LSIVOD OMLINVASTIMMINTY oaL w00 anos 3uan Twis anos 3um s
) oo Tws|  uvamowion am [ AvaH v 108 P |
“HSNg Lo anwee | anowomvwon arwem anowo wavHoN anween
OO M3IN ONITIVISNI O MO 13A31 ONY HLOONS 38 O1 S0VANNS HOOS TTV JuvdInd k4
SNOUYDUID34S HISNIA 3LT14HOD ¥O4 YWV 150335 1 35vy Al

S31ON HSINI4

AN3O3T HSINIA




A SN0 m
V34V NOILd3D3Y 40 NV1d —
i @1+ s (0 01 = i smwos (0 —
NOILD3S NOILD3S @)
atvirpeal - azvoion
|.”| »vea v SO 1 -/ %v @
5 2ovd Paned Acad oV ¥ R ] ¥ ] W
Ll 1l
uvaigeng Avaiears i i [0
NV16 OSS@iak + HOMIE UMM FAVAD NIVIG u Ekqwtu..wwﬂn_-qa.ﬂ TN ——— .r:.xuﬂﬂm ki “ i “ 0 1—
wva | wva e wruava — - i -
S | v _ e Ak " . — H ! n g e}
Ho/NH 3CEMS - VAINGD Nl OMLYILOTEN 09V - ALNOl ke ami =.‘b-l._._l...8.hwnln N iy % Bt o = Y L gy — i \\w:g.
LV SUSY W | 2o e & 99, ol ] NO
HENG O3 - BIRD LAVN UGV - ZUNOl 1 ety ] Mn Sovare G . ) a
roTter LVNLRT UGV | W .7|||| A4V ¥E 1V SONAINDD A )
. - G e G s BT - — = {7 I-EI-PI
FRARZ =OLNAINDD RoVem Q09 | 198 AV v AUYNLY T DUV W /1
m mmm n«_.l Bovaine aIo8 4|.—J == ! »
g m o) m aNaoaT HeINi T T — 0% Bovans 38 _ ,
aUm ,
g M m W @+ ol s (o @i = s (o @i s (g “
2 ; —
282 NOILD3S NOILD3S NOILO3S - e R |
onz ]
S22 . — = s sevaviu Ik
z=2 im0z = : : S e
mm HEIN 30N "1V 2va vaned ! g | g B A4 e - e
a2 & BT dSuows 2w Livauisars _ . L. I I
eV s
" e T e i L \
Py SR = _ e — i L,
- e ‘ A (eoz] 0
G s T o IE‘.._MHW_"N.M.._ 3 e —— U 321440 3014
| J i G 3)
oD - TIvre W En«dﬂ-um -B.“-_huumn“- == N
@t = b s @i = e s @0t % 35%@ \\\\\
zoﬁ<>m._mm v T NOLLVATTS NOILVAITT L]

1V TNVl (2T T

NTOMS SNOISNELIQ ML snava

13NGYD T4 (2-d) BOd Nyl "Il 93ATIHG

ARV DY/ \ CEXld BNy TR AUH
1 B

2 s

24

HDONVY NVIATYAIA
i
gaiﬁ
\l
i}
§g§§

EZ Bz
NOd Nyl Bl
$3ATIS a4
LY T e \
S & 1
= -0 = 5
— 2uvoiaa o1 S 'L g [
NOILV201 SIHL / 2.
19| ivain TIv-30
LvNaEL
m:«w I iavers v
v - b N1y 1y
2ovd MR 3G (1-a0)
R Jusyd SwvDIaN HOLYH
1v. 2ovd (1=}
AN VS TR ANLF SUST

@@= % IS @ " % TS
ZOE.<>%M@ NOLLVATTa\E

‘Laan 13348 —_—
ML GNOIDFS T SIML SNOLDRS 1B
o2 i SSINI
921N v garmm
e e N3dO (3)
y
= 1338 —r —rar—=
I NO1LOE9 ' =F T
— ) —s eavoa - L — ) —s b
oV SR, — — f
T rumawacma & w A Illl_lT+,| - P
A [0 i) D e 3 Y T Lo
— ) — — ) — ! T D
Nod rouo%e
b LT X NOWOS
4 1036 2 e {— ‘calvoan woEn
F TN & BV HEIN (1) —onidNGD
O iy o ee Ly Susv Dvamaes | |
vam avs I
ool - I I
Do 1y doiRINGS Gy i
2ovans aos =oINNOD




THONMAS GENERAL CONTRACTORS

VISIONARY STRUCTURES, BUILT TO LAST

Project: Meridian Ranch Reception and Locker
Location: 10301 Angeles Rd. Total SQ. FT. 4837
CONTRACT AMOUNT $116,093.88
COST PER SQ. FT. $24.00
Description Sq.Ft. Cost % of Cost Total Cost
1000 GENERAL CONDITIONS $4.01 16.7% $19,420.00
2000 SITE WORK $1.09 4.5% $5,250.00
3000 CONCRETE $0.00 0.0% $0.00
4000 MASONRY $0.00 0.0% $0.00
5000 STEEL/METALS $0.00 0.0% $0.00
6000 WOOD AND PLASTIC $7.78 32.4% $37,630.57
7000 THERMAL, MOISTURE PROTECTION $0.00 0.0% $0.00
8000 DOORS, HARDWARE, WINDOWS & GLAZING $0.31 1.3% $1,496.63
9000  FINISHES: Drywall, Ceilings, Painting, Flooring $3.34 13.9% $16,139.00
10000 SPECIALTIES $0.00 0.0% $0.00
11000 EQUIPMENT / APPLIANCES $0.00 0.0% $0.00
12000 FURNISHINGS $0.00 0.0% $0.00
13000 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION $0.00 0.0% $0.00
14000 CONVEYING SYSTEMS $0.00 0.0% $0.00
15000 PLUMBING SYSTEMS $0.05 0.2% $225.00
15000 HVAC Instrument and Controls $0.00 0.0% $0.00
16000 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS $4.30 17.9% $20,790.00
[ s2087 T 87.0% | $100,951]
Total before profit & overhead $100,951.20
BUILDING PERMIT & PLAN CHECK $2,122.24 ALTERNATES
APP'S & PERMITS $0.00 Add Deduct
BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE $202.00 New bathroom floor tile Alt.1: $2,901 $0
LIABILITY INSURANCE $703.00 Entry Breakmetal Alt.2: $1,608 $0
PERFORMANCE BOND $0.00|P-lam at cubbies vs. HDPE Alt.3: $0 -$6,066
TWO YEAR MAINTANCE BOND $0.00 Alt.4: $0 $0
STATE EROSION CONTROL PERMIT $0.00 Alt.5: $0 $0
CONUTY EROSION CONTROL PERMIT $0.00 Alt.6: $0 $0
DUST PERMIT $0.00 Alt.7: $0 $0
CONTINGENCY $0.00 Alt.8: $0 $0
Subtotal $100,951.20 Alt.9: $0 $0
PROFIT $8,076.10 Alt.10: $0 $0
OVERHEAD $7,066.58 $4,509 -$6,066
Total Cost $116,093.88

Revision Date 01/22/2009
By: GEH

Page 138 of 170



AGREEMENT FOR

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES
RELATED TO PREPARATION OF WATER PLANT EXPANSION PERMITTING AND
DESIGN

This Agreement entered into this 3™ day of November 2021 by and between the
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation of the
State of Colorado (the "District") and JDS HYDRO CONSULTANTS, INC. (the "Consultant").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District contemplates that from time to time it will require various
professional and consulting services on an as-needed basis; and

WHEREAS, these professional and consulting services will be identified as the specific
need arises; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Consultant to render these professional
and consulting services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations
hereinafter set forth, the parties do hereto agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES: The Consultant shall provide and be compensated for a
scope of services (“Services”), set forth in a written Work Authorization issued pursuant to this
Agreement in substantially the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A, which Work
Authorization shall also set forth the time schedule to be followed (“Time Schedule™) and the
estimated charges that are to be made (“Charges”). Unless otherwise agreed the Charges shall
be calculated pursuant to the Schedule of Fees and Charges attached hereto as Exhibit B. The
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply to each Work Authorization, except to the
extent expressly modified by a subsequent Work Authorization. Where Charges are “not to
exceed” a specified sum, the Consultant shall notify the District when the Consultant has a
reasonable basis to anticipate that Charges will exceed the "not to exceed" sum and shall not
continue to provide the Services beyond such specified "not to exceed" sum unless the District
authorizes an increase in the sum, in writing by a subsequent Work Authorization executed by
the District’s designated representative. Changes in conditions, including, without limitation,
changes in laws or regulations occurring after the budget is established or other circumstances
beyond the Consultant’s control may be a basis for equitable adjustments in the budgeted
Charges and Time Schedule which adjustments shall only be made in writing by a subsequent
Work Authorization, prior to commencement of any additional work based upon such change in
conditions, executed by the District’s designated representative.

A. II. SPECIAL SERVICES: The District may, in writing, request the
Consultant to provide the District with certain additional special services ("Additional Services")
not covered by the Services as outlined above. These Additional Services may include, but not
be limited to any services not included under the specified scope of Services; provided that any
Additional Services must be approved in writing, in advance, by the District.

1 Page 139 of 170



III. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES: The officer assigned to administer the
Services by Consultant is the only authorized representative to make decisions or commitments
on behalf of Consultant. The only authorized representatives to make decisions or commitments
on behalf of the District are Milton B. Gabrielski, President or David Pelser, District General
Manager, or an alternate designated in writing by either.

IV. WORK PRODUCT: All maps, plans, drawings, specifications, and other
instruments and work product of the Consultant under this Agreement and related to the Services
shall remain the property of the District under all circumstances, regardless of whether the
Services are completed or not. The Consultant shall maintain reproducible drawings on file of
such work product and make them available for the District's use, such copies to be provided to
the District at printing rates shown in Exhibit B. Such work product shall be provided to the
District at the time of completion of the Services or at the time of termination of this Agreement,
whichever event first occurs, but in any case, prior to final payment of any amounts due
hereunder. At any time the District may obtain reproducible copies of the Consultant's work
product by paying printing costs as set forth above or comparable commercial printing rates.

V. COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF WORK:

A. The Services called for under Sections I and II of this Agreement shall commence
only after receipt of a Work Authorization from the District.

B. The Consultant agrees to begin work upon receipt of the District's written Work
Authorization, and shall proceed in accordance with the Time Schedule as specified therein.

(63 The Consultant will be responsible for completing the Services and other assigned
projects as set forth in the Work Authorization within the Time Schedule identified therein. The
Consultant will obtain from the District advance written approval of any anticipated changes or
modifications to the Time Schedule.

D. The Consultant shall perform the Services consistent with sound professional
practices and with the care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession
practicing under similar circumstances, and shall comply with and endeavor to incorporate all
laws, regulations, codes, and standards applicable at the time the Services are performed.

E. It is anticipated that the Consultant may require the subcontracted services of
subcontractors from time to time in completing the Services under this Agreement. Prior written
approval from the District will be required if the Consultant desires to retain such subcontractors,
and any agreement between the Consultant and any subcontractor shall state that the
subcontractor is, at a minimum, subject to and bound by the terms and conditions set forth
herein. The Consultant shall supervise any and all subcontractors in order to ensure that the
subcontractors perform the Services consistent with sound professional practices and with the
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession practicing under similar
circumstances, and shall provide additional oversight of the activities of the subcontractors in
order to ensure that the subcontractors comply with and endeavor to incorporate all laws,
regulations, codes, and standards applicable at the time the Services are performed.

F. As a condition of final payment, the Consultant will warrant that the Services

Page 140 of 170



have been completed lien-free, and will not be subject to any mechanics liens, chattel mortgages,
mortgages, deeds of trust, security agreement or other encumbrances which are not contested and
removed in due course.

VI. COMPENSATION:

A. Charges: The Services to be performed by the Consultant shall be at its sole cost,
risk and expense, and no part of the cost thereof shall be charged to the District, save and except
the Charges as identified herein.

B. Fee Schedule: Compensation for the Services and Additional Services, if any,
provided under this Agreement shall be based on the Schedule of Fees and Charges attached
hereto. Out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Consultant in the provision of the Services under
any single Work Authorization, in an aggregate amount of less than $300, will be reimbursable
by the District to the Consultant at cost. Out-of-pocket expenses of more than $300 must be
approved in writing by the District prior to the expenditure(s).

C. Payments: Requests for payments during the term of the Agreement will be based
on monthly certified progress reports and billings. The District shall be charged only for the
exact time and materials associated with the Services. These charges shall be presented to the
District each thirty (30) calendar days for review and approval. Billings must be submitted to the
District prior to the 5th of the month following the month in which the services are performed in
order for payment to be approved by the District’s Board of Directors and paid by the end of said
month. Each billing shall set forth, in addition to anything else required by this Agreement, the
Charges, the amount billed/paid prior to the current billing, and the amount of Charges remaining
to be paid for the Services.

D. Subcontractor Charges to be included in Contractor Billings: All charges of
approved subcontractors for which the District has agreed, in writing and advance of their
retention, to be responsible for the cost of such retention, shall be paid by the Consultant and
billed to the District on an itemized invoiced cost basis.

E, Finance Charges: Subject to Section VI.C. above, all accounts not paid within
sixty (60) days of statement date shall be subject to finance charges. Finance charges shall be
computed by applying a single periodic rate of one percent (1%) per month (annual percentage
rate of twelve percent (12%) to the unpaid balance. No finance charges shall accrue on any
unpaid balances that the District disputes in the exercise of its discretion. The finance charges
set forth in this Section VLE. shall begin to accrue on the sixty-first (61%) day following the date
on which the Contractor remits its billing statement to the District, if the account remains unpaid
and if the District does not reasonably dispute the billing statement of the Contractor at issue.

VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Consultant is an independent
contractor and nothing herein contained shall constitute or designate the Consultant or any of its
employees or agents as employees or agents of the District. Consultant is solely responsible for
the manner and means by which it performs the work hereunder. The District is concerned only
with the results to be obtained. Consultant shall be solely responsible for payment of all federal,

? Page 141 of 170



state and local taxes, insurance contributions for social security and unemployment, and any and
all required insurance coverages as set forth in Section X below for Consultant’s employees.

VIII. DISCLOSURE: During the performance of this Agreement and for all time
subsequent to completion of the Services, the Consultant agrees not to use or disclose to anyone,
except as required in the performance of this Agreement or by law, or as otherwise authorized in
writing by the District, any and all information given to the Consultant by the District, or by the
Consultant to the District, or which is developed by the Consultant as a result of the performance
of this Agreement.

IX. ASSIGNMENT: The Consultant shall not have the right or power to assign this
Agreement or parts thereof, or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the
District. Any attempt to assign this Agreement or parts hereof in the absence of such written
consent shall be null and void ab initio.

X. INSURANCE:

A. The Consultant shall obtain and maintain, at the Consultant's expense Workmen's
Compensation and Employer's Liability, Comprehensive, General Liability, Automobile
Liability, and Professional Liability, including errors and omissions in amounts and with carriers
satisfactory to the District.

B. A certificate identifying the District as holder evidencing such policies together
with the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage shall be attached to this
Agreement as a condition of this Agreement being effective. Said certificate shall designate that
the Consultant and the insurance carrier shall be obligated to give the District thirty (30) days
prior written notice of any change in or cancellation of said coverage(s).

C. If the Consultant subcontracts any portion of the Services for any purpose, said
subcontractors shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing satisfactory comparable
insurance coverage(s) to the Consultant and the District.

XI. INDEMNITY AND MUTUAL PROTECTION CLAUSES:

A. Indemnity: The Consultant shall defend, protect, and indemnify the District, its
officers, and employees from and against any claims, demands, losses, damages, expenses,
injuries, and liabilities arising from the death or injury of any person or persons, including
employees of the Consultant, or from any damage to or destruction of property to the extent
caused by or in connection with the performance, or any negligent act or omission of the
Consultant, its employees, or its subcontractors (if any), under this Agreement.

B. Mutual Protection Clauses: The Consultant will require that all contractors,
subcontractors, or others furnishing material, work, or other professional services in connection
with this Agreement agree to defend, protect, and indemnify the District and the Consultant and
their respective officers, and employees, from and against any claims, losses, damages, expenses,
injuries, and liabilities arising out of or in connection with their performance in connection with
the Services.

Page 142 of 170



XII. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE/SUSPENSION OF WORK:

A. Termination: The District may terminate all or any portion of the Services for
convenience, at its option, by sending a written notice to the Consultant. Termination shall be
effective seven (7) days after the District sends the Consultant notice of termination in
accordance with Section XIV of this Agreement, unless a later date is specified in said notice of
termination; provided that during said seven (7) day period the Consultant shall suspend the
performance of Services unless the District specifically agrees otherwise. Pursuant to the
provisions of Sections VI.C. through VLE. of this Agreement, the District shall pay the
Consultant within sixty (60) days following receipt of a proper billing statement of the
Contractor, which final billing statement shall set forth: (1) the Services performed by the
Contractor and its subcontractors through the date of termination; (2) amounts billed by and paid
to the Consultants through the date of termination; and (3) unpaid Charges of the Contractor
incurred prior to termination.

B. Suspension: The District may suspend the Services performed by the Consultant
at any time upon seven (7) days written notice. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections VI.C.
through VLE. of this Agreement, the District shall pay the Consultant within sixty (60) days
following receipt of a proper billing statement of the Contractor, which billing statement shall set
forth: (1) the Services performed by the Contractor and its subcontractors through the date of
termination; (2) amounts billed by and paid to the Consultants through the date of termination;
and (3) unpaid Charges of the Contractor incurred prior to termination. If the work suspension
exceeds sixty (60) days from the effective suspension of Services date, the Consultant shall be
entitled to renegotiate the Work Authorization and the attendant compensation terms.

XIII. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: Either party can terminate this Agreement or a
Work Authorization for cause if the other commits a material, uncured breach of this Agreement
or becomes insolvent. Termination for cause shall be effective twenty (20) days after receipt of a
notice of termination, unless a later date is specified in the notice, provided that during said
twenty (20) day period the Consultant shall suspend the performance of Services unless the
District specifically agrees otherwise. The notice of termination for cause shall contain specific
reasons for termination and both parties shall cooperate in good faith to cure the causes for
termination stated in the notice. Termination shall not be effective if reasonable action to cure
the breach has been taken before the effective date of the termination. The District shall pay the
Consultant upon invoice for Services performed and charges incurred prior to termination. In the
event of termination for cause, the Parties shall have their remedies at law as to any other rights
and obligations between them, subject to the other terms and conditions of this Agreement.

XIV. NOTICES: Any notices or other communications required or permitted by this
Agreement or by law to be served on, given to, or delivered to either party hereto, by the other
party shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served, given, or delivered when personally
delivered to the party to whom it is addressed or in lieu of such personal service, when deposited
in the United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed to the District at:

3 Page 143 of 170



To the District:

Meridian Service Metropolitan District
11886 Stapleton Drive

Falcon, CO 80831

Attn: Jim Nikkel, General Manager

with a copy to:

Ronald Fano

Spencer Fane LLP.

1700 Lincoln Street, Suite 2000
Denver, Colorado 80203

To the Consultant:

JDS Hyrdo Consultants, Inc.
5540 Tech Center Drive, Suite 100
Colorado Springs, CO 80919

Either party may change its address for the purpose of this Section by giving written notice of
such change to the other party in the manner provided in this Section.

XV. IMMIGRATION LAWS: The Consultant shall comply with any and all federal,
state and local laws, rules and regulations regarding the hiring of employees and retention of
subcontractors, including without limitation Section 8-17.5-101 et seq., C.R.S. The Consultant
shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this
Agreement or contract with a sub-contractor who (a) knowingly employs or contracts with an
illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement, or (b) fails to certify to the Consultant that
the subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work
under this Agreement.

The Consultant hereby certifies that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal
alien. The Consultant shall participate in either the E-Verify Employment Verification Program
administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security (“E-Verify Program™) or
the State’s Department Program established pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-102(5)(c) to confirm the
employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work
under the Agreement. The Consultant shall not utilize the E-Verify Program or the Department
Program procedures to independently undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants.

The Consultant shall require each subcontractor to certify that subcontractor will not knowingly
employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under the Agreement. If Consultant
obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under the Agreement knowingly
employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Consultant shall be required to: (a) notify the
subcontractor and the District within three (3) days that Consultant has actual knowledge that the

Page 144 of 170



subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and (b) terminate the subcontract
with the subcontractor if within three (3) days of receiving notice from Consultant, the
subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that
Consultant shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days
the subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly
employed or contracted with an illegal alien. Consultant shall comply with any reasonable
request by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment ("Department") made in the
course of an investigation by the Department pursuant to Section 8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S.

In addition to any other legal or equitable remedy the District may be entitled to for a breach of
this Agreement, if the District terminates this Agreement, in whole or in part, due to the
Consultant's breach of any of this Article XIV, the Consultant shall be liable for actual and
consequential damages of the District resulting from such termination, and the District shall
report such violation by the Consultant to the Colorado Secretary of State as required by law.

XVI. LAW/VENUE: The terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Colorado. In the event of any dispute between the parties to this Agreement, the
venue for the dispute resolution shall be the District Court for and in the county in which the
District is located.

XVII. INTEGRATED WRITING AND ENFORCEABILITY: This Agreement
constitutes the final and complete repository of the agreements between the District and the
Consultant relating to the Services and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications,
representations, or agreements, whether oral or written. Modifications of this Agreement shall
not be binding unless made in writing and signed by an Authorized Representative of each party.
The provisions of this Agreement shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. If any
provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the provision shall be
construed and applied in a way that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the
parties with regard to the provisions and that saves the validity and enforceability of the
provision. In the event of a legal action for invoice amounts not paid, or to otherwise enforce the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the
other party its reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, and other expenses related to the
preparation for and conduct of the legal action.

XVIII.NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS: This Agreement shall not create any rights or
benefits to parties other than the District and the Consultant. No third party shall have the right
to rely on the Consultant’s opinions rendered in connection with the Services without the written
consent of the Consultant and the third party’s agreement to be bound to the same conditions and
limitations as the District.

XIX. BINDING AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and permitted assigns of the parties hereto.

XX. NO WAIVER: No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor shall the
waiver of any default hereunder be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default hereunder.

7 Page 145 of 170



XXI. APPROPRIATIONS: The Consultant acknowledges and agrees that the District
is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and, as such, (1) any and all financial
obligations described hereunder are subject to annual budget and appropriations requirements,
and (2) neither the Consultant nor any of the Consultant’s subcontractors shall have lien rights
against the District, nor against any property lying within the boundaries of the District, in the
event of nonpayment of any amount due under this Agreement.

XXII. FORCE MAJEURE: An event of “force majeure” occurs when an event beyond
the control of the party claiming force majeure prevents such party from fulfilling its obligations.
An event of force majeure includes, without limitation, acts of God (including floods, hurricanes
and other adverse weather), war, riot, civil disorder, acts of terrorism, disease, epidemic, strikes
and labor disputes, actions or inactions of government or other authorities, law enforcement
actions, curfews, closure of transportation systems or other unusual travel difficulties, or inability
to provide a safe working environment for employees. In the event of force majeure, the
obligations of the Consultant to perform the Services shall be suspended for the duration of the
event of force majeure. If Services are suspended for thirty (30) days or more, the Consultant
may, in its sole discretion, upon five (5) days prior written notice to the District, terminate this
Agreement or the affected Work Authorization, or both. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections
VI.C. through VLE. of this Agreement, the District shall pay the Consultant within sixty (60)
days following receipt of a proper billing statement of the Consultant, which billing statement
shall set forth: (1) the Services performed by the Consultant and its subcontractors through the
date of such termination; and (2) charges of the Consultant incurred prior to the date of such
termination.

XXIII.NO WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY: The District, its
directors, officials, officers, agents and employees are relying upon and do not waive or
abrogate, or intend to waive or abrogate by any provision of this Agreement the monetary
limitations or any other rights immunities or protections afforded by the Colorado Governmental
Immunity Act, Section 24-10-101 et seq., C.R.S., as the same may be amended from time to
time.

XXIV.NO PERSONAL LIABILITY. No elected official, director, officer, agent or
employee of the District shall be charged personally or held contractually liable by or to the
Consultant under any term or provision of this Agreement, or because of any breach thereof or
because of its or their execution, approval or attempted execution of this Agreement.

Page 146 of 170



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first
above written.

DISTRICT:

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado

By:
Milton B. Gabrielski
Chairperson and President
CONSULTANT:
By:

7 Page 147 of 170



EXHIBIT A
Work Authorization

(note: includes Time Schedule and Charges)

v Page 148 of 170



S-HYD

AO CONSULTANTS, INC. Meridian Service Metropolitan District
SCOPE OF SERVICES

e

(Exhibit A to Agreement)
for
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
WATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION - PERMITTING & DESIGN

General Scope Description

This Scope of Services outlines and details engineering services for the permitting and design of the
expansion of an existing water treatment plant for the Meridian Service Metropolitan District (MSMD, the
District) in Falcon, Colorado.

The District’s existing water treatment plant (WTP) was constructed in the early 2000’s and is comprised
of a 40-foot by 60-foot, wood-framed building that contains water treatment vessels, booster pumps, a
bathroom, and an office. The intent is to expand the existing facility an additional 1,200 to 1,600 square
feet, bring in additional water treatment vessels, and upgrade existing booster pumps in order to meet
buildout water demands.

The District has already orchestrated considerable planning efforts involving a Master Plan document and
initial permitting of the Site Development Plan through El Paso County. Additional permitting efforts will
involve:

> Submittal of a Basis of Design Report through the Colorado Department of Public Health and
Environment (CDPHE, the State).

> Submittal of a building permit through the Pikes Peak Regional Building Department (PPRBD).

The permitting elements listed above are included in this scope of work and are more specifically detailed
below.

Specific Scope of Services

L Preliminary Planning of Water System Facilities
A. Initial kick-off meeting to further determine layout and sizing.
B. Coordinate with existing treatment package manufacturer for new vessels and equipment.

C. Review water quality information and confirm treatment capabilities with treatment
manufacturer.

D. Coordinate all raw and potable transmission lines, sizes, and locations with MSMD’s
engineering team.

E. Update existing water model based on final selections and simulate all flow scenarios to
ensure adequate sizing of all elements.

F. Generate preliminary layout and floorplan after coordination with treatment manufacturer
and MSMD engineering/operations staff.

Deliverable: Preliminary drawings depicting elements related to line items above.
Engineering Fee for Task I: $6.600

e reetert VTP Bxpan A Dol 70



R
JMO CONSULTANTS, INC. Meridian Service Metropolitan District

IL

III.

IV.

100.110

Generate Basis of Design Report (BDR)

JDS will prepare a Basis of Design Report (BDR) for permitting through CDPHE. The BDR
will include:

» Project information

Possible sources of contamination
Water quality data

Process flow diagram

Hydraulic profile

Capacity evaluation & design calculations
Monitoring & sampling evaluation
Residuals handling plan
Preliminary plan of operation
Impact to corrosivity
Implementation plan & schedule

Coordination with treatment package provider

YV V.V V V V V V VYV V V V

Opinion of probable cost
> Responses to any comments on BDR to obtain approval

Deliverable: Basis of Design report with 60% design drawings and specifications (see Task
I1T) for submittal to CDPHE.

Engineering Fee for Task II: $9,500

Generate 60% Design drawings

JDS will generate 60% (minimum) design drawings and specifications for submittal
with the BDR.

Deliverable: 60% design drawings and specifications
Engineering Fee for Task III: $8,100

Final Design
A. Design of Treatment Facility & Booster Station Expansion to include:

» Complete plant layout and design (including all process piping)
Coordination with treatment package provider on final treatment package
Structural design
Architectural design

Site utilities (reclaim tank, piping, etc.)

YV V V V V

Pump sizing and selection

Page 2 of 4 Meridian Service Metropolitan District

WTP ExpRagferiG0of:ET O



e
J MO CONSULTANTS, INC. Meridian Service Metropolitan District

VI.

100.110

Geotechnical subconsultant and coordination
Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) subconsultant and coordination
Electrical subconsultant and coordination

Landscape design (in separate scope for Site Development Plan)

YV V V V VYV

Generate drawings and specifications that can be utilized for bidding the treatment
facility expansion with upgraded booster pumps.

A4

Design of Treatment System to include:

1. Design of liquid sodium hypochlorite disinfection/feed/chemical fill and storage,
treatment systems and associated support systems.

2. Outline all control narratives and reporting for above systems. Develop hydraulic
profile of treatment. It is assumed that the hydraulic profile will depend on well-
head pressure to carry flows through filtration system, chemical feed, chlorine
contact and into the finished water storage tank.

Deliverable: Final Design, Plans, and Specifications
Engineering Fee for Task IV: $99,100

Controls Narrative

> JDS will draft a controls narrative encompassing operation of all the above water
system elements.

> JDS will work with the District’s approved integrator to design overall water system
controls architecture. This includes remote telemetry communications.

Deliverable: Controls Narrative
Engineering Fee for Task V: $1,700

Online Permitting: Pikes Peak Regional Building Department
A. Treatment Facility Expansion:

» Professional Engineer sealed Code Study form

> Online Electronic Plan Application (included in this scope)

> Plan Submittal per applicable department

1. Design/Construction drawings per all applicable codes (i.e., Approved Site
Development Plan, Civil, Architectural, Structural, Mechanical, Plumbing,
Electrical, etc.)

Soils Report
IECC Envelope Certificate and COMcheck
Fuel tank pemmit (for backup generator)

Chemical Inventory Form

S v oA W

Supplemental submittal items as determined by PPRBD (additional fees may
apply)

Page 3 of 4 Meridian Servj Metrogii Distric
WTP Expans@e@gﬂ i 53&9%15170



I a— A
MO CONSULTANTS. INC. Meridian Service Metropolitan District

7. Pikes Peak Regional Building Department and allowable jurisdictions comments
and revisions/resubmittal process

Deliverable: Approved building permit (to be pulled by selected contractor)
Engineering Fee for Task VI: $4,800

Exclusions

1. Design of water distribution system infrastructure other than expansion of plant and booster
pump station.

2. Environmental report, if required.
Third-party testing services except for geotechnical investigation.

4. Instrumentation and Controls (I&C). It is understood that JDS-Hydro will work with the
District’s integrator for SCADA.

5. Costs for treatment package (contract for treatment package is typically involves tiered payments
under a contract between the owner and the treatment package provider)

6. Construction administration (bidding, award, meetings, inspections, etc.)
7. Permitting fees for all agencies having jurisdiction.

8. Site visits in addition to those proposed herein.
9

Any work not explicitly described herein.

Assumptions
1. Client to provide any available electronic CAD drawings that will assist in permitting and design.

2. Water treatment system design assumes that iron and manganese filtration and chemical
disinfection will be required.

100.110 Page 4 of 4 Meridian Service Metropolitan District

WTP ExpP iR 7 O



EXHIBIT B

Schedule of Fees and Charges

H Page 153 of 170



S-HYD

e
JLO CONSULTANTS, INC.

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

ENGINEERING FEE SCHEDULE

(Exhibit B to Agreement)

for

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
WATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION — PERMITTING & DESIGN

Engineering Fee Schedule

The estimated fee for each task is shown below and will be invoiced monthly on a lump sum basis according

to the percentage complete on each task.

Additional work requested will be performed for a negotiated additional fee or on a time & materials basis,

in accordance with our hourly rate schedule (enclosed).

TASK DESCRIPTION FEE
I. PRELIMINARY PLANNING OF WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES $6,600
II. GENERATE BASIS OF DESIGN REPORT $9,500
III. GENERATE 60% DESIGN DRAWINGS $8,100
IV. FINAL DESIGN $99,100
V. CONTROLS NARRATIVE $1,700
VI. ONLINE PERMITTING (PPRBD) $4,800
TOTAL FEE $129,800

100.110 Page 1 of 2

Meridian Service Metropolitan District
WTP Expansion Permitting & Design

Page 154 of 170



CONSULTANTS, INC.

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

2021 STANDARD BILLING RATES

JDS-Hydro Consultants, Inc.

Category Rate
($/hour)
Principal Engineer $185.00
Senior Project Manager $165.00
Project Manager $155.00
Senior Project Engineer $145.00
Project Engineer $135.00
Senior Design Technician $125.00
Staff Engineer llI $115.00
Staff Engineer Il $110.00
Staff Engineer | $105.00
Engineering Technician IlI $95.00
Engineering Technician Il $90.00
Engineering Technician | $85.00
Senior Engineer Construction Management $120.00
Project Engineer Construction Management $110.00
Staff Engineer Construction Management $100.00
Senior Engineer Construction Observation $115.00
Project Engineer Construction Observation $105.00
Staff Engineer Construction Observation $95.00
Administrative/Clerical $75.00
Mileage $0.575/mile
Direct Costs (added to external sources only) Cost + 5%

100.110

Page 2 of 2

Meridian Service Metropolitan District
WTP Expansion Permitting & Design

Page 155 of 170



AGREEMENT FOR

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES
RELATED TO FILTER PLANT EXPANSION PIPELINE — BIDDING &
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

This Agreement entered into this 3 day of November 2021 by and between the
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation of the
State of Colorado (the "District") and JDS HYDRO CONSULTANTS, INC. (the "Consultant").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District contemplates that from time to time it will require various
professional and consulting services on an as-needed basis; and

WHEREAS, these professional and consulting services will be identified as the specific
need arises; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Consultant to render these professional
and consulting services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations
hereinafter set forth, the parties do hereto agree as follows:

L. BASIC SERVICES: The Consultant shall provide and be compensated for a
scope of services (“Services”), set forth in a written Work Authorization issued pursuant to this
Agreement in substantially the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A, which Work
Authorization shall also set forth the time schedule to be followed (“Time Schedule) and the
estimated charges that are to be made (“Charges”). Unless otherwise agreed the Charges shall
be calculated pursuant to the Schedule of Fees and Charges attached hereto as Exhibit B. The
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply to each Work Authorization, except to the
extent expressly modified by a subsequent Work Authorization. Where Charges are “not to
exceed” a specified sum, the Consultant shall notify the District when the Consultant has a
reasonable basis to anticipate that Charges will exceed the "not to exceed" sum and shall not
continue to provide the Services beyond such specified "not to exceed" sum unless the District
authorizes an increase in the sum, in writing by a subsequent Work Authorization executed by
the District’s designated representative. Changes in conditions, including, without limitation,
changes in laws or regulations occurring after the budget is established or other circumstances
beyond the Consultant’s control may be a basis for equitable adjustments in the budgeted
Charges and Time Schedule which adjustments shall only be made in writing by a subsequent
Work Authorization, prior to commencement of any additional work based upon such change in
conditions, executed by the District’s designated representative.

A. IL. SPECIAL SERVICES: The District may, in writing, request the
Consultant to provide the District with certain additional special services ("Additional Services")
not covered by the Services as outlined above. These Additional Services may include, but not
be limited to any services not included under the specified scope of Services; provided that any
Additional Services must be approved in writing, in advance, by the District.

Page 156 of 170



III. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES: The officer assigned to administer the
Services by Consultant is the only authorized representative to make decisions or commitments
on behalf of Consultant. The only authorized representatives to make decisions or commitments
on behalf of the District are Milton B. Gabrielski, President or David Pelser, District General
Manager, or an alternate designated in writing by either.

IV. WORK PRODUCT: All maps, plans, drawings, specifications, and other
instruments and work product of the Consultant under this Agreement and related to the Services
shall remain the property of the District under all circumstances, regardless of whether the
Services are completed or not. The Consultant shall maintain reproducible drawings on file of
such work product and make them available for the District's use, such copies to be provided to
the District at printing rates shown in Exhibit B. Such work product shall be provided to the
District at the time of completion of the Services or at the time of termination of this Agreement,
whichever event first occurs, but in any case, prior to final payment of any amounts due
hereunder. At any time the District may obtain reproducible copies of the Consultant's work
product by paying printing costs as set forth above or comparable commercial printing rates.

V. COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF WORK:

A. The Services called for under Sections I and II of this Agreement shall commence
only after receipt of a Work Authorization from the District.

B. The Consultant agrees to begin work upon receipt of the District's written Work
Authorization, and shall proceed in accordance with the Time Schedule as specified therein.

C. The Consultant will be responsible for completing the Services and other assigned
projects as set forth in the Work Authorization within the Time Schedule identified therein. The
Consultant will obtain from the District advance written approval of any anticipated changes or
modifications to the Time Schedule.

D. The Consultant shall perform the Services consistent with sound professional
practices and with the care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession
practicing under similar circumstances, and shall comply with and endeavor to incorporate all
laws, regulations, codes, and standards applicable at the time the Services are performed.

E. It is anticipated that the Consultant may require the subcontracted services of
subcontractors from time to time in completing the Services under this Agreement. Prior written
approval from the District will be required if the Consultant desires to retain such subcontractors,
and any agreement between the Consultant and any subcontractor shall state that the
subcontractor is, at a minimum, subject to and bound by the terms and conditions set forth
herein. The Consultant shall supervise any and all subcontractors in order to ensure that the
subcontractors perform the Services consistent with sound professional practices and with the
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession practicing under similar
circumstances, and shall provide additional oversight of the activities of the subcontractors in
order to ensure that the subcontractors comply with and endeavor to incorporate all laws,
regulations, codes, and standards applicable at the time the Services are performed.

F. As a condition of final payment, the Consultant will warrant that the Services

Page 157 of 170



have been completed lien-free, and will not be subject to any mechanics liens, chattel mortgages,
mortgages, deeds of trust, security agreement or other encumbrances which are not contested and
removed in due course.

VI. COMPENSATION:

A. Charges: The Services to be performed by the Consultant shall be at its sole cost,
risk and expense, and no part of the cost thereof shall be charged to the District, save and except
the Charges as identified herein.

B. Fee Schedule: Compensation for the Services and Additional Services, if any,
provided under this Agreement shall be based on the Schedule of Fees and Charges attached
hereto. Out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Consultant in the provision of the Services under
any single Work Authorization, in an aggregate amount of less than $300, will be reimbursable
by the District to the Consultant at cost. Out-of-pocket expenses of more than $300 must be
approved in writing by the District prior to the expenditure(s).

C. Payments: Requests for payments during the term of the Agreement will be based
on monthly certified progress reports and billings. The District shall be charged only for the
exact time and materials associated with the Services. These charges shall be presented to the
District each thirty (30) calendar days for review and approval. Billings must be submitted to the
District prior to the 5th of the month following the month in which the services are performed in
order for payment to be approved by the District’s Board of Directors and paid by the end of said
month. Each billing shall set forth, in addition to anything else required by this Agreement, the
Charges, the amount billed/paid prior to the current billing, and the amount of Charges remaining
to be paid for the Services.

D. Subcontractor Charges to be included in Contractor Billings: All charges of
approved subcontractors for which the District has agreed, in writing and advance of their
retention, to be responsible for the cost of such retention, shall be paid by the Consultant and
billed to the District on an itemized invoiced cost basis.

E. Finance Charges: Subject to Section VI.C. above, all accounts not paid within
sixty (60) days of statement date shall be subject to finance charges. Finance charges shall be
computed by applying a single periodic rate of one percent (1%) per month (annual percentage
rate of twelve percent (12%) to the unpaid balance. No finance charges shall accrue on any
unpaid balances that the District disputes in the exercise of its discretion. The finance charges
set forth in this Section VILE. shall begin to accrue on the sixty-first (61*) day following the date
on which the Contractor remits its billing statement to the District, if the account remains unpaid
and if the District does not reasonably dispute the billing statement of the Contractor at issue.

VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Consultant is an independent
contractor and nothing herein contained shall constitute or designate the Consultant or any of its
employees or agents as employees or agents of the District. Consultant is solely responsible for
the manner and means by which it performs the work hereunder. The District is concerned only
with the results to be obtained. Consultant shall be solely responsible for payment of all federal,

Page 158 of 170



state and local taxes, insurance contributions for social security and unemployment, and any and
all required insurance coverages as set forth in Section X below for Consultant’s employees.

VIII. DISCLOSURE: During the performance of this Agreement and for all time
subsequent to completion of the Services, the Consultant agrees not to use or disclose to anyone,
except as required in the performance of this Agreement or by law, or as otherwise authorized in
writing by the District, any and all information given to the Consultant by the District, or by the
Consultant to the District, or which is developed by the Consultant as a result of the performance
of this Agreement.

IX. ASSIGNMENT: The Consultant shall not have the right or power to assign this
Agreement or parts thereof, or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the
District. Any attempt to assign this Agreement or parts hereof in the absence of such written
consent shall be null and void ab initio.

X. INSURANCE:

A. The Consultant shall obtain and maintain, at the Consultant's expense Workmen's
Compensation and Employer's Liability, Comprehensive, General Liability, Automobile
Liability, and Professional Liability, including errors and omissions in amounts and with carriers
satisfactory to the District.

B. A certificate identifying the District as holder evidencing such policies together
with the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage shall be attached to this
Agreement as a condition of this Agreement being effective. Said certificate shall designate that
the Consultant and the insurance carrier shall be obligated to give the District thirty (30) days
prior written notice of any change in or cancellation of said coverage(s).

C. If the Consultant subcontracts any portion of the Services for any purpose, said
subcontractors shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing satisfactory comparable
insurance coverage(s) to the Consultant and the District.

XI. INDEMNITY AND MUTUAL PROTECTION CLAUSES:

A. Indemnity: The Consultant shall defend, protect, and indemnify the District, its
officers, and employees from and against any claims, demands, losses, damages, expenses,
injuries, and liabilities arising from the death or injury of any person or persons, including
employees of the Consultant, or from any damage to or destruction of property to the extent
caused by or in connection with the performance, or any negligent act or omission of the
Consultant, its employees, or its subcontractors (if any), under this Agreement.

B Mutual Protection Clauses: The Consultant will require that all contractors,
subcontractors, or others furnishing material, work, or other professional services in connection
with this Agreement agree to defend, protect, and indemnify the District and the Consultant and
their respective officers, and employees, from and against any claims, losses, damages, expenses,
injuries, and liabilities arising out of or in connection with their performance in connection with
the Services.

Page 159 of 170



XII. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE/SUSPENSION OF WORK:

A. Termination: The District may terminate all or any portion of the Services for
convenience, at its option, by sending a written notice to the Consultant. Termination shall be
effective seven (7) days after the District sends the Consultant notice of termination in
accordance with Section XIV of this Agreement, unless a later date is specified in said notice of
termination; provided that during said seven (7) day period the Consultant shall suspend the
performance of Services unless the District specifically agrees otherwise. Pursuant to the
provisions of Sections VI.C. through VILE. of this Agreement, the District shall pay the
Consultant within sixty (60) days following receipt of a proper billing statement of the
Contractor, which final billing statement shall set forth: (1) the Services performed by the
Contractor and its subcontractors through the date of termination; (2) amounts billed by and paid
to the Consultants through the date of termination; and (3) unpaid Charges of the Contractor
incurred prior to termination.

B. Suspension: The District may suspend the Services performed by the Consultant
at any time upon seven (7) days written notice. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections VI.C.
through VLE. of this Agreement, the District shall pay the Consultant within sixty (60) days
following receipt of a proper billing statement of the Contractor, which billing statement shall set
forth: (1) the Services performed by the Contractor and its subcontractors through the date of
termination; (2) amounts billed by and paid to the Consultants through the date of termination;
and (3) unpaid Charges of the Contractor incurred prior to termination. If the work suspension
exceeds sixty (60) days from the effective suspension of Services date, the Consultant shall be
entitled to renegotiate the Work Authorization and the attendant compensation terms.

XIII. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: Either party can terminate this Agreement or a
Work Authorization for cause if the other commits a material, uncured breach of this Agreement
or becomes insolvent. Termination for cause shall be effective twenty (20) days after receipt of a
notice of termination, unless a later date is specified in the notice, provided that during said
twenty (20) day period the Consultant shall suspend the performance of Services unless the
District specifically agrees otherwise. The notice of termination for cause shall contain specific
reasons for termination and both parties shall cooperate in good faith to cure the causes for
termination stated in the notice. Termination shall not be effective if reasonable action to cure
the breach has been taken before the effective date of the termination. The District shall pay the
Consultant upon invoice for Services performed and charges incurred prior to termination. In the
event of termination for cause, the Parties shall have their remedies at law as to any other rights
and obligations between them, subject to the other terms and conditions of this Agreement.

XIV. NOTICES: Any notices or other communications required or permitted by this
Agreement or by law to be served on, given to, or delivered to either party hereto, by the other
party shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served, given, or delivered when personally
delivered to the party to whom it is addressed or in lieu of such personal service, when deposited
in the United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed to the District at:

> Page 160 of 170



To the District:

Meridian Service Metropolitan District
11886 Stapleton Drive

Falcon, CO 80831

Attn: Jim Nikkel, General Manager

with a copy to:

Ronald Fano

Spencer Fane LLP.

1700 Lincoln Street, Suite 2000
Denver, Colorado 80203

To the Consultant:

JDS Hyrdo Consultants, Inc.
5540 Tech Center Drive, Suite 100
Colorado Springs, CO 80919

Either party may change its address for the purpose of this Section by giving written notice of
such change to the other party in the manner provided in this Section.

XV. IMMIGRATION LAWS: The Consultant shall comply with any and all federal,
state and local laws, rules and regulations regarding the hiring of employees and retention of
subcontractors, including without limitation Section 8-17.5-101 et seq., C.R.S. The Consultant
shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this
Agreement or contract with a sub-contractor who (a) knowingly employs or contracts with an
illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement, or (b) fails to certify to the Consultant that
the subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work
under this Agreement.

The Consultant hereby certifies that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal
alien. The Consultant shall participate in either the E-Verify Employment Verification Program
administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security (“E-Verify Program”) or
the State’s Department Program established pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-102(5)(c) to confirm the
employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work
under the Agreement. The Consultant shall not utilize the E-Verify Program or the Department
Program procedures to independently undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants.

The Consultant shall require each subcontractor to certify that subcontractor will not knowingly
employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under the Agreement. If Consultant
obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under the Agreement knowingly
employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Consultant shall be required to: (a) notify the
subcontractor and the District within three (3) days that Consultant has actual knowledge that the

Page 161 of 170



subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and (b) terminate the subcontract
with the subcontractor if within three (3) days of receiving notice from Consultant, the
subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that
Consultant shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days
the subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly
employed or contracted with an illegal alien. Consultant shall comply with any reasonable
request by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment ("Department") made in the
course of an investigation by the Department pursuant to Section 8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S.

In addition to any other legal or equitable remedy the District may be entitled to for a breach of
this Agreement, if the District terminates this Agreement, in whole or in part, due to the
Consultant's breach of any of this Article XIV, the Consultant shall be liable for actual and
consequential damages of the District resulting from such termination, and the District shall
report such violation by the Consultant to the Colorado Secretary of State as required by law.

XVI. LAW/VENUE: The terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Colorado. In the event of any dispute between the parties to this Agreement, the
venue for the dispute resolution shall be the District Court for and in the county in which the
District is located.

XVIL. INTEGRATED WRITING AND ENFORCEABILITY: This Agreement
constitutes the final and complete repository of the agreements between the District and the
Consultant relating to the Services and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications,
representations, or agreements, whether oral or written. Modifications of this Agreement shall
not be binding unless made in writing and signed by an Authorized Representative of each party.
The provisions of this Agreement shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. If any
provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the provision shall be
construed and applied in a way that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the
parties with regard to the provisions and that saves the validity and enforceability of the
provision. In the event of a legal action for invoice amounts not paid, or to otherwise enforce the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the
other party its reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, and other expenses related to the
preparation for and conduct of the legal action.

XVIIL.NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS: This Agreement shall not create any rights or
benefits to parties other than the District and the Consultant. No third party shall have the right
to rely on the Consultant’s opinions rendered in connection with the Services without the written
consent of the Consultant and the third party’s agreement to be bound to the same conditions and
limitations as the District.

XIX. BINDING AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and permitted assigns of the parties hereto.

XX. NO WAIVER: No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor shall the
waiver of any default hereunder be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default hereunder.

7 Page 162 of 170



XXI. APPROPRIATIONS: The Consultant acknowledges and agrees that the District
is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and, as such, (1) any and all financial
obligations described hereunder are subject to annual budget and appropriations requirements,
and (2) neither the Consultant nor any of the Consultant’s subcontractors shall have lien rights
against the District, nor against any property lying within the boundaries of the District, in the
event of nonpayment of any amount due under this Agreement.

XXII. FORCE MAJEURE: An event of “force majeure” occurs when an event beyond
the control of the party claiming force majeure prevents such party from fulfilling its obligations.
An event of force majeure includes, without limitation, acts of God (including floods, hurricanes
and other adverse weather), war, riot, civil disorder, acts of terrorism, disease, epidemic, strikes
and labor disputes, actions or inactions of government or other authorities, law enforcement
actions, curfews, closure of transportation systems or other unusual travel difficulties, or inability
to provide a safe working environment for employees. In the event of force majeure, the
obligations of the Consultant to perform the Services shall be suspended for the duration of the
event of force majeure. If Services are suspended for thirty (30) days or more, the Consultant
may, in its sole discretion, upon five (5) days prior written notice to the District, terminate this
Agreement or the affected Work Authorization, or both. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections
VI.C. through VIE. of this Agreement, the District shall pay the Consultant within sixty (60)
days following receipt of a proper billing statement of the Consultant, which billing statement
shall set forth: (1) the Services performed by the Consultant and its subcontractors through the
date of such termination; and (2) charges of the Consultant incurred prior to the date of such
termination.

XXIII.NO WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY: The District, its
directors, officials, officers, agents and employees are relying upon and do not waive or
abrogate, or intend to waive or abrogate by any provision of this Agreement the monetary
limitations or any other rights immunities or protections afforded by the Colorado Governmental
Immunity Act, Section 24-10-101 ef seq., C.R.S., as the same may be amended from time to
time.

XXIV.NO PERSONAL LIABILITY. No elected official, director, officer, agent or
employee of the District shall be charged personally or held contractually liable by or to the
Consultant under any term or provision of this Agreement, or because of any breach thereof or
because of its or their execution, approval or attempted execution of this Agreement.

Page 163 of 170



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first
above written.

DISTRICT:

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado

By:
Milton B. Gabrielski
Chairperson and President
CONSULTANT:
By:

? Page 164 of 170



EXHIBIT A
Work Authorization

(note: includes Time Schedule and Charges)

10
Page 165 of 170



SCOPE OF SERVICES
(Exhibit A to Agreement)

for

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
FILTER PLANT EXPANSION PIPELINE — BIDDING & CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

I. INTRODUCTION

The Client, Meridian Service Metropolitan District (MSMD, The District), has generated design
drawings for a potable water pipeline to transmit water produced from the existing filter plant to the
ground storage tank farm. This scope is to produce contract documents, specificationS, bidding
services, construction administration and observation.

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES
JDS will provide contract documents and construction administration services for Filter Plant
Expansion Pipeline per the following:

TASK 1: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BIDDING SERVICES

1. Provide complete contract documents and technical specification in CSI format for bidding
purposes and incorporate MSMD design drawings.

2. Prepare, copy, and distribute documents to bidders.

Post bidding documents to online bidding services.

=

Correspond with appropriate Contractors with abilities to perform the specified requested
services.

Prepare addenda and answer questions during bidding, as necessary.
Provide Client a draft pre-bid agenda.
Attend and document pre-bid conference for submission in addendum.

Attend bid opening and tabulate results.

© ° N o w

Check references and calculations of apparent low bidder.
10. Provide Client recommendation of contract Award.

11. Assist the Client in the preparation of a Notice of Award, Agreement, and review of
Contractor Insurance documents.

TASK 2: CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

1. Process contract documentation, including the Agreement and Notice to Proceed
2. Prepare agenda and conduct a pre-construction meeting
3. Review/Approve shop drawing submittals
4. Assist contractor in acquiring proper documentation and permits
5. Prepare agenda and attend weekly meetings
100.110 Page 1 of 2 Filter Plant Expansion Pipeline

Bidding & Construction Administration

Page 166 of 170



6.
7.

9.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

15.

Provide minutes for each weekly meeting

Miscellaneous remote construction coordination (from JDS office) with the Client, General
Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Manufacturers. This work is in addition to time
allocated for shop drawing review, additional site visits, meeting minutes, and other items
specifically listed in this Scope. An average of 8 hours/week for 8 weeks is included in this
Scope. Hours in addition to this would be as requested by the District an on an hourly basis.

Make site visits throughout construction in addition to those made during the weekly
meetings to record construction progress, provide observation documentation, conduct
inspections, witness testing, and coordinate with Contractors on specific requests. As needed,
meeting minutes will be created and distributed to the Contractor and Client as a means of
tracking outstanding technical and administrative issues and documenting decisions. This
Scope assumes the following frequency for site visits, an average of 2 hours/week for 8
weeks. Site visits in addition to this will be at the District’s request and billed on an hourly
basis.

Review draft pay estimates and comment to Owner/Engineer on related progress.

Review and initiate change order and work directive requests.

Prepare punch-lists at Substantial and Final Completion milestones

Process substantial and final completion documentation, including a letter of final acceptance
Obtain lien waivers from the contractor

Prepare the advertisement of final payment, which will be published for a 2-week period in
the legal section of the local paper

Coordinate and assist in preparation of As-Built Drawings and Construction Folders.

II1. EXCLUSIONS

ol S

100.110

Surveying

Permitting

Subsurface Utility Engineering report

Construction Soils and/or materials testing (provide billing review, direct billed to Owner)
Other services or design not listed in the Basic Scope of Services or significant

changes in the project limits.

Page 2 of 2 Filter Plant Expansion Pipeline
Bidding & Construction Administration

Page 167 of 170



EXHIBIT B

Schedule of Fees and Charges

H Page 168 of 170



ENGINEERING FEE SCHEDULE
(Exhibit B to Agreement)

for

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

FILTER PLANT EXPANSION PIPELINE — BIDDING & CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

ENGINEERING FEE SCHEDULE

TASK 1 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BIDDING SERVICES $5,872
TASK 2 - CONSTRUCTION SERVICES $21,225
TOTAL FEE $27,097

Task 1will be invoiced monthly on a Lump Sum basis according to the percentage complete on each task.

Task 2 shall be invoiced monthly on a “Time & Materials” basis, Not to Exceed (NTE) $27,097.

Additional work requested will be performed for a negotiated additional fee or on a time & materials basis,

in accordance with our hourly rate schedule (enclosed).

100.110 Page 1 of 2 Filter Plant Expansion Pipeline
Bidding & Construction Administration

Page 169 of 170



2021 STANDARD BILLING RATES

JDS-Hydro Consultants, Inc.

Category Rate ($/hour)
Principal Engineer $185.00
Senior Project Manager $165.00
Project Manager $155.00
Senior Project Engineer $145.00
Project Engineer $135.00
Senior Design Technician $125.00
Staff Engineerlll $115.00
Staff Engineer I $110.00
Staff Engineer| $105.00
Engineering Technician IlI $95.00
Engineering Technician Il $90.00
Engineering Technician | $85.00
Senior Engineer Construction Management $120.00
Project Engineer Construction Management $110.00
Staff Engineer Construction Management $100.00
Senior Engineer Construction Observation $115.00
Project Engineer Construction Observation $105.00
Staff Engineer Construction Observation $95.00
Administrative/Clerical $75.00
Mileage $0.575/mile
Direct Costs (added to external sources only) Cost +5%
100.110 Page 2 of 2 Filter Plant Expansion Pipeline

Bidding & Construction Administration

Page 170 of 170



	II.A. Financial Statements MRMD 09.30.21.pdf
	10-General Fund
	20-DEBT
	40-CTF
	Cash Position - MR - 09.30.21.pdf
	CASH POSITION SUM  
	FUND ALLOCATION 


	II.A. Meridian Ranch Subdistrict 9.30.21.pdf
	2021
	Cash Position - Meridian Ranch Subdistrict - 09.30.21.pdf
	CASH POSITION SUM


	II.F. 2021 Certification List to accompany Resolution 11.3.21 BOD.pdf
	2017 Certification

	II.H. 2022 - MRMD 2018 Sub District - Draft.pdf
	Budget

	II.H. 2022 Budget - Meridian Ranch MD - Draft.pdf
	General Fund
	DEBT
	CTF
	Property Tax


